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Title 3— 

The President 

Executive Order 14193 of February 1, 2025 

Imposing Duties To Address the Flow of Illicit Drugs Across 
Our Northern Border 

By the authority vested in me as President by the Constitution and the 
laws of the United States of America, including the International Emergency 
Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 1701 et seq.) (IEEPA), the National Emer-
gencies Act (50 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.) (NEA), section 604 of the Trade Act 
of 1974, as amended (19 U.S.C. 2483), and section 301 of title 3, United 
States Code, 

I, DONALD J. TRUMP, President of the United States of America, find 
that the sustained influx of illicit opioids and other drugs has profound 
consequences on our Nation, endangering lives and putting a severe strain 
on our healthcare system, public services, and communities. 

This challenge threatens the fabric of our society. Gang members, smugglers, 
human traffickers, and illicit drugs of all kinds have poured across our 
borders and into our communities. Canada has played a central role in 
these challenges, including by failing to devote sufficient attention and 
resources or meaningfully coordinate with United States law enforcement 
partners to effectively stem the tide of illicit drugs. 

Drug trafficking organizations (DTOs) are the world’s leading producers of 
fentanyl, methamphetamine, cocaine, and other illicit drugs, and they cul-
tivate, process, and distribute massive quantities of narcotics that fuel addic-
tion and violence in communities across the United States. These DTOs 
often collaborate with transnational cartels to smuggle illicit drugs into 
the United States, utilizing clandestine airstrips, maritime routes, and over-
land corridors. 

The challenges at our southern border are foremost in the public conscious-
ness, but our northern border is not exempt from these issues. Criminal 
networks are implicated in human trafficking and smuggling operations, 
enabling unvetted illegal migration across our northern border. There is 
also a growing presence of Mexican cartels operating fentanyl and nitazene 
synthesis labs in Canada. The flow of illicit drugs like fentanyl to the 
United States through both illicit distribution networks and international 
mail—due, in the case of the latter, to the existing administrative exemption 
from duty and taxes, also known as de minimis, under section 1321 of 
title 19, United States Code—has created a public health crisis in the United 
States, as outlined in the Presidential Memorandum of January 20, 2025 
(America First Trade Policy) and Executive Order 14157 of January 20, 
2025 (Designating Cartels and Other Organizations as Foreign Terrorist Orga-
nizations and Specially Designated Global Terrorists). With respect to smug-
gling of illicit drugs across our northern border, Canada’s Financial Trans-
actions and Reports Analysis Centre recently published a study on the 
laundering of proceeds of illicit synthetic opioids, which recognized Canada’s 
heightened domestic production of fentanyl, largely from British Columbia, 
and its growing footprint within international narcotics distribution. Despite 
a North American dialogue on the public health impacts of illicit drugs 
since 2016, Canadian officials have acknowledged that the problem has 
only grown. And while U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) within 
the Department of Homeland Security seized, comparatively, much less 
fentanyl from Canada than from Mexico last year, fentanyl is so potent 
that even a very small parcel of the drug can cause many deaths and 
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destruction to America families. In fact, the amount of fentanyl that crossed 
the northern border last year could kill 9.5 million Americans. 

Immediate action is required to finally end this public health crisis and 
national emergency, which will not happen unless the compliance and 
cooperation of Canada is assured. 

I hereby determine and order: 

Section 1. (a) As President of the United States, my highest duty is the 
defense of the country and its citizens. A Nation without borders is not 
a nation at all. I will not stand by and allow our sovereignty to be eroded, 
our laws to be trampled, our citizens to be endangered, or our borders 
to be disrespected anymore. 

I previously declared a national emergency with respect to the grave threat 
to the United States posed by the influx of illegal aliens and illicit drugs 
into the United States in Proclamation 10886 of January 20, 2025 (Declaring 
a National Emergency at the Southern Border). Pursuant to the NEA, I 
hereby expand the scope of the national emergency declared in that Proclama-
tion to cover the threat to the safety and security of Americans, including 
the public health crisis of deaths due to the use of fentanyl and other 
illicit drugs, and the failure of Canada to do more to arrest, seize, detain, 
or otherwise intercept DTOs, other drug and human traffickers, criminals 
at large, and drugs. In addition, this failure to act on the part of Canada 
constitutes an unusual and extraordinary threat, which has its source in 
substantial part outside the United States, to the national security and foreign 
policy of the United States. I hereby declare and reiterate a national emer-
gency under the NEA and IEEPA to deal with that threat. This national 
emergency requires decisive and immediate action, and I have decided to 
impose, consistent with law, ad valorem tariffs on articles that are products 
of Canada set forth in this order. In doing so, I invoke my authority under 
section 1702(a)(1)(B) of IEEPA, and specifically find that action under other 
authority to impose tariffs is inadequate to address this unusual and extraor-
dinary threat. 

Sec. 2. (a) All articles that are products of Canada as defined by the Federal 
Register notice described in subsection (e) of this section (Federal Register 
notice), and except for those products described in subsection (b) of this 
section, shall be, consistent with law, subject to an additional 25 percent 
ad valorem rate of duty. Such rate of duty shall apply with respect to 
goods entered for consumption, or withdrawn from warehouse for consump-
tion, on or after 12:01 a.m. eastern time on February 4, 2025, except that 
goods entered for consumption, or withdrawn from warehouse for consump-
tion, after such time that were loaded onto a vessel at the port of loading 
or in transit on the final mode of transport prior to entry into the United 
States before 12:01 a.m. eastern time on February 1, 2025, shall not be 
subject to such additional duty, only if the importer certifies to CBP as 
specified in the Federal Register notice. 

(b) With respect to energy or energy resources, as defined in section 
8 of Executive Order 14156 of January 20, 2025 (Declaring a National Energy 
Emergency), and as otherwise included in the Federal Register notice, such 
articles that are products of Canada as defined by the Federal Register 
notice shall be, consistent with law, subject to an additional 10 percent 
ad valorem rate of duty. Such rate of duty shall apply with respect to 
goods entered for consumption, or withdrawn from warehouse for consump-
tion, on or after 12:01 a.m. eastern time on February 4, 2025, except that 
goods entered for consumption, or withdrawn from warehouse for consump-
tion, after such time that were loaded onto a vessel at the port of loading 
or in transit on the final mode of transport prior to entry into the United 
States before 12:01 a.m. eastern time on February 1, 2025, shall not be 
subject to such additional duty, only if the importer certifies to CBP as 
specified in the Federal Register notice. 

(c) The rates of duty established by this order are in addition to any 
other duties, fees, exactions, or charges applicable to such imported articles. 
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(d) Should Canada retaliate against the United States in response to this 
action through import duties on United States exports to Canada or similar 
measures, the President may increase or expand in scope the duties imposed 
under this order to ensure the efficacy of this action. 

(e) In order to establish the duty rate on imports of articles that are 
products of Canada, the Secretary of Homeland Security shall determine 
the modifications necessary to the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United 
States (HTSUS) in order to effectuate this order consistent with law and 
shall make such modifications to the HTSUS through notice in the Federal 
Register. The modifications made to the HTSUS by this notice shall be 
effective with respect to goods entered for consumption, or withdrawn from 
warehouse for consumption, on or after 12:01 a.m. eastern time on February 
4, 2025, and shall continue in effect until such actions are expressly reduced, 
modified, or terminated. 

(f) Articles that are products of Canada, except those that are eligible 
for admission under ‘‘domestic status’’ as defined in 19 CFR 146.43, which 
are subject to the duties imposed by this order and are admitted into a 
United States foreign trade zone on or after 12:01 a.m. eastern time on 
February 4, 2025, except as otherwise noted in subsections (a) and (b) 
of this section, must be admitted as ‘‘privileged foreign status’’ as defined 
in 19 CFR 146.41. Such articles will be subject upon entry for consumption 
to the rates of duty related to the classification under the applicable HTSUS 
subheading in effect at the time of admittance into the United States foreign 
trade zone. 

(g) No drawback shall be available with respect to the duties imposed 
pursuant to this order. 

(h) For avoidance of doubt, duty-free de minimis treatment under 19 
U.S.C. 1321 shall not be available for the articles described in subsection 
(a) and subsection (b) of this section. 

(i) Any prior Presidential Proclamation, Executive Order, or other Presi-
dential directive or guidance related to trade with Canada that is inconsistent 
with the direction in this order is hereby terminated, suspended, or modified 
to the extent necessary to give full effect to this order. 

(j) The articles described in subsection (a) and subsection (b) of this 
section shall exclude those encompassed by 50 U.S.C. 1702(b). 
Sec. 3. (a) The Secretary of Homeland Security shall regularly consult with 
the Secretary of State, the Attorney General, the Assistant to the President 
for National Security Affairs, and the Assistant to the President for Homeland 
Security on the situation at our northern border. The Secretary of Homeland 
Security shall inform the President of any circumstances that, in the opinion 
of the Secretary of Homeland Security, indicate that the Government of 
Canada has taken adequate steps to alleviate this public health crisis through 
cooperative enforcement actions. Upon the President’s determination of suffi-
cient action to alleviate the crisis, the tariffs described in section 2 of 
this order shall be removed. 

(b) The Secretary of Homeland Security, in coordination with the Secretary 
of State, the Attorney General, the Assistant to the President for National 
Security Affairs, and the Assistant to the President for Homeland Security, 
shall recommend additional action, if necessary, should the Government 
of Canada fail to take adequate steps to alleviate the illegal migration and 
illicit drug crises through cooperative enforcement actions. 
Sec. 4. The Secretary of Homeland Security, in consultation with the Sec-
retary of the Treasury, the Attorney General, and the Secretary of Commerce, 
is hereby authorized to take such actions, including adopting rules and 
regulations, and to employ all powers granted to the President by IEEPA 
as may be necessary to implement this order. The Secretary of Homeland 
Security may, consistent with applicable law, redelegate any of these func-
tions within the Department of Homeland Security. All executive departments 
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and agencies shall take all appropriate measures within their authority to 
implement this order. 

Sec. 5. The Secretary of Homeland Security, in coordination with the Sec-
retary of the Treasury, the Attorney General, the Secretary of Commerce, 
the Assistant to the President for National Security Affairs, and the Assistant 
to the President for Homeland Security, is hereby authorized to submit 
recurring and final reports to the Congress on the national emergency under 
IEEPA declared in this order, consistent with section 401(c) of the NEA 
(50 U.S.C. 1641(c)) and section 204(c) of IEEPA (50 U.S.C. 1703(c)). 

Sec. 6. General Provisions. (a) Nothing in this order shall be construed 
to impair or otherwise affect: 

(i) the authority granted by law to an executive department, agency, or 
the head thereof; or 

(ii) the functions of the Director of the Office of Management and Budget 
relating to budgetary, administrative, or legislative proposals. 
(b) This order shall be implemented consistent with applicable law and 

subject to the availability of appropriations. 

(c) This order is not intended to, and does not, create any right or benefit, 
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity by any party 
against the United States, its departments, agencies, or entities, its officers, 
employees, or agents, or any other person. 

THE WHITE HOUSE, 
February 1, 2025. 

[FR Doc. 2025–02406 

Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

Billing code 3395–F4–P 
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Executive Order 14194 of February 1, 2025 

Imposing Duties To Address the Situation at Our Southern 
Border 

By the authority vested in me as President by the Constitution and the 
laws of the United States of America, including the International Emergency 
Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 1701 et seq.) (IEEPA), the National Emer-
gencies Act (50 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.) (NEA), section 604 of the Trade Act 
of 1974, as amended (19 U.S.C. 2483), and section 301 of title 3, United 
States Code, 

I, DONALD J. TRUMP, President of the United States of America, find 
that the sustained influx of illegal aliens and illicit opioids and other drugs 
has profound consequences on our Nation, endangering lives and putting 
a severe strain on our healthcare system, public services, communities, 
and schools. Since the end of my first term, U.S. Customs and Border 
Protection (CBP) within the Department of Homeland Security has recorded 
more than three times as many inadmissible encounters nationwide as during 
my first term. 

These challenges threaten the fabric of our society. Gang members, smugglers, 
human traffickers, and illicit drugs of all kinds have poured across our 
borders and into our communities. Mexico has played a central role in 
these challenges, including by failing to devote sufficient attention and 
resources to meaningfully stem the tide of unlawful migration and illicit 
drugs. 

Mexican drug trafficking organizations (DTOs) are the world’s leading traf-
fickers of fentanyl, methamphetamine, cocaine, and other illicit drugs, and 
they cultivate, process, and distribute massive quantities of narcotics that 
fuel addiction and violence in communities across the United States. These 
DTOs collaborate and conspire with transnational cartels and other global 
partners to smuggle drugs into the United States, utilizing clandestine air-
strips, maritime routes, tunnels, and overland corridors, and both willing 
and unwilling human couriers. 

The Mexican DTOs have an intolerable alliance with the government of 
Mexico. This alliance endangers the national security of the United States, 
and we must eradicate the influence of these dangerous cartels from the 
bilateral environment. The government of Mexico has afforded safe havens 
for the cartels to engage in the manufacturing and transportation of illicit 
drugs, which collectively have led to the overdose deaths of hundreds of 
thousands of American victims. 

Mexican cartels are also implicated in human trafficking and smuggling 
operations, enabling the illegal migration of millions across our borders. 
These operations are often tied to organized crime, and they create pathways 
for cartel activities to expand into the United States. Furthermore, violent 
criminals originating from Central and South America easily transit into 
and through Mexico, and into the United States, where they cause irreparable 
harm to our citizens. These dangerous criminals are involved in drug-related 
violence, gang activity, and other crimes that endanger the safety of American 
communities. 

Immediate action is required to address the national emergency I declared 
in Proclamation 10886 of January 20, 2025 (Declaring a National Emergency 
at the Southern Border of the United States), and to finally end the public 
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health crisis caused by opioid use and addiction, which will not happen 
unless the compliance and cooperation of the government of Mexico is 
assured. 

I hereby determine and order: 

Section 1. (a) As President of the United States, my highest duty is the 
defense of the country and its citizens. A Nation without borders is not 
a Nation at all. I will not stand by and allow our sovereignty to be eroded, 
our laws to be trampled, our citizens to be endangered, or our borders 
to be disrespected anymore. 

I previously declared a national emergency with respect to the grave threat 
to the United States posed by the influx of illegal aliens and illicit drugs 
into the United States in Proclamation 10886. Pursuant to the NEA, I hereby 
expand the scope of the national emergency declared in that proclamation 
to cover the failure of Mexico to arrest, seize, detain, or otherwise intercept 
DTOs, other drug and human traffickers, criminals at large, and illicit drugs. 
In addition, this failure to act on the part of the government of Mexico 
constitutes an unusual and extraordinary threat, which has its source in 
substantial part outside the United States, to the national security, foreign 
policy, and economy of the United States. I hereby declare and reiterate 
a national emergency under the NEA and IEEPA to deal with that threat. 
This national emergency requires decisive and immediate action, and I have 
decided to impose, consistent with law, ad valorem tariffs on articles that 
are products of Mexico as set forth in this order. In doing so, I invoke 
my authority under section 1702(a)(1)(B) of IEEPA, and specifically find 
that action under other authority to impose tariffs is inadequate to address 
this unusual and extraordinary threat. 

Sec. 2. (a) All articles that are products of Mexico, as defined by the 
Federal Register notice described in section 2(d) of this order (the Federal 
Register notice), shall be, consistent with law, subject to an additional 25 
percent ad valorem rate of duty. Such rate of duty shall apply with respect 
to goods entered for consumption, or withdrawn from warehouse for con-
sumption, on or after 12:01 a.m. eastern time on February 4, 2025, except 
that goods entered for consumption, or withdrawn from warehouse for con-
sumption, after such time that were loaded onto a vessel at the port of 
loading or in transit on the final mode of transport prior to entry into 
the United States before 12:01 a.m. eastern time on February 1, 2025, shall 
not be subject to such additional duty, only if the importer certifies to 
CBP as specified in the Federal Register notice. 

(b) The rates of duty established by this order are in addition to any 
other duties, fees, exactions, or charges applicable to such imported articles. 

(c) Should the government of Mexico retaliate against the United States 
in response to this action through import duties on United States exports 
to Mexico or similar measures, the President may increase or expand in 
scope the duties imposed under this Executive Order to ensure the efficacy 
of this action. 

(d) In order to establish the duty rate on imports of articles that are 
products of Mexico, the Secretary of Homeland Security shall determine 
the modifications necessary to the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United 
States (HTSUS) in order to effectuate this order consistent with law and 
shall make such modifications to the HTSUS through notice in the Federal 
Register. The modifications made to the HTSUS by this notice shall be 
effective with respect to goods entered for consumption, or withdrawn from 
warehouse for consumption, on or after 12:01 a.m. eastern time on February 
4, 2025, except as otherwise noted in subsection 2(a) of this section, and 
shall continue in effect until such actions are expressly reduced, modified, 
or terminated. 

(e) Articles that are products of Mexico, except those that are eligible 
for admission under ‘‘domestic status’’ as defined in 19 CFR 146.43, which 
are subject to the duties imposed by this order and are admitted into a 
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United States foreign trade zone on or after 12:01 a.m. eastern time on 
February 4, 2025, except as otherwise noted in subsection 2(a) of this section, 
must be admitted as ‘‘privileged foreign status’’ as defined in 19 CFR 146.41. 
Such articles will be subject upon entry for consumption to the rates of 
duty related to the classification under the applicable HTSUS subheading 
in effect at the time of admittance into the United States foreign trade 
zone. 

(f) No drawback shall be available with respect to the duties imposed 
pursuant to this order. 

(g) For avoidance of doubt, duty-free de minimis treatment under 19 
U.S.C. 1321 shall not be available for the articles described in subsection 
(a) of this section. 

(h) Any prior Presidential Proclamation, Executive Order, or other presi-
dential directive or guidance related to trade with Mexico that is inconsistent 
with the direction in this order is hereby terminated, suspended, or modified 
to the extent necessary to give full effect to this order. 

(i) The articles described in subsection (a) of this section shall exclude 
those encompassed by 50 U.S.C. 1702(b). 
Sec. 3. (a) The Secretary of Homeland Security shall regularly consult with 
the Secretary of State, the Attorney General, the Assistant to the President 
for National Security Affairs, and the Assistant to the President for Homeland 
Security on the situation at our southern border. The Secretary of Homeland 
Security shall inform the President of any circumstances that, in the opinion 
of the Secretary of Homeland Security, indicate that the government of 
Mexico has taken adequate steps to alleviate the illegal migration and illicit 
drug crisis through cooperative actions. Upon the President’s determination 
of sufficient action to alleviate the crisis, the tariffs described in section 
2 of this order will be removed. 

(b) The Secretary of Homeland Security, in coordination with the Secretary 
of State, the Attorney General, the Assistant to the President for National 
Security Affairs, and the Assistant to the President for Homeland Security 
shall recommend additional action, if necessary, should the government 
of Mexico fail to take adequate steps to alleviate the illegal migration and 
illicit drug crises through cooperative enforcement actions. 
Sec. 4. The Secretary of Homeland Security, in consultation with the Sec-
retary of the Treasury, the Attorney General, and the Secretary of Commerce, 
is hereby authorized to take such actions, including adopting rules and 
regulations, and to employ all powers granted to me by IEEPA as may 
be necessary to implement this order. The Secretary of Homeland Security 
may, consistent with applicable law, redelegate any of these functions within 
the Department of Homeland Security. All agencies shall take all appropriate 
measures within their authority to implement this order. 

Sec. 5. The Secretary of Homeland Security, in coordination with the Sec-
retary of the Treasury, the Attorney General, the Secretary of Commerce, 
the Assistant to the President for National Security Affairs, and the Assistant 
to the President for Homeland Security, is hereby authorized to submit 
recurring and final reports to the Congress on the national emergency under 
IEEPA declared in this order, consistent with section 401(c) of the NEA 
(50 U.S.C. 1641(c)) and section 204(c) of IEEPA (50 U.S.C. 1703(c)). 

Sec. 6. General Provisions. (a) Nothing in this order shall be construed 
to impair or otherwise affect: 

(i) the authority granted by law to an executive department, agency, or 
the head thereof; or 

(ii) the functions of the Director of the Office of Management and Budget 
relating to budgetary, administrative, or legislative proposals. 
(b) This order shall be implemented consistent with applicable law and 

subject to the availability of appropriations. 
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(c) This order is not intended to, and does not, create any right or benefit, 
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity by any party 
against the United States, its departments, agencies, or entities, its officers, 
employees, or agents, or any other person. 

THE WHITE HOUSE, 
February 1, 2025. 

[FR Doc. 2025–02407 

Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

Billing code 3395–F4–P 
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Executive Order 14195 of February 1, 2025 

Imposing Duties To Address the Synthetic Opioid Supply 
Chain in the People’s Republic of China 

By the authority vested in me as President by the Constitution and the 
laws of the United States of America, including the International Emergency 
Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 1701 et seq.) (IEEPA), the National Emer-
gencies Act (50 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.) (NEA), section 604 of the Trade Act 
of 1974, as amended (19 U.S.C. 2483), and section 301 of title 3, United 
States Code, 

I, DONALD J. TRUMP, President of the United States of America, find 
that the sustained influx of synthetic opioids has profound consequences 
on our Nation, including by killing approximately two hundred Americans 
per day, putting a severe strain on our healthcare system, ravaging our 
communities, and destroying our families. Synthetic opioid overdose is the 
leading cause of death for people aged 18 to 45 in the United States. 

During my first term, I took steps to end the direct flow of fentanyl and 
other synthetic opioids from the People’s Republic of China (PRC) to the 
United States. Since then, the Chinese Communist Party (CCP), which exerts 
ultimate control over the government and enterprises of the PRC, has sub-
sidized and otherwise incentivized PRC chemical companies to export 
fentanyl and related precursor chemicals that are used to produce synthetic 
opioids sold illicitly in the United States. 

Furthermore, the PRC provides support to and safe haven for PRC-origin 
transnational criminal organizations (TCOs) that launder the revenues from 
the production, shipment, and sale of illicit synthetic opioids. These PRC- 
origin TCOs coordinate and communicate using PRC social media software 
applications in the conduct of their business. 

Many PRC-based chemical companies also go to great lengths to evade 
law enforcement and hide illicit substances in the flow of legitimate com-
merce. Some of the techniques employed by these PRC-based companies 
to conceal the true contents of the parcels and the identity of the distributors 
include the use of re-shippers in the United States, false invoices, fraudulent 
postage, and deceptive packaging. While more than 500,000 pounds of drugs 
have been seized at the southern border each of the last 3 fiscal years, 
in addition, more than 42,000 pounds of drugs have been seized at the 
northern border each year on average over the last 3 years. Illicit drugs 
kill tens of thousands of Americans each year, including 75,000 deaths 
per year attributed to fentanyl alone. 

The influx of these drugs to our Nation threatens the fabric of our society. 
The PRC plays a central role in this challenge, not merely by failing to 
stem the ultimate source of many illicit drugs distributed in the United 
States, but by actively sustaining and expanding the business of poisoning 
our citizens. 

The flow of contraband drugs like fentanyl to the United States through 
illicit distribution networks has created a national emergency, including 
a public health crisis in the United States, as outlined in the Presidential 
Memorandum of January 20, 2025 (America First Trade Policy), Proclamation 
10886 of January 20, 2025 (Declaring a National Emergency at the Southern 
Border of the United States), and Executive Order 14157 of January 20, 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 15:54 Feb 06, 2025 Jkt 265001 PO 00000 Frm 00001 Fmt 4790 Sfmt 4790 E:\FR\FM\07FEE2.SGM 07FEE2lo
tte

r 
on

 D
S

K
11

X
Q

N
23

P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 F
R

_P
R

E
Z

D
O

C
2



9122 Federal Register / Vol. 90, No. 25 / Friday, February 7, 2025 / Presidential Documents 

2025 (Designating Cartels and Other Organizations as Foreign Terrorist Orga-
nizations and Specially Designated Global Terrorists). 

Despite multiple attempts to resolve this crisis at its root source through 
bilateral dialogue, PRC officials have failed to follow through with the deci-
sive actions needed to stem the flow of precursor chemicals to known 
criminal cartels and shut down the money laundering TCOs. The PRC imple-
ments the most sophisticated domestic surveillance network coupled with 
the most comprehensive domestic law enforcement apparatus in the world. 
The PRC also routinely exerts extraterritorial reach across the globe to threat-
en, harass, and suppress what it views as political dissent. As such, the 
CCP does not lack the capacity to severely blunt the global illicit opioid 
epidemic; it simply is unwilling to do so. 

Immediate action is required to address the national emergency I declared 
and to finally end this emergency, including the public health crisis caused 
by opioid use and addiction, which will not happen until the full compliance 
and cooperation of the PRC government is assured. 

I hereby determine and order: 

Section 1. (a) As President of the United States, my highest duty is the 
defense of the country and its citizens. I will not stand by and allow 
our citizens to be poisoned, our laws to be trampled, our communities 
to be ravaged, or our families to be destroyed. 

I previously declared a national emergency with respect to the grave threat 
to the United States posed by the influx of illegal aliens and drugs into 
the United States in Proclamation 10886. Pursuant to the NEA, I hereby 
expand the scope of the national emergency declared in that proclamation 
to cover the failure of the PRC government to arrest, seize, detain, or otherwise 
intercept chemical precursor suppliers, money launderers, other TCOs, crimi-
nals at large, and drugs. In addition, this failure to act constitutes an unusual 
and extraordinary threat, which has its source in substantial part outside 
the United States, to the national security, foreign policy, and economy 
of the United States. I hereby declare and reiterate a national emergency 
under the NEA and IEEPA to deal with that threat. This national emergency 
requires decisive and immediate action, and I have decided to impose, 
consistent with law, ad valorem tariffs on articles that are products of 
the PRC as set forth in this order. In doing so, I invoke my authority 
under section 1702(a)(1)(B) of IEEPA, and specifically find that action under 
other authority to impose tariffs is inadequate to address this unusual and 
extraordinary threat. 

Sec. 2. (a) All articles that are products of the PRC, as defined by the 
Federal Register notice described in section 2(d) of this order (the Federal 
Register notice), shall be, consistent with law, subject to an additional 10 
percent ad valorem rate of duty. Such rate of duty shall apply with respect 
to goods entered for consumption, or withdrawn from warehouse for con-
sumption, on or after 12:01 a.m. eastern time on February 4, 2025, except 
that goods entered for consumption, or withdrawn from warehouse for con-
sumption, after such time that were loaded onto a vessel at the port of 
loading or in transit on the final mode of transport prior to entry into 
the United States before 12:01 a.m. eastern time on February 1, 2025, shall 
not be subject to such additional duty, only if the importer certifies to 
U.S. Customs and Border Protection within the Department of Homeland 
Security as specified in the Federal Register notice. 

(b) The rates of duty established by this order are in addition to any 
other duties, fees, exactions, or charges applicable to such imported articles. 

(c) Should the PRC retaliate against the United States in response to 
this action through import duties on United States exports to the PRC 
or similar measures, the President may increase or expand in scope the 
duties imposed under this Executive Order to ensure the efficacy of this 
action. 
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(d) In order to establish the duty rate on imports of articles that are 
products of the PRC, the Secretary of Homeland Security shall determine 
the modifications necessary to the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United 
States (HTSUS) in order to effectuate the objectives of this order consistent 
with law and shall make such modifications to the HTSUS through notice 
in the Federal Register. The modifications made to the HTSUS by this 
notice shall be effective with respect to goods entered for consumption, 
or withdrawn from warehouse for consumption, on or after 12:01 a.m. eastern 
time on February 4, 2025, except as otherwise noted in subsection 2(a) 
of this section, and shall continue in effect until such actions are expressly 
reduced, modified, or terminated. 

(e) Articles that are products of the PRC, except those that are eligible 
for admission under ‘‘domestic status’’ as defined in 19 CFR 146.43, which 
are subject to the duties imposed by this order and are admitted into a 
United States foreign trade zone on or after 12:01 a.m. eastern time on 
February 4, 2025, except as otherwise noted in subsection 2(a) of this section, 
must be admitted as ‘‘privileged foreign status’’ as defined in 19 CFR 146.41. 
Such articles will be subject upon entry for consumption to the rates of 
duty related to the classification under the applicable HTSUS subheading 
in effect at the time of admittance into the United States foreign trade 
zone. 

(f) No drawback shall be available with respect to the duties imposed 
pursuant to this order. 

(g) For avoidance of doubt, duty-free de minimis treatment under 19 
U.S.C. 1321 shall not be available for the articles described in subsection 
(a) of this section. 

(h) Any prior Presidential Proclamation, Executive Order, or other presi-
dential directive or guidance related to trade with the PRC that is inconsistent 
with the direction in this order is hereby terminated, suspended, or modified 
to the extent necessary to give full effect to this order. 

(i) The articles described in subsection (a) of this section shall exclude 
those encompassed by 50 U.S.C. 1702(b). 
Sec. 3. (a) The Secretary of Homeland Security shall regularly consult with 
the Secretary of State, the Attorney General, the Assistant to the President 
for National Security Affairs, the Attorney General, and the Assistant to 
the President for Homeland Security on the situation regarding the PRC. 
The Secretary of Homeland Security shall inform the President of any cir-
cumstances that, in the opinion of the Secretary of Homeland Security, 
indicate that the PRC government has taken adequate steps to alleviate 
the opioid crisis through cooperative actions. Upon the President’s determina-
tion of sufficient action to alleviate the crisis, the tariffs described in section 
2 of this order will be removed. 

(b) The Secretary of Homeland Security, in coordination with the Secretary 
of State, the Attorney General, the Assistant to the President for National 
Security Affairs, and the Assistant to the President for Homeland Security, 
shall recommend additional action, if necessary, should the PRC fail to 
take adequate steps to alleviate the illicit drug crisis through cooperative 
enforcement actions. 
Sec. 4. The Secretary of Homeland Security, in consultation with the Sec-
retary of the Treasury, the Attorney General, and the Secretary of Commerce, 
is hereby authorized to take such actions, including adopting rules and 
regulations, and to employ all powers granted to the President by IEEPA 
as may be necessary to implement this order. The Secretary of Homeland 
Security may, consistent with applicable law, redelegate any of these func-
tions within the Department of Homeland Security. All executive departments 
and agencies shall take all appropriate measures within their authority to 
implement this order. 

Sec. 5. The Secretary of Homeland Security, in coordination with the Sec-
retary of the Treasury, the Secretary of Commerce, the Assistant to the 
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President for National Security Affairs, the Attorney General, and the Assist-
ant to the President for Homeland Security, is hereby authorized to submit 
recurring and final reports to the Congress on the national emergency under 
IEEPA declared in this order, consistent with section 401(c) of the NEA 
(50 U.S.C. 1641(c)) and section 204(c) of IEEPA (50 U.S.C. 1703(c)). 

Sec. 6. General Provisions. (a) Nothing in this order shall be construed 
to impair or otherwise affect: 

(i) the authority granted by law to an executive department, agency, or 
the head thereof; or 

(ii) the functions of the Director of the Office of Management and Budget 
relating to budgetary, administrative, or legislative proposals. 
(b) This order shall be implemented consistent with applicable law and 

subject to the availability of appropriations. 

(c) This order is not intended to, and does not, create any right or benefit, 
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity by any party 
against the United States, its departments, agencies, or entities, its officers, 
employees, or agents, or any other person. 

THE WHITE HOUSE, 
February 1, 2025. 

[FR Doc. 2025–02408 

Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

Billing code 3395–F4–P 
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Federal Aviation Administration 

14 CFR Part 71 

[Docket No. FAA–2023–2255; Airspace 
Docket No. 23–ASO–52] 

RIN 2120–AA66 

Amendment of Class E Airspace; 
Marion, NC 

AGENCY: Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA), DOT. 
ACTION: Final rule. 

SUMMARY: This action amends Class E 
airspace extending upward from 700 
feet above the surface for Mission 
Hospital McDowell, Marion, NC, by 
adding airspace for Mission Hospital 
McDowell Heliport. This action also 
corrects the name from McDowell 
Hospital to Mission Hospital McDowell. 
It also removes Point In Space 
Coordinates for McDowell Hospital and 
replaces them with the correct Mission 
Hospital McDowell coordinates. 
Controlled airspace is necessary for the 
safety and management of instrument 
flight rules (IFR) operations at this 
airport. 

DATES: Effective date 0901 UTC, April 
17, 2025. The Director of the Federal 
Register approves this incorporation by 
reference action under 1 CFR part 51, 
subject to the annual revision of FAA 
Order JO 7400.11 and publication of 
conforming amendments. 
ADDRESSES: A copy of the Notice of 
Proposed Rulemaking (NPRM), all 
comments received, this final rule, and 
all background material may be viewed 
online at www.regulations.gov using the 
FAA Docket number. Electronic 
retrieval help and guidelines are 
available on the website. It is available 
24 hours a day, 365 days a year. 

FAA Order JO 7400.11J, Airspace 
Designations, and Reporting Points, as 
well as subsequent amendments, can be 
viewed online at www.faa.gov/air_

traffic/publications/. You may also 
contact the Rules and Regulations 
Group, Office of Policy, Federal 
Aviation Administration, 600 
Independence Avenue SW, Washington, 
DC 20597; telephone: (202) 267–8783. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Rachel Cruz, Operations Support Group, 
Eastern Service Center, Federal Aviation 
Administration, 1701 Columbia Avenue, 
College Park, GA 30337; telephone: 
(404) 305–5571. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Authority for This Rulemaking 

The FAA’s authority to issue rules 
regarding aviation safety is found in 
Title 49 of the United States Code. 
Subtitle I, Section 106 describes the 
authority of the FAA Administrator. 
Subtitle VII, Aviation Programs, 
describes in more detail the scope of the 
agency’s authority. This rulemaking is 
promulgated under the authority 
described in Subtitle VII, Part A, 
Subpart I, Section 40103. Under that 
section, the FAA is charged with 
prescribing regulations to assign the use 
of the airspace necessary to ensure the 
safety of aircraft and the efficient use of 
airspace. This regulation is within the 
scope of that authority, as it amends 
Class E airspace extending upward from 
700 feet above the surface at Mission 
Hospital McDowell, Marion, NC. 

History 

The FAA published a notice of 
proposed rulemaking for Docket No. 
FAA 2023–2255 in the Federal Register 
(89 FR 84305; October 22, 2024), 
proposing to amend Class E airspace 
extending upward from 700 feet above 
the surface for Mission Hospital 
McDowell, Marion, NC. Interested 
parties were invited to participate in 
this rulemaking effort by submitting 
written comments on the proposal to the 
FAA. No comments were received. 

Incorporation by Reference 

Class E airspace designations are 
published in paragraph 6005 of FAA 
Order JO 7400.11, Airspace 
Designations and Reporting Points, 
which is incorporated by reference in 14 
CFR 71.1 on an annual basis. This 
document amends the current version of 
that order, FAA Order JO 7400.11J, 
dated July 31, 2024, and effective 
September 15, 2024. FAA Order JO 
7400.11J is publicly available as listed 

in the ADDRESSES section of this 
document. These amendments will be 
published in the next update to FAA 
Order JO 7400.11. FAA Order JO 
7400.11J lists Class A, B, C, D, and E 
airspace areas, air traffic service routes, 
and reporting points. 

The Rule 
This amendment to 14 CFR part 71 

amends Class E airspace extending 
upward from 700 feet above the surface 
for Mission Hospital McDowell, Marion, 
NC, by relocating the center point of the 
Class E airspace extending upward from 
700 feet above the surface within a 6- 
mile radius of Mission Hospital 
McDowell, providing the controlled 
airspace required to support the new 
RNAV (GPS) standard instrument 
approach procedures for IFR operations 
at the heliport. Additionally, this action 
corrects the name from McDowell 
Hospital to Mission Hospital McDowell. 
It deletes the Point In Space Coordinates 
for McDowell Hospital utilizing Mission 
Hospital McDowell as a reference to 
accommodate Class E airspace 
requirements. Furthermore, this action 
removes the Rutherfordton, NC, Class E 
airspace area exclusion. Controlled 
airspace is necessary for the safety and 
management of instrument flight rules 
(IFR) operations in the area. 

Regulatory Notices and Analyses 
The FAA has determined that this 

regulation only involves an established 
body of technical regulations for which 
frequent and routine amendments are 
necessary to keep them operationally 
current. It, therefore: (1) is not a 
‘‘significant regulatory action’’ under 
Executive Order 12866; (2) is not a 
‘‘significant rule’’ under DOT 
Regulatory Policies and Procedures (44 
FR 11034; February 26, 1979); and (3) 
does not warrant preparation of a 
regulatory evaluation as the anticipated 
impact is so minimal. Since this is a 
routine matter that only affects air traffic 
procedures and air navigation, it is 
certified that this rule, when 
promulgated, does not have a significant 
economic impact on a substantial 
number of small entities under the 
criteria of the Regulatory Flexibility Act. 

Environmental Review 
The FAA has determined that this 

action qualifies for categorical exclusion 
under the National Environmental 
Policy Act in accordance with FAA 
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Order 1050.1F, ‘‘Environmental 
Impacts: Policies and Procedures,’’ 
paragraph 5–6.5.a. This airspace action 
is not expected to cause any potentially 
significant environmental impacts, and 
no extraordinary circumstances exist 
that warrant preparation of an 
environmental assessment. 

Lists of Subjects in 14 CFR Part 71 

Airspace, Incorporation by reference, 
Navigation (air). 

The Amendment 

In consideration of the foregoing, the 
Federal Aviation Administration 
amends 14 CFR part 71 as follows: 

PART 71—DESIGNATION OF CLASS A, 
B, C, D, AND E AIRSPACE AREAS; AIR 
TRAFFIC SERVICE ROUTES AND 
REPORTING POINTS 

■ 1. The authority citation for 14 CFR 
part 71 continues to read as follows: 

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 106(f); 40103, 40113, 
40120; E.O. 10854, 24 FR 9565, 3 CFR, 1959– 
1963 Comp., p.389. 

§ 71.1 [Amended] 

■ 2. The incorporation by reference in 
14 CFR 71.1 of FAA Order JO 7400.11J, 
Airspace Designations and Reporting 
Points, dated July 31, 2024, and 
effective September 15, 2024, is 
amended as follows: 

Paragraph 6005 Class E Airspace Areas 
Extending Upward From 700 Feet or More 
Above the Surface of the Earth. 

* * * * * 

ASO NC E5 Marion, NC [Amended] 

Mission Hospital McDowell, NC 
(Lat. 35°39′45″ N, long. 82°01′46″ W) 

That airspace extending upward from 700 
feet above the surface within a 6-mile radius 
of Mission Hospital McDowell. 

* * * * * 

Issued in College Park, Georgia, on January 
31, 2025. 

Andreese C. Davis, 
Manager, Airspace & Procedures Team South, 
Eastern Service Center, Air Traffic 
Organization. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02323 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4910–13–P 

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND 
SECURITY 

Coast Guard 

33 CFR Part 117 

[Docket No. USCG–2022–0222] 

RIN 1625–AA09 

Drawbridge Operation Regulation; 
Okeechobee Waterway, Stuart, FL 

AGENCY: Coast Guard, DHS. 
ACTION: Temporary interim rule; request 
for comments. 

SUMMARY: The Coast Guard is reinstating 
the temporarily modified operating 
schedule that governs the Florida East 
Coast (FEC) Railroad Bridge, across the 
Okeechobee Waterway (OWW), mile 
7.41, at Stuart, FL. This action allows 
for continuity for drawbridge operations 
while the Coast Guard evaluates 
documentation received for a request to 
permanently change the operating 
regulation. This temporary interim rule 
will be in place until May 31, 2025. 
DATES: This temporary interim rule is 
effective without actual notice from 
February 7, 2025 through 11:59 p.m. on 
May 31, 2025. For purposes of 
enforcement, this temporary interim 
rule will be enforced with actual notice 
from January 29, 2025, until February 7, 
2025. Comments and related material 
must reach the Coast Guard on or before 
March 10, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: To view documents 
mentioned in this preamble as being 
available in the docket, go to https://
www.regulations.gov. Type the docket 
number USCG–2022–0222 in the 
‘‘SEARCH’’ box and click ‘‘SEARCH’’. In 
the Document Type column, select 
‘‘Supporting & Related Material.’’ 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: If 
you have questions on this temporary 
interim rule, call, or email Ms. Jennifer 
Zercher, Bridge Management Specialist, 
Seventh Coast Guard District; telephone 
571–607–5951, email 
Jennifer.N.Zercher@uscg.mil. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

I. Table of Abbreviations 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 
DHS Department of Homeland Security 
FR Federal Register 
OMB Office of Management and Budget 
NPRM Notice of Proposed Rulemaking 

(Advance, Supplemental) 
§ Section 
U.S.C. United States Code 
FL Florida 
NPRM Notice of Proposed Rulemaking 
TIR Temporary Interim Rule 
FECR Florida East Coast Railway 
FEC Florida East Coast 

OWW Okeechobee Waterway 

II. Background Information and 
Regulatory History 

On August 7, 2024, the Coast Guard 
published a Temporary Interim Rule 
(TIR) temporarily modifying the 
drawbridge operation regulation for the 
Florida East Coast (FEC) Railroad 
Bridge, across the Okeechobee 
Waterway (OWW), mile 7.41, at Stuart, 
FL (89 FR 64367). This action was 
necessary to allow for continuity of 
drawbridge operations while the Coast 
Guard evaluates documentation 
received for a request to permanently 
change the drawbridge operation 
regulation. Allowing the drawbridge to 
return to its regular operating schedule 
would not meet the reasonable needs of 
navigation given the increase in railway 
traffic. 

The Coast Guard originally published 
a temporary rule to be effective through 
December 31, 2024. We are now 
reinstating it to May 31, 2025, to 
provide more time to properly evaluate 
documentation associated with a 
permanent drawbridge operation 
regulation change request while 
maintaining continuity in drawbridge 
operations. 

The Seventh Coast Guard District 
Commander has determined the 
extension of the temporary modified 
operating regulation is warranted as the 
temporary drawbridge operation 
regulation has provided predictable and 
reliable drawbridge openings. 

The Coast Guard is extending this 
temporary interim rule without prior 
notice and opportunity to comment 
pursuant to authority under section 4(a) 
of the Administrative Procedure Act 
(APA) (5 U.S.C. 553(b)). This provision 
authorizes an agency to issue a rule 
without prior notice and opportunity to 
comment when the agency for good 
cause finds that those procedures are 
‘‘impracticable, unnecessary, or contrary 
to the public interest.’’ Under 5 U.S.C. 
553(b), the Coast Guard finds that good 
cause exists for not publishing a notice 
of proposed rulemaking (NPRM) with 
respect to this rule because it is 
impracticable. The Coast Guard did not 
receive the marine traffic study in 
sufficient time to properly evaluate the 
data, make a reasonable decision and 
continue with federal rulemaking prior 
to the expiration of the TIR. Allowing 
the drawbridge to return to its regular 
operating schedule would not meet the 
reasonable needs of navigation given the 
increase in railway traffic. The regular 
operating schedule does not provide 
predictable and reliable drawbridge 
openings. 
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Under 5 U.S.C. 553(d)(3), the Coast 
Guard finds that good cause exists for 
making it effective in less than 30 days 
after publication in the Federal 
Register. The last temporary interim 
rule for the modified drawbridge 
operation regulation ended December 
31, 2024, but the evaluation of a 
permanent drawbridge operation 
regulation will be ongoing after that 
date. Delaying the effective date of this 
temporary interim rule would be 
impracticable and contrary to the public 
interest due to the fact that the bridge’s 
regular operating schedule does not 
meet the reasonable needs of navigation 
and does not provide predictable and 
reliable drawbridge openings. 

We are soliciting comments on this 
rulemaking. If the Coast Guard 
determines that changes to the 
temporary interim rule are necessary, 
we will publish a temporary final rule 
or other appropriate document. 

III. Legal Authority and Need for Rule 

The Coast Guard is issuing this rule 
under authority in 33 U.S.C. 499. The 
FEC Railroad Bridge across the OWW, 
mile 7.41, at Stuart, FL, is a single-leaf 
bascule bridge with a six-foot vertical 
clearance at mean high water in the 
closed position. The normal operating 
schedule for the bridge is found in 33 
CFR 117.317(c). 

The regular drawbridge regulation, 33 
CFR 117.317(c), states that the draw is 
normally in the fully open position . . . 
when a train approaches the bridge . . . 
the draw lowers and locks . . . and 
remains down for a period of eight 
minutes or while the approach track 
circuit is occupied. The Coast Guard has 
determined that allowing the 
drawbridge to return to its regular 
operating schedule would not meet the 
reasonable needs of navigation given the 
increase in railway traffic. The regular 
operating schedule does not provide 
predictable and reliable drawbridge 
openings. The Coast Guard needs 
sufficient time to review the marine 
traffic study and other documentation, 
while providing continuity in the 
operation of the drawbridge. 

IV. Discussion of Comments, Changes, 
and the Rule 

This rule reinstates the temporary 
deviation to the drawbridge operation 
regulation for the FEC Railroad Bridge 
described in the temporary interim rule 
at 89 FR 64367 (September 23, 2024) for 
an additional five months until May 31, 
2025. This temporary rule allows 
continuity in drawbridge operations 
providing predictable and reliable 
drawbridge openings. We list the 

temporary drawbridge schedule at the 
end of this rule in the regulatory text. 

If a Final Rule is published before 
May 31, 2025, the TIR will be cancelled. 

V. Regulatory Analyses 
We developed this temporary interim 

rule after considering numerous statutes 
and Executive Orders related to 
rulemaking. Below we summarize our 
analyses based on a number of these 
statutes and Executive Orders. 

A. Regulatory Planning and Review 

Executive Orders 12866 and 13563 
direct agencies to assess the costs and 
benefits of available regulatory 
alternatives and, if regulation is 
necessary, to select regulatory 
approaches that maximize net benefits. 
This rule has not been designated a 
‘‘significant regulatory action,’’ under 
Executive Order 12866, as amended by 
Executive Order 14094 (Modernizing 
Regulatory Review). Accordingly, it has 
not been reviewed by the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB). 

This regulatory action determination 
is based on the fact that little, or no 
commercial or recreational vessel traffic 
will be impacted by this rule. 
Furthermore, the drawbridge, as of date 
of the publication of this rule, cannot 
resume its regular operating schedule as 
it does not meet the reasonable needs of 
navigation given the increase in railway 
traffic. The regular operating schedule 
does not provide predictable and 
reliable drawbridge openings. 

B. Impact on Small Entities 

The Regulatory Flexibility Act of 1980 
(RFA), 5 U.S.C. 601–612, as amended, 
requires federal agencies to consider the 
potential impact of regulations on small 
entities during rulemaking. The term 
‘‘small entities’’ comprises small 
businesses, not-for-profit organizations 
that are independently owned and 
operated and are not dominant in their 
fields, and governmental jurisdictions 
with populations of less than 50,000. 
The Coast Guard certifies under 5 U.S.C. 
605(b) that this rule will not have a 
significant economic impact on a 
substantial number of small entities. 

While some owners or operators of 
vessels intending to transit the bridge 
may be small entities, for the reasons 
stated in section V.A above, this rule 
will not have a significant economic 
impact on any vessel owner or operator. 

Under section 213(a) of the Small 
Business Regulatory Enforcement 
Fairness Act of 1996 (Pub. L. 104–121), 
we want to assist small entities in 
understanding this rule. If the rule 
would affect your small business, 
organization, or governmental 

jurisdiction and you have questions 
concerning its provisions or options for 
compliance, please contact the person 
listed in the FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
CONTACT section. 

Small businesses may send comments 
on the actions of Federal employees 
who enforce, or otherwise determine 
compliance with, Federal regulations to 
the Small Business and Agriculture 
Regulatory Enforcement Ombudsman 
and the Regional Small Business 
Regulatory Fairness Boards. The 
Ombudsman evaluates these actions 
annually and rates each agency’s 
responsiveness to small business. If you 
wish to comment on actions by 
employees of the Coast Guard, call 1– 
888–REG–FAIR (1–888–734–3247). The 
Coast Guard will not retaliate against 
small entities that question or complain 
about this rule or any policy or action 
of the Coast Guard. 

C. Collection of Information 
This rule calls for no new collection 

of information under the Paperwork 
Reduction Act of 1995 (44 U.S.C. 3501– 
3520). 

D. Federalism and Indian Tribal 
Government 

A rule has implications for federalism 
under Executive Order 13132, 
Federalism, if it has a substantial direct 
effect on the States, on the relationship 
between the National Government and 
the States, or on the distribution of 
power and responsibilities among the 
various levels of government. We have 
analyzed this rule under that Order and 
have determined that it is consistent 
with the fundamental federalism 
principles and preemption requirements 
described in Executive Order 13132. 

Also, this rule does not have Tribal 
implications under Executive Order 
13175, Consultation and Coordination 
with Indian Tribal Governments, 
because it does not have a substantial 
direct effect on one or more Indian 
Tribes, on the relationship between the 
Federal Government and Indian Tribes, 
or on the distribution of power and 
responsibilities between the Federal 
Government and Indian Tribes. 

E. Unfunded Mandates Reform Act 
The Unfunded Mandates Reform Act 

of 1995 (2 U.S.C. 1531–1538) requires 
Federal agencies to assess the effects of 
their discretionary regulatory actions. In 
particular, the Act addresses actions 
that may result in the expenditure by a 
State, local, or Tribal government, in the 
aggregate, or by the private sector of 
$100,000,000 (adjusted for inflation) or 
more in any one year. Though this rule 
will not result in such an expenditure, 
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we do discuss the effects of this rule 
elsewhere in this preamble. 

F. Environment 
We have analyzed this rule under 

Department of Homeland Security 
Management Directive 023–01, Rev.1, 
associated implementing instructions, 
and Environmental Planning Policy 
COMDTINST 5090.1 (series) which 
guide the Coast Guard in complying 
with the National Environmental Policy 
Act of 1969 (NEPA) (42 U.S.C. 4321– 
4370f). The Coast Guard has determined 
that this action is one of a category of 
actions that do not individually or 
cumulatively have a significant effect on 
the human environment. This rule 
promulgates the operating regulations or 
procedures for drawbridges and is 
categorically excluded from further 
review, under paragraph L49, of 
Appendix A, Table 1 of DHS Instruction 
Manual 023–01–001–01, Rev. 1. 

Neither a Record of Environmental 
Consideration nor a Memorandum for 
the Record are required for this rule. 

VI. Public Participation and Request for 
Comments 

We view public participation as 
essential to effective rulemaking and 
will consider all comments and material 
received during the comment period. 
Your comment can help shape the 
outcome of this rulemaking. If you 
submit a comment, please include the 
docket number for this rulemaking, 
indicate the specific section of this 
document to which each comment 
applies, and provide a reason for each 
suggestion or recommendation. 

We encourage you to submit 
comments through the Federal Decision- 
Making Portal at https://
www.regulations.gov. To do so, go to 
https://www.regulations.gov, type 
USCG–2022–0222 in the search box and 
click ‘‘Search.’’ Next, look for this 
document in the Search Results column, 
and click on it. Then click on the 
Comment option. If your material 
cannot be submitted using https://
www.regulations.gov, contact the person 
in the FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
CONTACT section of this document for 
alternate instructions. 

To view documents mentioned in this 
rule as being available in the docket, 
find the docket as described in the 
previous paragraph, and then select 
‘‘Supporting & Related Material’’ in the 

Document Type column. Public 
comments will also be placed in our 
online docket and can be viewed by 
following instructions on the https://
www.regulations.gov Frequently Asked 
Questions web page. We review all 
comments received, but we will only 
post comments that address the topic of 
the rule. We may choose not to post off- 
topic, inappropriate, or duplicate 
comments that we receive. Additionally, 
if you click on the’’ Dockets’’ tab and 
then the proposed rule, you should see 
a ‘‘Subscribe’’ option for email alerts. 
Selecting this option will enable 
notifications when comments are 
posted, or if/when a final rule is 
published. 

We accept anonymous comments. 
Comments we post to https://
www.regulations.gov will include any 
personal information you have 
provided. For more about privacy and 
submissions in response to this 
document, see DHS’s eRulemaking 
System of Records notice (85 FR 14226, 
March 11, 2020). 

List of Subjects in 33 CFR Part 117 
Bridges. 
For the reasons discussed in the 

preamble, the Coast Guard amends 33 
CFR part 117 as follows: 

PART 117—DRAWBRIDGE 
OPERATION REGULATIONS 

■ 1. The authority citation for part 117 
continues to read as follows: 

Authority: 33 U.S.C. 499; 33 CFR 1.05–1; 
Department of Homeland Security Delegation 
No. 00170.1. Revision No. 01.3 

■ 2. Section 117.317 is amended by 
staying paragraph (c) and adding 
paragraph (k). 

The addition reads as follows: 

§ 117.317 Okeechobee Waterway. 
* * * * * 

(k) Florida East Coast Railroad (FEC) 
Bridge, mile 7.41, at Stuart. The draw 
shall operate as follows: 

(1) The drawbridge will be 
maintained in the fully open- 
tonavigation position, except during 
periods when it is closed for the passage 
of train traffic, to conduct inspections, 
and to perform maintenance and repairs 
authorized by the Coast Guard. 

(2) The drawbridge will not be closed 
for more than 50 consecutive minutes in 
any given hour during daytime 

operations (6 a.m. to 8 p.m.) and for 
more than 7 total hours during daytime 
operations (6 a.m. to 8 p.m.). 

(3) Notwithstanding paragraph (k)(1), 
the drawbridge will open and remain 
open to navigation for a fixed 10-minute 
period at the top of each hour from 6 
a.m. to 8 p.m. 

(4) From 8:01 p.m. until 5:59 a.m. 
daily, the drawbridge will remain in the 
fully open-to-navigation position, 
except during periods when it is closed 
for the passage of train traffic, to 
conduct inspections, and to perform 
maintenance and repairs authorized by 
the Coast Guard. The drawbridge will 
not be closed more than 60 consecutive 
minutes. 

(5) If a train is in the track circuit at 
the start of a fixed opening period, the 
opening may be delayed up to, but not 
more than, five minutes. Once the train 
has cleared the circuit, the bridge must 
open immediately for navigation to 
begin the fixed opening period. 

(6) The drawbridge will be tended 
from 6 a.m. to 8 p.m., daily. The bridge 
tender will monitor VHF–FM channels 
9 and 16 and will provide estimated 
times of drawbridge openings and 
closures, or any operational information 
requested. Operational information will 
be provided 24 hours a day by 
telephone at (772) 403–1005. 

(7) The drawbridge owner will 
maintain a mobile application. The 
drawbridge owner will publish 
drawbridge opening times, and the 
drawbridge owner will provide timely 
updates to schedules, including but not 
limited to, impacts due to emergency 
circumstances, inspections, 
maintenance, and repairs authorized by 
the Coast Guard. 

(8) Signs will be posted and visible to 
marine traffic, displaying VHF radio 
contact information, application 
information, and the telephone number 
for the bridge tender. 

(9) A copy of the drawbridge logbook 
for the previous week will be provided 
to the Seventh Coast Guard District 
Bridge Manager by 4 p.m. each Monday. 

Dated: January 29, 2025. 
Douglas M. Schofield, 
Rear Admiral, U.S. Coast Guard, Commander, 
Coast Guard Seventh District. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02368 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 9110–04–P 
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This section of the FEDERAL REGISTER
contains notices to the public of the proposed
issuance of rules and regulations. The
purpose of these notices is to give interested
persons an opportunity to participate in the
rule making prior to the adoption of the final
rules.

Proposed Rules Federal Register

9129 

Vol. 90, No. 25 

Friday, February 7, 2025 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Federal Aviation Administration 

14 CFR Part 39 

[Docket No. FAA–2025–0022; Project 
Identifier MCAI–2023–00910–T] 

RIN 2120–AA64 

Airworthiness Directives; Embraer S.A. 
(Type Certificate Previously Held by 
Yaborã Indústria Aeronáutica S.A.; 
Embraer S.A.) Airplanes 

AGENCY: Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA), DOT. 
ACTION: Notice of proposed rulemaking 
(NPRM). 

SUMMARY: The FAA proposes to 
supersede Airworthiness Directive (AD) 
2020–12–12, which applies to all 
Embraer S.A. Model ERJ 170 airplanes 
and Model ERJ 190–100 STD, –100 LR, 
–100 ECJ, –100 IGW, –200 STD, –200 
LR, and –200 IGW airplanes. AD 2020– 
12–12 requires repetitive detailed 
inspections for cracking of the engine 
inboard and outboard engine pylon 
lower link lugs, and repair if necessary. 
Since the FAA issued AD 2020–12–12, 
it was determined that certain 
compliance times must be reduced. This 
proposed AD would continue to require 
the actions in AD 2020–12–12, with 
revised compliance times, as specified 
in an Agência Nacional de Aviação Civil 
(ANAC) AD, which is proposed for 
incorporation by reference (IBR). The 
FAA is proposing this AD to address the 
unsafe condition on these products. 
DATES: The FAA must receive comments 
on this proposed AD by March 24, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: You may send comments, 
using the procedures found in 14 CFR 
11.43 and 11.45, by any of the following 
methods: 

• Federal eRulemaking Portal: Go to 
regulations.gov. Follow the instructions 
for submitting comments. 

• Fax: 202–493–2251. 
• Mail: U.S. Department of 

Transportation, Docket Operations, M– 
30, West Building Ground Floor, Room 

W12–140, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE, 
Washington, DC 20590. 

• Hand Delivery: Deliver to Mail 
address above between 9 a.m. and 5 
p.m., Monday through Friday, except 
Federal holidays. 

AD Docket: You may examine the AD 
docket at regulations.gov under Docket 
No. FAA–2025–0022; or in person at 
Docket Operations between 9 a.m. and 
5 p.m., Monday through Friday, except 
Federal holidays. The AD docket 
contains this NPRM, the mandatory 
continuing airworthiness information 
(MCAI), any comments received, and 
other information. The street address for 
Docket Operations is listed above. 

Material Incorporated by Reference: 
• For the ANAC material identified in 

this proposed AD, contact National Civil 
Aviation Agency (ANAC), Aeronautical 
Products Certification Branch (GGCP), 
Rua Dr. Orlando Feirabend Filho, 230— 
Centro Empresarial Aquarius—Torre 
B—Andares 14 a 18, Parque Residencial 
Aquarius, CEP 12.246–190—São José 
dos Campos—SP, Brazil; telephone 55 
(12) 3203–6600; email pac@anac.gov.br; 
website anac.gov.br/en/. You may find 
this material on the ANAC website at 
sistemas.anac.gov.br/certificacao/DA/ 
DAE.asp. It is also available at 
regulations.gov under Docket No. FAA– 
2025–0022. 

• You may view this material at the 
FAA, Airworthiness Products Section, 
Operational Safety Branch, 2200 South 
216th St., Des Moines, WA. For 
information on the availability of this 
material at the FAA, call 206–231–3195. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Krista Greer, Aviation Safety Engineer, 
FAA, 2200 South 216th Street, Des 
Moines, WA 98198; phone: 206–231– 
3221; email: krista.greer@faa.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Comments Invited 

The FAA invites you to send any 
written relevant data, views, or 
arguments about this proposal. Send 
your comments to an address listed 
under ADDRESSES. Include ‘‘Docket No. 
FAA–2025–0022; Project Identifier 
MCAI–2023–00910–T’’ at the beginning 
of your comments. The most helpful 
comments reference a specific portion of 
the proposal, explain the reason for any 
recommended change, and include 
supporting data. The FAA will consider 
all comments received by the closing 

date and may amend this proposal 
because of those comments. 

Except for Confidential Business 
Information (CBI) as described in the 
following paragraph, and other 
information as described in 14 CFR 
11.35, the FAA will post all comments 
received, without change, to 
regulations.gov, including any personal 
information you provide. The agency 
will also post a report summarizing each 
substantive verbal contact received 
about this NPRM. 

Confidential Business Information 
CBI is commercial or financial 

information that is both customarily and 
actually treated as private by its owner. 
Under the Freedom of Information Act 
(FOIA) (5 U.S.C. 552), CBI is exempt 
from public disclosure. If your 
comments responsive to this NPRM 
contain commercial or financial 
information that is customarily treated 
as private, that you actually treat as 
private, and that is relevant or 
responsive to this NPRM, it is important 
that you clearly designate the submitted 
comments as CBI. Please mark each 
page of your submission containing CBI 
as ‘‘PROPIN.’’ The FAA will treat such 
marked submissions as confidential 
under the FOIA, and they will not be 
placed in the public docket of this 
NPRM. Submissions containing CBI 
should be sent to Krista Greer, Aviation 
Safety Engineer, FAA, 2200 South 216th 
Street, Des Moines, WA 98198; phone: 
206–231–3221; email: krista.greer@
faa.gov. Any commentary that the FAA 
receives which is not specifically 
designated as CBI will be placed in the 
public docket for this rulemaking. 

Background 
The FAA issued AD 2020–12–12, 

Amendment 39–19921 (85 FR 41175, 
July 9, 2020) (AD 2020–12–12), for all 
Embraer S.A. Model ERJ 170–100 LR, 
–100 STD, –100 SE, and –100 SU 
airplanes; Model ERJ 170–200 LR, –200 
SU, –200 STD, and –200 LL airplanes; 
and Model ERJ 190–100 STD, –100 LR, 
–100 ECJ, –100 IGW, –200 STD, –200 
LR, and –200 IGW airplanes. AD 2020– 
12–12 was prompted by an MCAI 
originated by ANAC, which is the 
aviation authority for Brazil. ANAC 
issued AD 2020–01–02, effective 
January 28, 2020, to correct an unsafe 
condition. 

AD 2020–12–12 requires repetitive 
detailed inspections for cracking of the 
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engine inboard and outboard engine 
pylon lower link lugs, and repair if 
necessary. The FAA issued AD 2020– 
12–12 to address cracking of the engine 
pylon lower link lugs, which could 
cause the loss of engine pylon integrity, 
and could result in engine separation 
from the wing, loss of airplane 
controllability, and possible injury to 
persons on the ground. 

Actions Since AD 2020–01–02 Was 
Issued 

Since the FAA issued AD 2020–12– 
12, ANAC superseded AD 2020–01–02, 
effective January 28, 2020, and issued 
ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3, effective 
October 17, 2024; corrected October 15, 
2024 (AD 2020–01–02R3) (also referred 
to as the MCAI), to correct an unsafe 
condition for certain Embraer S.A. 
Model ERJ 170–100 LR, –100 SE, –100 
STD, and –100 SU airplanes; and Model 
ERJ 170–200 LL, –200 LR, –200 STD, 
and –200 SU airplanes; and Model ERJ 
190–100 STD, –100 LR, –100 ECJ, –100 
IGW, –190 SR, –200 STD, –200 LR, and 
–200 IGW airplanes. Model ERJ 190–100 
SR airplanes are not certified by the 
FAA and are not included on the U.S. 
type certificate data sheet; therefore, this 
proposed AD does not include those 
airplanes in the applicability. 

The MCAI states that optional 
terminating actions to the repetitive 
inspections have been included. ANAC 
AD 2020–01–02R2, effective July 26, 
2023, stated the compliance intervals 
were reduced. 

The FAA is proposing this AD to 
address cracks on the left-hand (LH) and 
right-hand (RH) sides of engine pylon 
inboard lower link lugs, which could 
cause the loss of engine pylon integrity. 
The loss of integrity of the engine pylon 
could result in engine separation from 
the wing affecting the airplane 
controllability, causing injury to persons 
on ground. You may examine the MCAI 
in the AD docket at regulations.gov 
under Docket No. FAA–2025–0022. 

Explanation of Retained Requirements 
Although this proposed AD does not 

explicitly restate the requirements of AD 
2020–12–12, this proposed AD would 
retain all of the requirements of AD 

2020–12–12, at revised compliance 
times. Those requirements are 
referenced in ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3, 
which, in turn, is referenced in 
paragraph (g) of this proposed AD. 

Material Incorporated by Reference 
Under 1 CFR Part 51 

ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3 specifies 
procedures for repetitive detailed 
inspections, special detailed 
inspections, and repair, as applicable, of 
the LH and RH engine inboard and 
outboard pylon lower link lugs. ANAC 
AD 2020–01–02R3 also includes an 
optional terminating action for the 
repetitive inspections, which consists of 
revising the maintenance or inspection 
program, as applicable, to incorporate 
airworthiness limitations for pylon 
lower link fittings. This material is 
reasonably available because the 
interested parties have access to it 
through their normal course of business 
or by the means identified in the 
ADDRESSES section. 

FAA’s Determination 
This product has been approved by 

the aviation authority of another 
country and is approved for operation in 
the United States. Pursuant to the FAA’s 
bilateral agreement with this State of 
Design Authority, it has notified the 
FAA of the unsafe condition described 
in the MCAI referenced above. The FAA 
is issuing this NPRM after determining 
that the unsafe condition described 
previously is likely to exist or develop 
in other products of the same type 
design. 

Proposed AD Requirements in This 
NPRM 

This proposed AD would retain all 
requirements of AD 2020–12–12, at 
revised compliance times. This 
proposed AD would require 
accomplishing the actions specified in 
ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3 described 
previously. 

This proposed AD would allow 
optional terminating action to revise 
certain operator maintenance 
documents to include new actions (e.g., 
inspections) and Critical Design 
Configuration Control Limitations 

(CDCCLs). Compliance with these 
actions and CDCCLs is required by 14 
CFR 91.403(c). For airplanes that have 
been previously modified, altered, or 
repaired in the areas addressed by this 
proposed AD, the operator may not be 
able to accomplish the actions described 
in the revisions. In this situation, to 
comply with 14 CFR 91.403(c), the 
operator must request approval for an 
alternative method of compliance 
(AMOC) according to paragraph (k)(1) of 
this proposed AD. 

Explanation of Change to 
Manufacturer’s Name Specified in This 
NPRM 

The FAA has revised references to the 
manufacturer’s name specified 
throughout this NPRM to identify the 
manufacturer name as published in the 
most recent type certificate data sheet 
for the affected models. 

Explanation of Required Compliance 
Information 

In the FAA’s ongoing efforts to 
improve the efficiency of the AD 
process, the FAA developed a process to 
use some civil aviation authority (CAA) 
ADs as the primary source of 
information for compliance with 
requirements for corresponding FAA 
ADs. The FAA has been coordinating 
this process with manufacturers and 
CAAs. As a result, the FAA proposes to 
incorporate ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3 
by reference in the FAA final rule. This 
proposed AD would, therefore, require 
compliance with ANAC AD 2020–01– 
02R3 in its entirety through that 
incorporation, except for any differences 
identified as exceptions in the 
regulatory text of this proposed AD. 
Service information required by ANAC 
AD 2020–01–02R3 for compliance will 
be available at regulations.gov under 
Docket No. FAA–2025–0022 after the 
FAA final rule is published. 

Costs of Compliance 

The FAA estimates that this AD, if 
adopted as proposed, would affect 659 
airplanes of U.S. registry. The FAA 
estimates the following costs to comply 
with this proposed AD: 

ESTIMATED COSTS FOR REQUIRED ACTIONS 

Labor cost Parts cost Cost per 
product 

Cost on U.S. 
operators 

Inspections .......................................................... 3 work-hour × $85 per hour = $255 ................... $0 $255 $168,045 

The FAA has received no definitive 
data that would enable the agency to 
provide cost estimates for the on- 

condition repair specified in this 
proposed AD. 

For the optional terminating action, 
the FAA has determined that revising 
the existing maintenance or inspection 
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program takes an average of 90 work- 
hours per operator, although the agency 
recognizes that this number may vary 
from operator to operator. Since 
operators incorporate maintenance or 
inspection program changes for their 
affected fleet(s), the FAA has 
determined that a per-operator estimate 
is more accurate than a per-airplane 
estimate. Therefore, if the optional 
terminating action is done, the agency 
estimates the average total cost per 
operator would be $7,650 (90 work- 
hours × $85 per work-hour). 

Authority for This Rulemaking 

Title 49 of the United States Code 
specifies the FAA’s authority to issue 
rules on aviation safety. Subtitle I, 
section 106, describes the authority of 
the FAA Administrator. Subtitle VII: 
Aviation Programs, describes in more 
detail the scope of the Agency’s 
authority. 

The FAA is issuing this rulemaking 
under the authority described in 
Subtitle VII, Part A, Subpart III, Section 
44701: General requirements. Under 
that section, Congress charges the FAA 
with promoting safe flight of civil 
aircraft in air commerce by prescribing 
regulations for practices, methods, and 
procedures the Administrator finds 
necessary for safety in air commerce. 
This regulation is within the scope of 
that authority because it addresses an 
unsafe condition that is likely to exist or 
develop on products identified in this 
rulemaking action. 

Regulatory Findings 

The FAA determined that this 
proposed AD would not have federalism 
implications under Executive Order 
13132. This proposed AD would not 
have a substantial direct effect on the 
States, on the relationship between the 
national Government and the States, or 
on the distribution of power and 
responsibilities among the various 
levels of government. 

For the reasons discussed above, I 
certify this proposed regulation: 

(1) Is not a ‘‘significant regulatory 
action’’ under Executive Order 12866, 

(2) Would not affect intrastate 
aviation in Alaska, and 

(3) Would not have a significant 
economic impact, positive or negative, 
on a substantial number of small entities 
under the criteria of the Regulatory 
Flexibility Act. 

List of Subjects in 14 CFR Part 39 

Air transportation, Aircraft, Aviation 
safety, Incorporation by reference, 
Safety. 

The Proposed Amendment 

Accordingly, under the authority 
delegated to me by the Administrator, 
the FAA proposes to amend 14 CFR part 
39 as follows: 

PART 39—AIRWORTHINESS 
DIRECTIVES 

■ 1. The authority citation for part 39 
continues to read as follows: 

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 106(g), 40113, 44701. 

§ 39.13 [Amended] 

■ 2. The FAA amends § 39.13 by: 
■ a. Removing Airworthiness Directive 
(AD) 2020–12–12, Amendment 39– 
19921 (85 FR 41175, July 9, 2020); and 
■ b. Adding the following new AD: 
Embraer S.A. (Type Certificate Previously 

Held by Yaborã Indústria Aeronáutica 
S.A.; Embraer S.A.): Docket No. FAA– 
2025–0022; Project Identifier MCAI– 
2023–00910–T. 

(a) Comments Due Date 

The FAA must receive comments on this 
airworthiness directive (AD) by March 24, 
2025. 

(b) Affected ADs 

This AD replaces AD 2020–12–12, 
Amendment 39–19921 (85 FR 41175, July 9, 
2020). 

(c) Applicability 

This AD applies to Embraer S.A. (Type 
Certificate Previously Held by Yaborã 
Indústria Aeronáutica S.A.; Embraer S.A.) 
airplanes, certificated in any category, 
identified in paragraphs (c)(1) and (2) of this 
AD, as identified in Agência Nacional de 
Aviação Civil (ANAC) AD 2020–01–02R3, 
effective October 17, 2024; corrected October 
15, 2024 (ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3). 

(1) Model ERJ 170–100 LR, –100 STD, –100 
SE, –100 SU, –200 LR, –200 SU, –200 STD, 
and –200 LL airplanes. 

(2) Model ERJ 190–100 STD, –100 LR, –100 
ECJ, –100 IGW, –200 STD, –200 LR, and –200 
IGW airplanes. 

(d) Subject 

Air Transport Association (ATA) of 
America Code 54, Nacelles/Pylons. 

(e) Unsafe Condition 

This AD was prompted by reports of 
cracking on the left-hand (LH) and right-hand 
(RH) sides of engine pylon inboard lower link 
lugs, and by the determination that certain 
compliance times in AD 2020–12–12 must be 
reduced and the inboard lower link lugs must 
be replaced with new titanium lugs on 
certain airplanes. The FAA is issuing this AD 
to address cracks on the LH and RH sides of 
engine pylon inboard lower link lugs. The 
unsafe condition, if not addressed, could 
cause the loss of engine pylon integrity, 
which could result in engine separation from 
the wing, loss of airplane controllability, and 
possible injury to persons on ground. 

(f) Compliance 

Comply with this AD within the 
compliance times specified, unless already 
done. 

(g) Requirements 

Except as specified in paragraphs (h) and 
(i) of this AD: Comply with all required 
actions and compliance times specified in, 
and in accordance with, ANAC AD 2020–01– 
02R3. 

(h) Exceptions to ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3 

(1) Where ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3 refers 
to ‘‘28 January 2020, the effective date of 
original revision of this AD,’’ this AD 
requires using August 13, 2020 (the effective 
date of AD 2020–12–12). 

(2) Where ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3 refers 
to ‘‘the effective date of the revision 1 of this 
AD,’’ this AD requires using the effective date 
of this AD. 

(3) Where ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3 refers 
to its effective date, this AD requires using 
the effective date of this AD. 

(4) Where the ‘‘Threshold’’ column of the 
tables in ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3 refer to 
‘‘FC’’ and ‘‘FH,’’ for this AD, those flight 
cycles and flight hours are since the date of 
issuance of the original airworthiness 
certificate or the original export certificate of 
airworthiness, except for the compliance 
times that correspond to flagnote ‘‘[5]’’ of the 
table following paragraph (b)(1) of ANAC AD 
2020–01–02R3 and flagnote ‘‘[3]’’ of the table 
following paragraph (b)(2) of ANAC AD 
2020–01–02R3. 

(5) Where the tables in ANAC AD 2020– 
01–02R3 refer to ‘‘ou,’’ this AD requires 
replacing that text with ‘‘or.’’ 

(6) Where the last column of the table 
following paragraph (c)(2) of ANAC AD 
2020–01–02R3 refers to ‘‘Intervalo,’’ this AD 
requires replacing that text with ‘‘Interval.’’ 

(7) Where ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3 
requires contacting ‘‘ANAC and Embraer . . . 
to approve an adequate repair,’’ for this AD, 
before further flight obtain repair instructions 
using the procedures specified in paragraph 
(k)(2) of this AD and do the repair. 

(8) This AD does not adopt paragraph (g)(3) 
of ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3. 

(i) No Reporting Requirement 

Although ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3 
specifies to submit an inspection report after 
each inspection, this AD does not include 
that requirement. 

(j) Provisions for Alternative Actions, 
Critical Design Configuration Control 
Limitations (CDCCLs), and Intervals 

After the existing maintenance or 
inspection program has been revised as 
specified in paragraph (g) of this AD, no 
alternative actions (e.g., inspections), 
CDCCLs, and intervals are allowed unless 
they are approved as specified in paragraph 
(d) of ANAC AD 2020–01–02R3. 

(k) Additional AD Provisions 

The following provisions also apply to this 
AD: 

(1) Alternative Methods of Compliance 
(AMOCs): The Manager, AIR–520, Continued 
Operational Safety Branch, FAA, has the 
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authority to approve AMOCs for this AD, if 
requested using the procedures found in 14 
CFR 39.19. In accordance with 14 CFR 39.19, 
send your request to your principal inspector 
or responsible Flight Standards Office, as 
appropriate. If sending information directly 
to the manager of AIR–520, Continued 
Operational Safety Branch, mail it to the 
address identified in paragraph (l) of this AD. 
Information may be emailed to: AMOC@
faa.gov. 

(i) Before using any approved AMOC, 
notify your appropriate principal inspector, 
or lacking a principal inspector, the manager 
of the responsible Flight Standards Office. 

(ii) AMOCs approved previously for AD 
2020–12–12 are approved as AMOCs for the 
corresponding provisions of ANAC AD 2020– 
01–02R3 that are required by paragraph (g) of 
this AD. 

(2) Contacting the Manufacturer: For any 
requirement in this AD to obtain instructions 
from a manufacturer, the instructions must 
be accomplished using a method approved 
by the Manager, AIR–520, Continued 
Operational Safety Branch, FAA; or ANAC; 
or ANAC’s authorized Designee. If approved 

by the ANAC Designee, the approval must 
include the Designee’s authorized signature. 

(l) Additional Information 
For more information about this AD, 

contact Krista Greer, Aviation Safety 
Engineer, FAA, 2200 South 216th Street, Des 
Moines, WA 98198; phone: 206–231–3221; 
email: krista.greer@faa.gov. 

(m) Material Incorporated by Reference 
(1) The Director of the Federal Register 

approved the incorporation by reference 
(IBR) of the material listed in this paragraph 
under 5 U.S.C. 552(a) and 1 CFR part 51. 

(2) You must use this material as 
applicable to do the actions required by this 
AD, unless this AD specifies otherwise. 

(i) Agência Nacional de Aviação Civil 
(ANAC) AD 2020–01–02R3, effective October 
17, 2024; corrected October 15, 2024. 

(ii) [Reserved] 
(3) For ANAC material identified in this 

AD, contact ANAC, Aeronautical Products 
Certification Branch (GGCP), Rua Dr. Orlando 
Feirabend Filho, 230—Centro Empresarial 
Aquarius—Torre B—Andares 14 a 18, Parque 
Residencial Aquarius, CEP 12.246–190—São 

José dos Campos—SP, Brazil; telephone 55 
(12) 3203–6600; email pac@anac.gov.br; 
website anac.gov.br/en/. You may find this 
ANAC AD the ANAC website at 
sistemas.anac.gov.br/certificacao/DA/ 
DAE.asp. 

(4) You may view this material at the FAA, 
Airworthiness Products Section, Operational 
Safety Branch, 2200 South 216th St., Des 
Moines, WA. For information on the 
availability of this material at the FAA, call 
206–231–3195. 

(5) You may view this material at the 
National Archives and Records 
Administration (NARA). For information on 
the availability of this material at NARA, 
visit www.archives.gov/federal-register/cfr/ 
ibr-locations, or email fr.inspection@
nara.gov. 

Issued on January 31, 2025. 
Suzanne Masterson, 
Deputy Director, Integrated Certificate 
Management Division, Aircraft Certification 
Service. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02244 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4910–13–P 
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DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Foreign-Trade Zones Board 

[B–4–2025] 

Foreign-Trade Zone (FTZ) 18, 
Notification of Proposed Production 
Activity; Halo Industries, Inc.; 
(Semiconductor Wafers); Santa Clara, 
California 

The City of San Jose Office of 
Economic Development, grantee of FTZ 
18, submitted a notification of proposed 
production activity to the FTZ Board 
(the Board) on behalf of Halo Industries, 
Inc. (Halo) for Halo’s facility in Santa 
Clara, California within FTZ 18. The 
notification conforming to the 
requirements of the Board’s regulations 
(15 CFR 400.22) was received on 
January 28, 2025. 

Pursuant to 15 CFR 400.14(b), FTZ 
production activity would be limited to 
the specific foreign-status material(s)/ 
component(s) and specific finished 
product(s) described in the submitted 
notification (summarized below) and 
subsequently authorized by the Board. 
The benefits that may stem from 
conducting production activity under 
FTZ procedures are explained in the 
background section of the Board’s 
website—accessible via www.trade.gov/ 
ftz. 

The proposed finished products 
include: fully-finished and production- 
ready semiconductor wafers (duty-free). 

The proposed foreign-status 
materials/components include: crude 
silicon carbide ingots and unfinished or 
partially processed semiconductor 
wafers (duty-free). The request indicates 
that certain materials/components are 
subject to duties under section 301 of 
the Trade Act of 1974 (section 301), 
depending on the country of origin. The 
applicable section 301 decisions require 
subject merchandise to be admitted to 
FTZs in privileged foreign status (19 
CFR 146.41). 

Public comment is invited from 
interested parties. Submissions shall be 
addressed to the Board’s Executive 
Secretary and sent to: ftz@trade.gov. The 
closing period for their receipt is March 
19, 2025. 

A copy of the notification will be 
available for public inspection in the 
‘‘Online FTZ Information System’’ 
section of the Board’s website. 

For further information, contact 
Kolade Osho at Kolade.Osho@trade.gov. 

Dated: February 4, 2025. 
Elizabeth Whiteman, 
Executive Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02346 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 3510–DS–P 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Foreign-Trade Zones Board 

[B–5–2025] 

Foreign-Trade Zone (FTZ) 205, 
Notification of Proposed Production 
Activity; Rincon Power, LLC; 
(Contactors, Relays and Switches); 
Carpinteria, California 

Rincon Power, LLC submitted a 
notification of proposed production 
activity to the FTZ Board (the Board) for 
its facility in Carpinteria, California 
within FTZ 205. The notification 
conforming to the requirements of the 
Board’s regulations (15 CFR 400.22) was 
received on January 30, 2025. 

Pursuant to 15 CFR 400.14(b), FTZ 
production activity would be limited to 
the specific foreign-status material(s)/ 
component(s) and specific finished 
product(s) described in the submitted 
notification (summarized below) and 
subsequently authorized by the Board. 
The benefits that may stem from 
conducting production activity under 
FTZ procedures are explained in the 
background section of the Board’s 
website—accessible via www.trade.gov/ 
ftz. 

The proposed finished products 
include: contactors and relays for 
switching power at voltages exceeding 
1,000 volts; contactors and relays for 
switching power at voltages not 
exceeding 1,000 volts; battery 
disconnect rotary isolation switches for 
power at voltages exceeding 1,000 volts; 
current sensors with fluxgate; hardware 
kits including: nuts, washers, lock 
washers for relays contactors and rotary 

isolation switches; wire harnesses for 
relays, contactors and rotary isolation 
switches; mounting brackets for relays, 
contactors and rotary isolation switches; 
and, custom formed gaskets and 
grommet seals, for contactors, relays and 
rotary isolation switches (duty rate 
ranges from duty-free to 2.7%). 

The proposed foreign-status 
materials/components include: custom 
formed o-rings, gaskets and grommet 
seals (made of synthetic rubber, silicone 
rubber, or silicone foam rubber); gasket 
seals (made of polyimide with acrylic 
adhesive); gasket seals, cut or formed 
from polyimide or 
polytetrafluoroethylene sheets; custom 
formed ceramic magnets, Neodymium 
magnets, electromagnetic components 
including, coils, bobbins, flux tubes, 
plungers, top cores, bottom cores, outer 
cores or cans, magnet bridges or holders, 
and shafts; switch sub-assemblies, for 
voltages not exceeding 1,000 volts; 
switch sub-assemblies, for voltages 
exceeding 1,000 volts; micro switches 
for auxiliary power; custom formed 
copper busbars; custom printed circuit 
board assemblies for use in contactors, 
relays, or rotary isolation switches; 
custom plastic molded components in 
the form of housings including tops, 
bottoms, bases, caps and covers; custom 
plastic or ceramic molded components 
in the form of arc chambers including 
envelope tops and bottoms, shaft guides 
or bushings; custom plastic molded 
components for incorporating auxiliary 
micro switches including brackets and 
carriers; custom plastic molded 
components in the form of connector 
housings including shells and plugs; 
custom plastic molded components in 
the form of handles including bezels, 
shrouds, caps, covers, and levers; 
custom formed moveable contact bars of 
copper, silver tin oxide, tungsten, 
tellurium, glidcop, or molybdenum; 
headers, custom formed and brazed 
isolator subassemblies with ceramic and 
metal alloy components including 
glidcop, copper, tellurium, tungsten, 
silver tin oxide, steel, or kovar; custom 
formed actuator components in the form 
of springs, bellows, shafts, slide 
bearings, auxiliary arms, plunger rods, 
and spacers; and, custom machined arc 
chamber isolators of ceramic (duty rate 
ranges from duty-free to 5.8%). The 
request indicates that certain materials/ 
components are subject to duties under 
section 301 of the Trade Act of 1974 
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1 See Low Melt Polyester Staple Fiber from the 
Republic of Korea and Taiwan: Antidumping Duty 
Orders, 83 FR 40752 (August 16, 2018) (Order). 

2 See Low Melt Polyester Staple Fiber from the 
Republic of Korea: Preliminary Results of 
Antidumping Duty Administrative Review; 2022– 
2023, 89 FR 79897 (October 1, 2024) (Preliminary 
Results). 

3 See Memorandum, ‘‘Tolling of Deadlines for 
Antidumping and Countervailing Duty 
Proceedings,’’ dated December 9, 2024. 

4 See Memorandum, ‘‘Issues and Decision 
Memorandum for the Final Results of the 
Antidumping Duty Administrative Review; 2022– 
2023: Low Melt Polyester Staple Fiber from the 
Republic of Korea,’’ dated concurrently with, and 
hereby adopted by, this notice (Issues and Decision 
Memorandum). 

5 See Issues and Decision Memorandum. 
6 See Order. 

(section 301), depending on the country 
of origin. The applicable section 301 
decisions require subject merchandise 
to be admitted to FTZs in privileged 
foreign status (19 CFR 146.41). 

Public comment is invited from 
interested parties. Submissions shall be 
addressed to the Board’s Executive 
Secretary and sent to: ftz@trade.gov. The 
closing period for their receipt is March 
19, 2025. 

A copy of the notification will be 
available for public inspection in the 
‘‘Online FTZ Information System’’ 
section of the Board’s website. 

For further information, contact 
Christopher Wedderburn at 
Chris.Wedderburn@trade.gov. 

Dated: February 4, 2025. 
Elizabeth Whiteman, 
Executive Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02348 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 3510–DS–P 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

International Trade Administration 

[A–580–895] 

Low Melt Polyester Staple Fiber From 
the Republic of Korea: Final Results of 
Antidumping Duty Administrative 
Review; 2022–2023 

AGENCY: Enforcement and Compliance, 
International Trade Administration, 
Department of Commerce. 
SUMMARY: The U.S. Department of 
Commerce (Commerce) determines that 
Toray Advanced Materials Korea, Inc. 
(TAK), the sole producer and exporter 
subject to this administrative review, 
made sales of low melt polyester staple 
fiber (low melt PSF) from the Republic 
of Korea (Korea) in the United States at 
less than normal value (NV) during the 
period of review (POR), August 1, 2022, 
through July 31, 2023. 
DATES: Applicable February 7, 2025. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Andrew Hart, AD/CVD Operations, 
Office II, Enforcement and Compliance, 
International Trade Administration, 
U.S. Department of Commerce, 1401 
Constitution Avenue NW, Washington, 
DC 20230; telephone: (202) 482–1058. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Background 
On October 1, 2024, Commerce 

published in the Federal Register the 
Preliminary Results of 2022–2023 
administrative review of the 
antidumping duty order 1 on low melt 

PSF from Korea and invited interested 
parties to comment.2 On December 9, 
2024, Commerce tolled the deadline to 
issue the final results in this 
administrative review by 90 days.3 
Accordingly, the deadline for these final 
results is now April 29, 2025. For a 
complete description of the events that 
occurred since the Preliminary Results, 
see the Issues and Decision 
Memorandum.4 Commerce conducted 
this administrative review in 
accordance with section 751 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (the Act). 

Scope of the Order 

The merchandise subject to this Order 
is synthetic staple fibers, not carded or 
combed, specifically bi-component 
polyester fibers having a polyester fiber 
component that melts at a lower 
temperature than the other polyester 
fiber component (low melt PSF). For a 
complete description of the scope of the 
Order, see the Issues and Decision 
Memorandum. 

Analysis of Comments Received 

All issues raised in the case and 
rebuttal briefs submitted by parties in 
this administrative review are addressed 
in the Issues and Decision 
Memorandum and are listed in the 
appendix to this notice. The Issues and 
Decision Memorandum is a public 
document and is on file electronically 
via Enforcement and Compliance’s 
Antidumping and Countervailing Duty 
Centralized Electronic Service System 
(ACCESS). ACCESS is available to 
registered users at https://
access.trade.gov. In addition, a complete 
version of the Issues and Decision 
Memorandum can be accessed directly 
at https://access.trade.gov/public/
FRNoticesListLayout.aspx. 

Changes Since the Preliminary Results 

Based on a review of the record and 
comments received from interested 
parties regarding the Preliminary 
Results, and for the reasons explained in 
the Issues and Decision Memorandum, 
Commerce made certain changes to the 
weighted-average dumping margin 

calculations for TAK for the final results 
or review.5 

Final Results of the Administrative 
Review 

As a result of this review, we 
determine that the following estimated 
weighted-average dumping margin 
exists for the period August 1, 2022, 
through July 31, 2023. 

Producer/exporter 

Weighted- 
average 
dumping 
margin 

(percent) 

Toray Advanced Materials 
Korea, Inc ................................ 3.14 

Disclosure 

Commerce intends to disclose the 
calculations performed in connection 
with these final results of review to 
interested parties within five days after 
public announcement of the final results 
or, if there is no public announcement, 
within five days of the date of 
publication of the notice of final results 
in the Federal Register, in accordance 
with 19 CFR 351.224(b). 

Assessment Rates 

Pursuant to section 751(a)(2)(C) of the 
Act, and 19 CFR 351.212(b)(1), 
Commerce will determine, and U.S. 
Customs and Border Protection (CBP) 
shall assess, antidumping duties on all 
appropriate entries of subject 
merchandise in accordance with the 
final results of this review. 

Pursuant to 19 CFR 351.212(b)(1), we 
calculated importer-specific ad valorem 
duty assessment rates based on the ratio 
of the total amount of dumping 
calculated for each importer’s examined 
sales and the total entered value of those 
sales. Where either the respondent’s 
weighted-average dumping margin is 
zero or de minimis, within the meaning 
of 19 CFR 351.106(c)(1), or an importer- 
specific rate is zero or de minimis, we 
will instruct CBP to liquidate the 
appropriate entries without regard to 
antidumping duties. 

For entries of subject merchandise 
during the POR produced by TAK for 
which it did not know that the 
merchandise it sold to the intermediary 
(e.g., a reseller, trading company, or 
exporter) was destined for the United 
States, we will instruct CBP to liquidate 
unreviewed entries at the all-others rate 
established in the less-than-fair-value 
(LTFV) investigation of 16.27 percent ad 
valorem,6 if there is no rate for the 
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7 See Order, 83 FR at 40753. 

intermediate company(ies) involved in 
the transaction. 

Commerce intends to issue 
assessment instructions to CBP no 
earlier than 35 days after the date of 
publication of the final results of this 
review in the Federal Register. If a 
timely summons is filed at the U.S. 
Court of International Trade, the 
assessment instructions will direct CBP 
not to liquidate relevant entries until the 
time for parties to file a request for a 
statutory injunction has expired (i.e., 
within 90 days of publication). 

Cash Deposit Requirements 

Upon publication of this notice in the 
Federal Register, the following cash 
deposit requirements will be effective 
for all shipments of the subject 
merchandise entered, or withdrawn 
from warehouse, for consumption on or 
after the date of publication, as provided 
by section 751(a)(2)(C) of the Act: (1) the 
cash deposit rate for the company 
subject to this review will be equal to 
the weighted-average dumping margin 
established in the final results of the 
review; (2) for merchandise exported by 
producers or exporters not covered in 
this review but covered in a prior 
completed segment of the proceeding, 
the cash deposit rate will continue to be 
the company-specific rate published in 
the completed segment for the most 
recent period; (3) if the exporter is not 
a firm covered in this review, a prior 
review, or the original LTFV 
investigation, but the producer has been 
covered in a prior completed segment of 
this proceeding, then the cash deposit 
rate will be the rate established in the 
completed segment for the most recent 
period for the producer of the 
merchandise; and (4) the cash deposit 
rate for all other manufacturers or 
exporters will continue to be 16.27 
percent, the all-others rate established 
in the LTFV investigation for this 
proceeding.7 These deposit 
requirements, when imposed, shall 
remain in effect until further notice. 

Notification to Importers 

This notice serves as a final reminder 
to importers of their responsibility 
under 19 CFR 351.402(f)(2) to file a 
certificate regarding the reimbursement 
of antidumping duties prior to 
liquidation of the relevant entries 
during this review period. Failure to 
comply with this requirement could 
result in Commerce’s presumption that 
reimbursement of antidumping duties 
occurred and the subsequent assessment 
of doubled antidumping duties. 

Administrative Protective Order 
This notice serves as the only 

reminder to parties subject to an 
administrative protective order (APO) of 
their responsibility concerning the 
disposition of proprietary information 
disclosed under APO in accordance 
with 19 CFR 351.305(a)(3), which 
continues to govern business 
proprietary information in this segment 
of the proceeding. Timely written 
notification of return/destruction of 
APO materials or conversion to judicial 
protective order is hereby requested. 
Failure to comply with the regulations 
and terms of an APO is a violation 
subject to sanction. 

Notification to Interested Parties 
We are issuing and publishing this 

notice in accordance with sections 
751(a)(1) and 777(i) of the Act, and 19 
CFR 351.221(b)(5). 

Dated: January 30, 2025. 
Abdelali Elouaradia, 
Acting Assistant Secretary for Enforcement 
and Compliance. 

Appendix 

List of Topics Discussed in the Issues and 
Decision Memorandum 
I. Summary 
II. Background 
III. Scope of the Order 
IV. Changes Since the Preliminary Results 
V. Discussion of the Issues 

Comment 1: Whether Commerce Should 
Use the Total Cost of Manufacturing 
Figures as Reported by TAK in the 
Calculation of the Dumping Margin 

Comment 2: Whether Commerce Should 
Adjust the Home Market Indirect Selling 
Expense Variable to Accurately Reflect 
the Correct Currencies 

Comment 3: Whether Commerce Should 
Adjust the U.S. Sales Universe to 
Capture All Relevant Sales in this 
Proceeding 

Comment 4: Whether Commerce Should 
Calculate Normal Value Net of the 
Reported Billing Adjustment for One 
Home Market Sale 

VI. Recommendation 

[FR Doc. 2025–02350 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 3510–DS–P 

COMMITTEE FOR PURCHASE FROM 
PEOPLE WHO ARE BLIND OR 
SEVERELY DISABLED 

Procurement List; Deletions 

AGENCY: Committee for Purchase From 
People Who Are Blind or Severely 
Disabled. 
ACTION: Deletions from the Procurement 
List. 

SUMMARY: This action deletes product(s) 
from the Procurement List that were 

furnished by nonprofit agencies 
employing persons who are blind or 
have other severe disabilities. 
DATES: Date deleted from the 
Procurement List: March 9, 2025 
ADDRESSES: Committee for Purchase 
From People Who Are Blind or Severely 
Disabled, 355 E Street SW, Suite 325, 
Washington, DC 20024. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Michael R. Jurkowski, Telephone: (703) 
489–1322, or email CMTEFedReg@
AbilityOne.gov. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Deletions 
On 12/27/2024 (89 FR 106446), the 

Committee for Purchase From People 
Who Are Blind or Severely Disabled 
published notice of proposed deletions 
from the Procurement List. This notice 
is published pursuant to 41 U.S.C. 8503 
(a)(2) and 41 CFR 51–2.3. 

After consideration of the relevant 
matter presented, the Committee has 
determined that the product(s) listed 
below are no longer suitable for 
procurement by the Federal Government 
under 41 U.S.C. 8501–8506 and 41 CFR 
51–2.4. 

Regulatory Flexibility Act Certification 
I certify that the following action will 

not have a significant impact on a 
substantial number of small entities. 
The major factors considered for this 
certification were: 

1. The action will not result in 
additional reporting, recordkeeping or 
other compliance requirements for small 
entities. 

2. The action may result in 
authorizing small entities to furnish the 
product(s) to the Government. 

3. There are no known regulatory 
alternatives which would accomplish 
the objectives of the Javits-Wagner- 
O’Day Act (41 U.S.C. 8501–8506) in 
connection with the product(s) deleted 
from the Procurement List. 

End of Certification 
Accordingly, the following product(s) 

are deleted from the Procurement List: 

Product(s) 

NSN(s)—Product Name(s): 
6645–01–491–9825—Clock, Wall, 

Mahogany, Octagon, 12″ Quartz 
6645–01–491–9835—Clock, Wall, 

Mahogany Octagon, Custom Logo 12″ 
Quartz 

6645–01–557–4607—Clock, Wall, Self-Set, 
Custom Logo, Mahogany, Octagon, 12″ 
Diameter Frame 

6645–01–557–4608—Clock, Wall, Self-Set, 
Mahogany, Octagon, 12″ Diameter Frame 

Authorized Source of Supply: Chicago 
Lighthouse Industries, Chicago, IL 

Contracting Activity: GSA/FAS ADMIN 
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1 Filing companies (company-id) that want to be 
considered an Additional or Co-Applicant and only 
want a single contact for the service list can enter 
the same email address as both the signer and other 
contact. 

SVCS ACQUISITION BR(2, NEW YORK, 
NY 

NSN(s)—Product Name(s): 
7520–01–357–6839—Pen, Ballpoint, Stick, 

Refillable, Rubberized Barrel, Red, Fine 
Point 

Authorized Source of Supply: Alphapointe, 
Kansas City, MO 

Contracting Activity: GSA/FAS ADMIN 
SVCS ACQUISITION BR(2, NEW YORK, 
NY 

Michael R. Jurkowski, 
Director, Business Operations. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02352 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6353–01–P 

COMMITTEE FOR PURCHASE FROM 
PEOPLE WHO ARE BLIND OR 
SEVERELY DISABLED 

Procurement List; Proposed Deletions 

AGENCY: Committee for Purchase From 
People Who Are Blind or Severely 
Disabled. 
ACTION: Proposed deletions from the 
Procurement List. 

SUMMARY: The Committee is proposing 
to delete service(s) from the 
Procurement List that were furnished by 
nonprofit agencies employing persons 
who are blind or have other severe 
disabilities. 

DATES: Comments must be received on 
or before: March 9, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: Committee for Purchase 
From People Who Are Blind or Severely 
Disabled, 355 E Street SW, Suite 325, 
Washington, DC 20024. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For 
further information or to submit 
comments contact: Michael R. 
Jurkowski, Telephone: (703) 489–1322, 
or email CMTEFedReg@AbilityOne.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This 
notice is published pursuant to 41 
U.S.C. 8503(a)(2) and 41 CFR 51–2.3. Its 
purpose is to provide interested persons 
an opportunity to submit comments on 
the proposed actions. 

Deletions 

The following service(s) are proposed 
for deletion from the Procurement List: 

Service(s) 

Service Type: ESD—Tier 1 Call Center 
Service 

Mandatory for: Defense Logistics Agency, 
DLA Headquarters, Satellite Offices 
(NoVA & DC area), CONUS & OCONUS, 
Philadelphia, PA 

Authorized Source of Supply: Peckham 
Vocational Industries, Inc., Lansing, MI 

Contracting Activity: DEFENSE LOGISTICS 
AGENCY, DCSO PHILADELPHIA 

Service Type: Janitorial/Custodial 
Mandatory for: Bureau of Land Management: 

Las Vegas District Office, Las Vegas, NV 
Authorized Source of Supply: Opportunity 

Village, Las Vegas, NV 
Contracting Activity: OFFICE OF POLICY, 

MANAGEMENT, AND BUDGET, NBC 
ACQUISITION SERVICES DIVISION 

Michael R. Jurkowski, 
Director, Business Operations. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02351 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6353–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. RM01–5–000] 

Notice of Changes To Enable Filers 
Making eTariff Filings To Designate 
Applicants and To Add Service List 
Entries; Electronic Tariff Filings 

Take notice that on February 3, 2025, 
changes to the Commission’s systems 
have been implemented to enable filers 
making eTariff flings to designate the 
lead and additional or co-applicants on 
a filing and to include additional names 
in the service list through FERC Online. 

I. Filings in Which the Lead Applicant 
and Company IDs Are the Same 

For most filings in which the lead_
applicant_id and the company_id are 
the same, the only applicant will be the 
company name associated with the 
Company Registration ID used for both 
the lead_applicant_id and the company_
id. All registered email addresses added 
in FERC Online will be added to the 
service list. The last active account 
manager email address in company 
registration also will be added to the 
service list. 

II. Filings in Which the Lead Applicant 
ID Differs From Company ID 

When the filing company (company_
id) is filing on behalf of another entity 
as lead applicant, the filing company 
can choose whether it wants to be 
considered an Additional or Co- 
Applicant. Section A describes the 
process to be used in FERC Online by 
which the filing company will not be 
considered an Applicant or Co- 
Applicant and will not be added to the 
service list. Section B describes the 
process to be used in FERC Online by 
which the filing company will be 
considered an Applicant or Co- 
Applicant and will be added to the 
service list. 

A. Filing Company Does Not Want To 
Be Considered an Additional Applicant 

1. Filers that do not want the filing 
company (company_id) to be considered 

an applicant will still be required to 
include the one registered email address 
required by FERC Online as the 
‘‘Signer’’ associated with the company_
id. But they should not add any 
additional email address for the filing 
company. If filed in this manner, the 
filing company will not be considered 
an Additional or Co-Applicant and the 
single (signer) email address will not be 
added to the service list. 

2. The last active account manager 
email address in company registration 
associated with the lead_applicant_id 
will be added to the service list 
automatically. 

3. To add additional registered email 
addresses for the lead applicant, the 
filer can select the lead applicant as an 
‘‘Additional Applicant’’ in FERC Online 
and add the desired email addresses for 
that entity. 

B. Filing Company Wants To Be 
Considered an Additional Applicant 

1. Filers that want the filing company 
associated with the company_id to be an 
Additional or Co-Applicant on the filing 
must include more than one registered 
email address (in addition to the 
‘‘Signer’’ in FERC Online).1 If more than 
one email address is added, the filing 
company will be treated as an 
Additional Applicant or Co-Applicant 
and all email addresses for the filing 
company will be added to the service 
list. 

2. The last active account manager 
email address in company registration 
associated with the lead_applicant_id 
will be added to the service list 
automatically. 

3. To add additional registered email 
addresses for the lead applicant, the 
filer can select the lead applicant as an 
‘‘Additional Applicant’’ in FERC Online 
and add the desired email addresses for 
that entity. 

As the Commission systems are 
upgraded, the goal is to make this 
process more straightforward in the 
future. But, given our current systems, 
this approach will enable filers to 
correctly identify the applicants on a 
filing and include additional registered 
email addresses to the service list as 
part of the filing. 

Questions on these changes should be 
directed to: Michael Goldenberg at 
Michael.Goldenberg@ferc.gov, James 
Sarikas at James.Sarikas@ferc.gov, and 
etariffresponse@ferc.gov. 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 16:22 Feb 06, 2025 Jkt 265001 PO 00000 Frm 00004 Fmt 4703 Sfmt 4703 E:\FR\FM\07FEN1.SGM 07FEN1lo
tte

r 
on

 D
S

K
11

X
Q

N
23

P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 N
O

T
IC

E
S

1

mailto:Michael.Goldenberg@ferc.gov
mailto:CMTEFedReg@AbilityOne.gov
mailto:etariffresponse@ferc.gov
mailto:James.Sarikas@ferc.gov


9137 Federal Register / Vol. 90, No. 25 / Friday, February 7, 2025 / Notices 

Dated: February 3, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02354 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Project No. 7987–016] 

UP Property 2, LLC; Notice of 
Availability of Environmental 
Assessment 

In accordance with the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 and 
the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission’s (Commission or FERC) 
regulations, 18 CFR part 380, 
Commission staff reviewed UP Property 
2, LLC’s application to surrender the 
exemption of the High Falls Project No. 
7987 and have prepared an 
Environmental Assessment (EA) for the 
proposed surrender. The exemptee 
proposes to surrender the exemption by 
removing the dam down to the riverbed. 
The project is located on the Deep River 
in Moore County, North Carolina. 

The EA contains Commission staff’s 
analysis of the potential environmental 
effects of the proposed surrender of the 
exemption, and concludes that the 
proposed surrender, would not 
constitute a major federal action that 
would significantly affect the quality of 
the human environment. 

The final EA may be viewed on the 
Commission’s website at https://
www.ferc.gov using the ‘‘eLibrary’’ link. 
Enter the docket number (P–7987–016) 
in the docket number field to access the 
document. For assistance, contact FERC 
Online Support at 
FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov or toll- 
free at 1–866–208–3676, or for TTY, 
(202) 502–8659. 

You may also register online at 
https://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/ 
esubscription.asp to be notified via 
email of new filings and issuances 
related to this or other pending projects. 
For assistance, contact FERC Online 
Support. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, Tribal members and others, 
access publicly available information 
and navigate Commission processes. For 
public inquiries and assistance with 
making filings such as interventions, 
comments, or requests for rehearing, the 

public is encouraged to contact OPP at 
(202) 502–6595 or OPP@ferc.gov. 

For further information, contact 
Shana High at 202–502–8674 or 
shana.high@ferc.gov or Mary Karwoski 
at 678–245–3027 or mary.karwoski@
ferc.gov. 

Dated: January 31, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02317 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

Combined Notice of Filings 

Take notice that the Commission has 
received the following Natural Gas 
Pipeline Rate and Refund Report filings: 

Filings Instituting Proceedings 
Docket Numbers: PR25–31–000. 
Applicants: National Fuel Gas 

Distribution Corporation. 
Description: 284.123 Rate Filing: 

Amendment of Rates Under an Order 
No. 63 Blanket Certificate 1–2025 to be 
effective 1/31/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5264. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: PR25–32–000. 
Applicants: Wisconsin Power and 

Light Company. 
Description: 284.123(g) Rate Filing: 

WPL Statement of Operating Conditions 
Update 2025 to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5383. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
284.123(g) Protest: 5 p.m. ET 4/1/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–460–000. 
Applicants: BBT Trans-Union 

Interstate Pipeline, L.P. 
Description: Compliance filing: BBT- 

Trans Union NAESB 4.0 Compliance 
Filing to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5191. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–461–000. 
Applicants: SG Resources Mississippi, 

L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5201. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–462–000. 
Applicants: Perryville Gas Storage 

LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5215. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–463–000. 
Applicants: Steckman Ridge, LP. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Steckman Ridge Order 587–AA (Docket 
RM96–1–043) Compliance Filing to be 
effective 1/31/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5219. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–464–000. 
Applicants: Florida Southeast 

Connection, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5222. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–465–000. 
Applicants: Pine Prairie Energy 

Center, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5252. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–466–000. 
Applicants: Monroe Gas Storage 

Company, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5279. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–467–000. 
Applicants: Southern Star Central Gas 

Pipeline, Inc. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: Annual 

Modernization Capital Cost Recovery 
Mechanism—Eff. March 1, 2025 to be 
effective 3/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5354. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–468–000. 
Applicants: Gillis Hub Pipeline, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: Gillis 

Hub Pipeline NAESB Standards Filing 
to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5375. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–469–000. 
Applicants: Cameron Interstate 

Pipeline, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: Cameron 

Interstate Pipeline NAESB Standards 
Filing to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5381. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–470–000. 
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Applicants: Algonquin Gas 
Transmission, LLC. 

Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 
Negotiated Rates—Various Releases eff 
2–1–25 to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5387. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–471–000. 
Applicants: East Tennessee Natural 

Gas, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: Limited 

Section 4—EPC Tracker Mechanism to 
be effective 3/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5416. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–472–000. 
Applicants: Texas Eastern 

Transmission, LP. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 

Negotiated Rates—Approved Energy II 
eff 2–1–25 to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5438. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–473–000. 
Applicants: National Grid LNG, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 01–31– 

25 NGLNG Section 4 Rate Case to be 
effective 3/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5440. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–474–000. 
Applicants: Maritimes & Northeast 

Pipeline, L.L.C. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 

Negotiated Rates—Various Releases—eff 
2–1–25 to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5467. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–475–000. 
Applicants: Equitrans, L.P. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Compliance Filing—Order No. 587–AA 
to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5009. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–476–000. 
Applicants: Rager Mountain Storage 

Company LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Compliance Filing—Order No. 587–AA 
to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5010. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–477–000. 
Applicants: Mountain Valley 

Pipeline, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Compliance Filing—Order No. 587–AA 
to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 

Accession Number: 20250203–5014. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–478–000. 
Applicants: Iroquois Gas 

Transmission System, L.P. 
Description: Compliance filing: 2.3.25 

FERC Order 587–AA (NAESB) v4.0 
Compliance Filing to be effective 8/1/ 
2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5048. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–479–000. 
Applicants: PGPipeline LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

PGPipeline LLC NAESB 4.0 Compliance 
Filing to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5050. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–480–000. 
Applicants: WBI Energy 

Transmission, Inc. 
Description: Compliance filing: 2024 

NAESB Compliance Filing with Order 
No. 587–AA to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5052. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–481–000. 
Applicants: Cheniere Corpus Christi 

Pipeline, LP. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Cheniere Corpus Christi Pipeline 
NAESB 4.0 Filing to be effective 8/1/ 
2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5056. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–482–000. 
Applicants: Cheniere Creole Trail 

Pipeline, L.P. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline NAESB 
4.0 Filing to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5057. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–483–000. 
Applicants: Midship Pipeline 

Company, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Midship Pipeline Company NAESB 4.0 
Filing to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5058. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–484–000. 
Applicants: Gulf Shore Energy 

Partners, LP. 
Description: Compliance filing: Gulf 

Shore NAESB 4.0 Compliance Filing to 
be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5067. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–485–000. 

Applicants: Transwestern Pipeline 
Company, LLC. 

Description: Compliance filing: 
NAESB 4.0 Compliance to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5068. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–486–000. 
Applicants: Panhandle Eastern Pipe 

Line Company, LP. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5069. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–487–000. 
Applicants: Trunkline Gas Company, 

LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5070. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–488–000. 
Applicants: Sea Robin Pipeline 

Company, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5071. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–489–000. 
Applicants: Southwest Gas Storage 

Company. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5072. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–490–000. 
Applicants: ETC Tiger Pipeline, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5073. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–491–000. 
Applicants: PPG Shawville Pipeline, 

LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB Compliance Filing 2025 to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5074. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–492–000. 
Applicants: High Island Offshore 

System, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB v. 6.0 Compliance to be effective 
8/1/2025. 
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Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5082. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–493–000. 
Applicants: TransCameron Pipeline, 

LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB Compliance Filing 2025 to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5088. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–494–000. 
Applicants: Natural Gas Pipeline 

Company of America LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Compliance Filing Pursuant to Order 
No. 587–AA to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5091. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–495–000. 
Applicants: Venture Global Gator 

Express, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB Compliance Filing 2025 to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5095. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–496–000. 
Applicants: Kinder Morgan Illinois 

Pipeline LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Compliance Filing Pursuant to Order 
No. 587–AA to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5099. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–497–000. 
Applicants: Stingray Pipeline 

Company, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB Version 4.0 Compliance to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5102. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25 
Docket Numbers: RP25–498–000. 
Applicants: Horizon Pipeline 

Company, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Compliance Filing Pursuant to Order 
No. 587–AA to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5103. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–499–000. 
Applicants: Transcontinental Gas 

Pipe Line Company, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance (NAESB 4.0) to 
be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5104. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–500–000. 

Applicants: Tres Palacios Gas Storage 
LLC. 

Description: Compliance filing: Tres 
Palacios Order 587–AA (Docket RM96– 
1–043) Compliance Filing to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5106. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–501–000. 
Applicants: Southern Star Central Gas 

Pipeline, Inc. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 to be effective 8/1/2025. 
Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5107. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–502–000. 
Applicants: Pine Needle LNG 

Company, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: Pine 

Needle Order No. 587–AA Compliance 
(NAESB 4.0) to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5108. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–503–000. 
Applicants: Garden Banks Gas 

Pipeline, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Garden Banks Order 587–AA (Docket 
RM96–1–043) Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5110. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–504–000. 
Applicants: Mississippi Canyon Gas 

Pipeline, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Mississippi Canyon Order 587–AA 
(Docket RM96–1–043) Compliance 
Filing to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5111. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–505–000. 
Applicants: Southern Natural Gas 

Company, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: SNG 

NAESB 4.0 Implementation Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5113. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–506–000. 
Applicants: Southern LNG Company, 

L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: SLNG 

NAESB 4.0 Implementation Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5114. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–507–000. 
Applicants: Nautilus Pipeline 

Company, L.L.C. 

Description: Compliance filing: 
Nautilus Order 587–AA (Docket RM96– 
1–043) Compliance Filing to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5115. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–508–000. 
Applicants: Vector Pipeline L.P. 
Description: Compliance filing: Vector 

Pipeline NAESB 4.0 Compliance Filing 
to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5122. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–509–000. 
Applicants: Elba Express Company, 

L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: EEC 

NAESB 4.0 Implementation Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5123. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–510–000. 
Applicants: Midcontinent Express 

Pipeline LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: MEP 

NAESB 4.0 Implementation Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5128 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–511–000. 
Applicants: Gulf South Pipeline 

Company, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: Cap Rel 

Neg Rate Agmt (Osaka 46428 to EDF 
58814) to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5131. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–512–000. 
Applicants: Rover Pipeline LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 

Summary of Negotiated Rate Capacity 
Release Agreements 2–3–2025 to be 
effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5133. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–513–000. 
Applicants: Golden Triangle Storage, 

LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB Compliance Filing 2025 to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5136. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–514–000. 
Applicants: Wyoming Interstate 

Company, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
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1 For tracking purposes under the Council on 
Environmental Quality, the unique identification 
number for documents relating to this 
environmental review is EAXX–019–20–000– 
1725459309. 40 CFR 1501.5(c)(4) (2024). 

Accession Number: 20250203–5139. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–515–000. 
Applicants: Adelphia Gateway, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Adelphia NAESB 4.0 Compliance Filing 
to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5140. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–516–000. 
Applicants: Cheyenne Plains Gas 

Pipeline Company, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5144. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–517–000. 
Applicants: Gulf South Pipeline 

Company, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: Cap Rel 

Neg Rate Agmt (Osaka 46428 to Uniper 
58821) to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5149. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–518–000. 
Applicants: Young Gas Storage 

Company, Ltd. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5151. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–519–000. 
Applicants: Mountain Valley 

Pipeline, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 

Negotiated Rate Capacity Release 
Agreements—2/1/2025 to be effective 2/ 
1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5152. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/18/25. 
Any person desiring to intervene, to 

protest, or to answer a complaint in any 
of the above proceedings must file in 
accordance with Rules 211, 214, or 206 
of the Commission’s Regulations (18 
CFR 385.211, 385.214, or 385.206) on or 
before 5:00 p.m. Eastern time on the 
specified comment date. Protests may be 
considered, but intervention is 
necessary to become a party to the 
proceeding. 

The filings are accessible in the 
Commission’s eLibrary system (https://
elibrary.ferc.gov/idmws/search/ 
fercgensearch.asp) by querying the 
docket number. 

eFiling is encouraged. More detailed 
information relating to filing 
requirements, interventions, protests, 
service, and qualifying facilities filings 

can be found at: http://www.ferc.gov/ 
docs-filing/efiling/filing-req.pdf. For 
other information, call (866) 208–3676 
(toll free). For TTY, call (202) 502–8659. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, local communities, Tribal 
members and others, access publicly 
available information and navigate 
Commission processes. For public 
inquiries and assistance with making 
filings such as interventions, comments, 
or requests for rehearing, the public is 
encouraged to contact OPP at (202) 502– 
6595 or OPP@ferc.gov. 

Dated: February 3, 2025. 
Carlos D. Clay, 
Deputy Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02370 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. CP24–468–000] 

Texas Gas Transmission, LLC; Gulf 
South Pipeline Company, LLC; Notice 
of Availability of the Environmental 
Assessment for the Proposed Eunice 
Reliability and Lake Charles Supply 
Project 

The staff of the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC or 
Commission) has prepared an 
environmental assessment (EA) for the 
Eunice Reliability and Lake Charles 
Supply Project (Project), proposed by 
Texas Gas Transmission, LLC (Texas 
Gas) and Gulf South Pipeline Company, 
LLC (Gulf South), in the above- 
referenced docket.1 On May 8, 2024, 
Texas Gas and Gulf South filed an 
application in Docket No. CP24–468– 
000 requesting authorization to 
construct, operate and abandon certain 
natural gas pipeline facilities. The 
Project consists of the replacement and 
expansion of compression facilities at 
Texas Gas’ existing Eunice Compressor 
Station in Acadia Parish, Louisiana and 
the installation of overpressure 
protection at Texas Gas’ existing 
Woodlawn Valve Station in Jefferson 
Davis Parish, Louisiana. The Project 
would create 120,000 dekatherms per 
day (Dth/d) of new transportation 

service on Texas Gas’ system that would 
be leased to Gulf South to meet its 
customers’ needs in the Lake Charles 
area, including an electric utility and 
two natural gas marketers. 

The EA assesses the potential 
environmental effects of the 
construction and operation of the 
Project in accordance with the 
requirements of the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The 
FERC staff concludes that approval of 
the proposed project would not 
constitute a major federal action 
significantly affecting the quality of the 
human environment. 

The Project would consist of the 
following facilities: 

• abandon in place four 1,100
horsepower (hp) and one 2,250 hp 
reciprocating compressor units and 
install one 8,968 HP Solar T–70 gas- 
fired, turbine-driven compressor unit 
and one 6,391 hp Solar T60 gas-fired, 
turbine-driven compressor unit, and 
appurtenances at the Eunice 
Compressor Station in Acadia Parish, 
Louisiana; 

• install associated suction/discharge
lines interconnecting the proposed 
Eunice Compressor Station facilities and 
the proposed tie-in facility to be 
installed at an existing trap site 
(collectively referred to as the Eunice 
Compressor Station and Trap Site); and 

• install overpressure protection at
the existing Woodlawn Junction in 
Jefferson Davis Parish, Louisiana. 

The Commission mailed a copy of the 
Notice of Availability of the EA to 
federal, state, and local government 
representatives and agencies; elected 
officials; environmental and public 
interest groups; Native American tribes; 
potentially affected landowners and 
other interested individuals and groups; 
and newspapers and libraries in the 
project area. The EA is only available in 
electronic format. It may be viewed and 
downloaded from the FERC’s website 
(www.ferc.gov), on the natural gas 
environmental documents page (https:// 
www.ferc.gov/industries-data/natural- 
gas/environment/environmental- 
documents). In addition, the EA may be 
accessed by using the eLibrary link on 
the FERC’s website. Click on the 
eLibrary link (https://elibrary.ferc.gov/ 
eLibrary/search), select ‘‘General 
Search’’ and enter the docket number in 
the ‘‘Docket Number’’ field, excluding 
the last three digits (i.e. CP24–468). Be 
sure you have selected an appropriate 
date range. For assistance, please 
contact FERC Online Support at 
FercOnlineSupport@ferc.gov or toll free 
at (866) 208–3676, or for TTY, contact 
(202) 502–8659.
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1 For tracking purposes, the unique identification 
number for documents relating to this 
environmental review is EAXX–019–20–000– 
1730110485. 

The EA is not a decision document. 
It presents Commission staff’s 
independent analysis of the 
environmental issues for the 
Commission to consider when 
addressing the merits of all issues in 
this proceeding. Any person wishing to 
comment on the EA may do so. Your 
comments should focus on the EA’s 
disclosure and discussion of potential 
environmental effects, reasonable 
alternatives, and measures to avoid or 
lessen environmental impacts. The more 
specific your comments, the more useful 
they will be. To ensure that the 
Commission has the opportunity to 
consider your comments prior to 
making its decision on this project, it is 
important that we receive your 
comments in Washington, DC on or 
before 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on March 
3, 2025. 

For your convenience, there are three 
methods you can use to file your 
comments to the Commission. The 
Commission encourages electronic filing 
of comments and has staff available to 
assist you at (866) 208–3676 or 
FercOnlineSupport@ferc.gov. Please 
carefully follow these instructions so 
that your comments are properly 
recorded. 

(1) You can file your comments 
electronically using the eComment 
feature on the Commission’s website 
(www.ferc.gov) under the link to FERC 
Online. This is an easy method for 
submitting brief, text-only comments on 
a project; 

(2) You can also file your comments 
electronically using the eFiling feature 
on the Commission’s website 
(www.ferc.gov) under the link to FERC 
Online. With eFiling, you can provide 
comments in a variety of formats by 
attaching them as a file with your 
submission. New eFiling users must 
first create an account by clicking on 
‘‘eRegister.’’ You must select the type of 
filing you are making. If you are filing 
a comment on a particular project, 
please select ‘‘Comment on a Filing’’; or 

(3) You can file a paper copy of your 
comments by mailing them to the 
Commission. Be sure to reference the 
project docket number (CP24–468–000) 
on your letter. Submissions sent via the 
U.S. Postal Service must be addressed 
to: Debbie-Anne A. Reese, Secretary, 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, 
888 First Street NE, Room 1A, 
Washington, DC 20426. Submissions 
sent via any other carrier must be 
addressed to: Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary, Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, 12225 Wilkins Avenue, 
Rockville, Maryland 20852. 

Filing environmental comments will 
not give you intervenor status, but you 

do not need intervenor status to have 
your comments considered. Only 
intervenors have the right to seek 
rehearing or judicial review of the 
Commission’s decision. At this point in 
this proceeding, the timeframe for filing 
timely intervention requests has 
expired. Any person seeking to become 
a party to the proceeding must file a 
motion to intervene out-of-time 
pursuant to Rule 214(b)(3) and (d) of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedures (18 CFR 385.214(b)(3) and 
(d)) and show good cause why the time 
limitation should be waived. Motions to 
intervene are more fully described at 
https://www.ferc.gov/how-intervene. 

Additional information about the 
project is available from the 
Commission’s Office of External Affairs, 
at (866) 208–FERC, or on the FERC 
website (www.ferc.gov) using the 
eLibrary link. The eLibrary link also 
provides access to the texts of all formal 
documents issued by the Commission, 
such as orders, notices, and 
rulemakings. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, environmental justice 
communities, Tribal members and 
others, access publicly available 
information and navigate Commission 
processes. For public inquiries and 
assistance with making filings such as 
interventions, comments, or requests for 
rehearing, the public is encouraged to 
contact OPP at (202) 502–6595 or OPP@
ferc.gov. 

In addition, the Commission offers a 
free service called eSubscription which 
allows you to keep track of all formal 
issuances and submittals in specific 
dockets. This can reduce the amount of 
time you spend researching proceedings 
by automatically providing you with 
notification of these filings, document 
summaries, and direct links to the 
documents. Go to https://www.ferc.gov/ 
ferc-online/overview to register for 
eSubscription. 

Dated: January 31, 2025. 

Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02318 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. CP24–93–000] 

Venice Gathering System, L.L.C.; 
Notice of Availability of the 
Environmental Assessment for the 
Proposed Venice Gathering System 
Abandonment Project 

The staff of the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC or 
Commission) has prepared an 
environmental assessment (EA) for the 
Venice Gathering System Abandonment 
Project (Project), mostly in the Gulf of 
America (Gulf) offshore of Louisiana.1 
Venice Gathering System, L.L.C. 
(Venice) proposes to abandon in-place 
about 124.4 miles of 8-inch to 26-inch- 
diameter pipeline from offshore South 
Timbalier Block 151 and West Delta 
Blocks 41 and 72 in the Gulf to an 
onshore interconnection with Venice 
Energy Services Company, L.L.C.’s 
natural gas processing plant, near the 
town of Venice, in Plaquemines Parish, 
Louisiana. 

The EA assesses the potential 
environmental effects of the Project in 
accordance with the requirements of the 
National Environmental Policy Act. The 
FERC staff concludes that approval of 
the Project would not constitute a major 
federal action significantly affecting the 
quality of the human environment. 

The Commission mailed a copy of the 
Notice of Availability of the EA to 
federal, state, and local government 
representatives and agencies; elected 
officials; non-governmental 
organizations, environmental and public 
interest groups; and newspapers and 
libraries in the project area. The EA is 
only available in electronic format. It 
may be viewed and downloaded from 
the FERC’s website (www.ferc.gov), on 
the natural gas environmental 
documents page (https://www.ferc.gov/ 
industries-data/natural-gas/ 
environment/environmental- 
documents). In addition, the EA may be 
accessed by using the eLibrary link on 
the FERC’s website. Click on the 
eLibrary link (https://elibrary.ferc.gov/ 
eLibrary/search), select ‘‘General 
Search’’ and enter the docket number in 
the ‘‘Docket Number’’ field, (i.e. CP24– 
93). Be sure you have selected an 
appropriate date range. For assistance, 
please contact FERC Online Support at 
FercOnlineSupport@ferc.gov or toll free 
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at (866) 208–3676, or for TTY, contact 
(202) 502–8659. 

The EA is not a decision document. 
It presents Commission staff’s 
independent analysis of the 
environmental issues for the 
Commission to consider when 
addressing the merits of all issues in 
this proceeding. Any person wishing to 
comment on the EA may do so. Your 
comments should focus on the EA’s 
disclosure and discussion of potential 
environmental effects, reasonable 
alternatives, and measures to avoid or 
lessen environmental impacts. The more 
specific your comments, the more useful 
they will be. To ensure consideration of 
your comments on the proposal, it is 
important that the Commission receive 
your comments on or before 5:00 p.m. 
Eastern Time on March 3, 2025. 

For your convenience, there are three 
methods you can use to submit your 
comments to the Commission. The 
Commission encourages electronic filing 
of comments and has staff available to 
assist you at (866) 208–3676 or 
FercOnlineSupport@ferc.gov. Please 
carefully follow these instructions so 
that your comments are properly 
recorded. 

(1) You can file your comments 
electronically using the eComment 
feature on the Commission’s website 
(www.ferc.gov) under the link to FERC 
Online. This is an easy method for 
submitting brief, text-only comments on 
a project; 

(2) You can also file your comments 
electronically using the eFiling feature 
on the Commission’s website 
(www.ferc.gov) under the link to FERC 
Online. With eFiling, you can provide 
comments in a variety of formats by 
attaching them as a file with your 
submission. New eFiling users must 
first create an account by clicking on 
‘‘eRegister.’’ You must select the type of 
filing you are making. If you are filing 
a comment on a particular project, 
please select ‘‘Comment on a Filing’’; or 

(3) You can file a paper copy of your 
comments by mailing them to the 
Commission. Be sure to reference the 
Project docket number (CP24–93–000) 
on your letter. Submissions sent via the 
U.S. Postal Service must be addressed 
to: Debbie-Anne A. Reese, Secretary, 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, 
888 First Street NE, Room 1A, 
Washington, DC 20426. Submissions 
sent via any other carrier must be 
addressed to: Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary, Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, 12225 Wilkins Avenue, 
Rockville, Maryland 20852. 

Filing environmental comments will 
not give you intervenor status, but you 
do not need intervenor status to have 

your comments considered. Only 
intervenors have the right to seek 
rehearing or judicial review of the 
Commission’s decision. At this point in 
this proceeding, the timeframe for filing 
timely intervention requests has 
expired. Any person seeking to become 
a party to the proceeding must file a 
motion to intervene out-of-time 
pursuant to Rule 214(b)(3) and (d) of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedures (18 CFR 385.214(b)(3) and 
(d)) and show good cause why the time 
limitation should be waived. Motions to 
intervene are more fully described at 
https://www.ferc.gov/how-intervene. 

Additional information about the 
Project is available from the 
Commission’s Office of External Affairs, 
at (866) 208–FERC, or on the FERC 
website (www.ferc.gov) using the 
eLibrary link. The eLibrary link also 
provides access to the texts of all formal 
documents issued by the Commission, 
such as orders, notices, and 
rulemakings. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, community organizations, 
Tribal members and others, access 
publicly available information and 
navigate Commission processes. For 
public inquiries and assistance with 
making filings such as interventions, 
comments, or requests for rehearing, the 
public is encouraged to contact OPP at 
(202) 502–6595 or OPP@ferc.gov. 

In addition, the Commission offers a 
free service called eSubscription which 
allows you to keep track of all formal 
issuances and submittals in specific 
dockets. This can reduce the amount of 
time you spend researching proceedings 
by automatically providing you with 
notification of these filings, document 
summaries, and direct links to the 
documents. Go to https://www.ferc.gov/ 
ferc-online/overview to register for 
eSubscription. 

Dated: January 31, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02319 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

Combined Notice of Filings #1 

Take notice that the Commission 
received the following electric corporate 
filings: 

Docket Numbers: EC25–44–000. 
Applicants: CPV Shore, LLC. 
Description: Application for 

Authorization Under Section 203 of the 
Federal Power Act of CPV Shore, LLC. 

Filed Date: 1/29/25. 
Accession Number: 20250129–5274. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/19/25. 
Docket Numbers: EC25–45–000. 
Applicants: Gator Holdings, L.P., 

Dolphin HoldCo, LLC, BISS Lumos 
Aggregator LP, OPPS Origis Holdings, 
L.P. 

Description: Application for 
Authorization Under Section 203 of the 
Federal Power Act of Gator Holdings, 
L.P. 

Filed Date: 1/29/25. 
Accession Number: 20250129–5276. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/19/25. 
Take notice that the Commission 

received the following exempt 
wholesale generator filings: 

Docket Numbers: EG25–98–000. 
Applicants: Sun Ridge Solar, LLC. 
Description: Sun Ridge Solar, LLC 

submits Notice of Self-Certification of 
Exempt Wholesale Generator Status. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5097. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Take notice that the Commission 

received the following Complaints and 
Compliance filings in EL Dockets: 

Docket Numbers: EL25–54–000; 
QF22–859–001. 

Applicants: RGP Bowman Solar, LLC, 
RGP Bowman Solar, LLC. 

Description: Petition for Enforcement 
Pursuant to Section 210(h)(2)(B) of the 
Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 
1978 of RGP Bowman Solar, LLC. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5498. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Take notice that the Commission 

received the following electric rate 
filings: 

Docket Numbers: ER10–1819–042; 
ER10–1820–045. 

Applicants: Northern States Power 
Company, a Wisconsin corporation, 
Northern States Power Company, a 
Minnesota corporation. 

Description: Notice of Change in 
Status of Northern States Power 
Company, a Minnesota corporation, et 
al. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5285. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER10–2249–011. 
Applicants: Portland General Electric 

Company. 
Description: Notice of Change in 

Status of Portland General Electric 
Company. 
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Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5288. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER10–2822–023; 

ER16–1250–016; ER11–2112–011; 
ER10–2828–007; ER10–2285–008; 
ER17–1241–002; ER16–2285–005; 
ER10–2423–011; ER10–2404–011; 
ER10–2812–018; ER10–1291–025; 
ER10–2843–017; ER12–2649–006; 
ER10–1725–006; ER10–3001–007; 
ER10–3002–007; ER10–3004–008; 
ER12–422–008; ER10–2301–006; ER19– 
2361–002; ER20–2830–001; ER10–3010– 
007; ER10–2306–006; ER12–96–010; 
ER10–3031–007; ER10–3160–005; 
ER16–1637–004. 

Applicants: UIL Distributed 
Resources, LLC, The United 
Illuminating Company, Streator-Cayuga 
Ridge Wind Power LLC, South Chestnut 
LLC, Rochester Gas and Electric 
Corporation, Providence Heights Wind, 
LLC, PPM Roaring Brook, LLC, Otter 
Creek Wind Farm LLC, New York State 
Electric & Gas Corporation, New 
England Wind, LLC, Locust Ridge Wind 
Farm II, LLC, Locust Ridge Wind Farm, 
LLC, Lempster Wind, LLC, Hardscrabble 
Wind Power LLC, Groton Wind, LLC, 
GenConn Middletown LLC, GenConn 
Energy LLC, GenConn Devon LLC, Flat 
Rock Windpower II LLC, Flat Rock 
Windpower LLC, Desert Wind Farm 
LLC, Deerfield Wind, LLC, Central 
Maine Power Company, Casselman 
Windpower LLC, Blue Creek Wind Farm 
LLC, Avangrid Renewables, LLC, 
Atlantic Renewable Projects II LLC. 

Description: Atlantic Renewable 
Projects II LLC et al. submit response to 
FERC’s 12/31/2024 deficiency letter re 
the 01/03/2023 updated market power 
analysis etc. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5293. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER10–2984–070. 
Applicants: Merrill Lynch 

Commodities, Inc. 
Description: Notice of Change in 

Status of Merrill Lynch Commodities, 
Inc. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5508. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER12–1821–005. 
Applicants: COLORADO 

HIGHLANDS WIND, LLC. 
Description: Notice of Change in 

Status of Colorado Highlands Wind, 
LLC. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5292. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER13–342–020; 

ER13–343–016. 
Applicants: CPV Maryland, LLC, CPV 

Shore, LLC. 

Description: Notice of Change in 
Status of CPV Maryland, LLC, et al. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5511. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER14–2579–001. 
Applicants: Nalcor Energy Marketing 

Corporation. 
Description: Notice of Non-Material 

Change in Status of Nalcor Energy 
Marketing Corporation. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5284. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER15–2135–002. 
Applicants: Alexander Wind Farm, 

LLC. 
Description: Notice of Non-Material 

Change in Status of Alexander Wind 
Farm, LLC. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5506. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER19–1217–006. 
Applicants: Montana-Dakota Utilities 

Co. 
Description: Notice of Non-Material 

Change in Status of Montana-Dakota 
Utilities Co. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5287. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER20–59–008; 

ER10–2201–010; ER10–2331–076; 
ER10–2756–014; ER13–291–009. 

Applicants: EnergyMark, LLC, Griffith 
Energy LLC, J.P. Morgan Ventures 
Energy Corporation, Marina Energy, 
LLC, AZ Solar 1, LLC. 

Description: Notice of Change in 
Status of AZ Solar 1, LLC, et al. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5515. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER21–205–004. 
Applicants: Delmarva Power & Light 

Company, PJM Interconnection, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Delmarva Power & Light Company 
submits tariff filing per 35: Delmarva 
Power & Light Co. Order No. 864 Clean- 
Up Revisions in ER21–205 to be 
effective 5/1/2020. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5170. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER22–1566–005. 
Applicants: Guernsey Power Station 

LLC. 
Description: Notice of Change in 

Status of Guernsey Power Station LLC. 
Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5510. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER23–883–003; 

ER10–1852–103; ER10–1951–077; 
ER11–4462–100; ER17–838–074; ER24– 

2512–002; ER24–2513–002; ER24–2514– 
002. 

Applicants: FRP Gadsden County 
Solar, LLC, FRP Columbia County Solar, 
LLC, FRP Gilchrist County Solar, LLC, 
NextEra Energy Marketing, LLC, NEPM 
II, LLC, NextEra Energy Services 
Massachusetts, LLC, Florida Power & 
Light Company, Bell Ridge Solar, LLC. 

Description: Notice of Change in 
Status of Bell Ridge Solar, LLC, et al. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5517. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER23–2107–004; 

ER10–1852–102; ER10–1951–076; 
ER11–4462–099; ER17–838–073; ER24– 
2848–002. 

Applicants: Troutdale Grid, LLC, 
NextEra Energy Marketing, LLC,NEPM 
II, LLC, NextEra Energy Services 
Massachusetts, LLC, Florida Power & 
Light Company, Clearwater Wind II, 
LLC. 

Description: Notice of Change in 
Status of Clearwater Wind II, LLC, et al. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5516. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER24–100–002; 

ER19–2399–004; ER24–101–001; ER24– 
102–001; ER24–109–001. 

Applicants: Caden Energix Axton 
LLC, Caden Energix Endless Caverns 
LLC, Waverly Solar, LLC, Caden Energix 
Hickory LLC, Adams Solar LLC. 

Description: Notice of Non-Material 
Change in Status of Adams Solar LLC, 
et al. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5513. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER24–116–003. 
Applicants: Rhythm Ops, LLC. 
Description: Notice of Non-Material 

Change in Status of Rhythm Ops, LLC. 
Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5291. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER24–1651–002; 

ER20–55–004; ER21–772–004. 
Applicants: Resi Station, LLC, 

OhmConnect, Inc., Renew Home VPP, 
LLC. 

Description: Notice of Change in 
Status of Renew Home VPP, LLC, et al. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5505. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER24–1848–002. 
Applicants: Portland General Electric 

Company. 
Description: Compliance filing: PGE 

Order Nos. 2023 2023–A Second 
Compliance Filing to be effective 1/6/ 
2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5472. 
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Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
The filings are accessible in the 

Commission’s eLibrary system (https://
elibrary.ferc.gov/idmws/search/ 
fercgensearch.asp) by querying the 
docket number. 

Any person desiring to intervene, to 
protest, or to answer a complaint in any 
of the above proceedings must file in 
accordance with Rules 211, 214, or 206 
of the Commission’s Regulations (18 
CFR 385.211, 385.214, or 385.206) on or 
before 5:00 p.m. Eastern time on the 
specified comment date. Protests may be 
considered, but intervention is 
necessary to become a party to the 
proceeding. 

eFiling is encouraged. More detailed 
information relating to filing 
requirements, interventions, protests, 
service, and qualifying facilities filings 
can be found at: http://www.ferc.gov/ 
docs-filing/efiling/filing-req.pdf. For 
other information, call (866) 208–3676 
(toll free). For TTY, call (202) 502–8659. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, local communities, Tribal 
members and others, access publicly 
available information and navigate 
Commission processes. For public 
inquiries and assistance with making 
filings such as interventions, comments, 
or requests for rehearing, the public is 
encouraged to contact OPP at (202) 502– 
6595 or OPP@ferc.gov. 

Dated: February 3, 2025. 
Carlos D. Clay, 
Deputy Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02371 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. IC25–6–000] 

Commission Information Collection 
Activities (FERC Form No. 60, FERC– 
61, and FERC–555A); Consolidated 
Comment Request; Extension 

AGENCY: Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, Department of Energy. 
ACTION: Notice of information collection 
and request for comments. 

SUMMARY: In compliance with the 
requirements of the Paperwork 
Reduction Act of 1995, the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission 
(Commission or FERC) is soliciting 
public comment on the currently 

approved information collections, FERC 
Form No. 60 (Annual Report of 
Centralized Service Companies), FERC– 
61 (Narrative Description of Service 
Company Functions), and FERC–555A 
(Preservation of Records Companies and 
Service Companies Subject to PUHCA). 
DATES: Comments on the collection of 
information are due April 8, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: You may submit comments 
(identified by Docket No. IC25–6–000) 
by any of the following methods: 

Electronic filing through https://
www.ferc.gov, is preferred. 

• Electronic Filing: Documents must 
be filed in acceptable native 
applications and print-to-PDF, but not 
in scanned or picture format. 

• For those unable to file 
electronically, comments may be filed 
by USPS mail or by hand (including 
courier) delivery: 

Æ Mail via U.S. Postal Service Only: 
Addressed to: Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission, Secretary of the 
Commission, 888 First Street NE, 
Washington, DC 20426. 

Æ Hand (Including Courier) Delivery: 
Deliver to: Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, 12225 Wilkins Avenue, 
Rockville, MD 20852. 

Instructions: All submissions must be 
formatted and filed in accordance with 
submission guidelines at: https://
www.ferc.gov. For user assistance, 
contact FERC Online Support by email 
at: ferconlinesupport@ferc.gov, or by 
phone at: (866) 208–3676 (toll-free). 

Docket: Users interested in receiving 
automatic notification of activity in this 
docket or in viewing/downloading 
comments and issuances in this docket 
may do so at: https://www.ferc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Kayla Williams may be reached by 
email at DataClearance@FERC.gov and 
telephone at (202) 502–8663. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Type of Request: Three-year extension 
of the information collection 
requirements for FERC Form No. 60, 
FERC–61, and FERC–555A with no 
changes to the current reporting 
requirements. 

OMB Control Nos. and Titles: 1902– 
0215 ((FERC Form No. 60 (Annual 
Report of Centralized Service 
Companies), FERC–61 (Narrative 
Description of Service Company 
Functions), and FERC–555A 
(Preservation of Records Companies and 
Service Companies Subject to PUHCA)). 

Abstract: In accordance with the 
Energy Policy Act of 2005 (EPAct 2005), 
the Commission implemented the repeal 
of the Public Utility Holding Company 
Act of 1935 (PUHCA 1935) and 
implemented the provisions of a newly 

enacted Public Utility Holding 
Company Act 2005 (PUHCA 2005). 
Pursuant to PUHCA 2005, the 
Commission requires centralized service 
companies to file FERC Form No. 60 or 
FERC–61, and comply with FERC– 
555A’s requirements unless the 
company is exempted or granted a 
waiver pursuant to the Commission’s 
regulations. The information collected 
in FERC Form No. 60 enables better 
monitoring for cross-subsidization, and 
aids the Commission in carrying out its 
statutory responsibilities. In addition, 
centralized service companies are 
required to follow the Commission’s 
preservation of records requirements for 
centralized service companies. 

FERC Form No. 60 
FERC Form No. 60 is an annual 

reporting requirement for centralized 
service companies set forth in 18 CFR 
366.23. The report’s function is to 
collect financial information (including 
balance sheet, assets, liabilities, billing 
and charges for associated and non- 
associated companies) from centralized 
service companies subject to the 
Commission’s jurisdiction. Unless the 
Commission exempts or grants a waiver 
pursuant to 18 CFR 366.3 and 366.4 to 
the holding company system, every 
centralized service company in a 
holding company system must prepare 
and file electronically with the 
Commission the FERC Form No. 60, 
pursuant to the General Instructions in 
the form. 

FERC–61 
FERC–61 is a filing requirement for 

service companies in holding company 
systems (including special purpose 
companies) that are currently exempt or 
granted a waiver of FERC’s regulations 
and would not have to file FERC Form 
No. 60. Instead, those service companies 
are required to file, on an annual basis, 
a narrative description of the service 
company’s functions during the prior 
calendar year (FERC–61). In complying, 
a holding company may make a single 
filing on behalf of all of its service 
company subsidiaries. 

FERC–555A 
The Commission’s regulations 

prescribe a mandated preservation of 
records requirement for holding 
companies and service companies 
(unless otherwise exempted by FERC). 
This requires them to maintain and 
make available to FERC, their books and 
records. The preservation of records 
requirement provides for uniform 
records retention by holding companies 
and centralized service companies 
subject to PUHCA 2005. 
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1 Burden is defined as the total time, effort, or 
financial resources expended by persons to 
generate, maintain, retain, disclose, or provide 
information to or for a Federal agency. For further 
explanation of what is included in the information 
collection burden, refer to 5 CFR 1320.3. The 
burden hours and costs are rounded for ease of 
presentation. 

2 The cost for the Form 60 and FERC–61 is based 
on FERC’s 2024 Commission-wide average salary 
cost (salary plus benefits) of $100/hour. The 
Commission staff believes the FERC FTE (full-time 

equivalent) average cost for wages plus benefits is 
representative of the corresponding cost for the 
industry respondents. 

For the FERC–555A, the $39.53 hourly cost figure 
comes from the average cost (wages plus benefits) 
of a file clerk (Occupation Code 43–4071) as posted 
on the BLS website (https://www.bls.gov/oes/ 
current/naics2_22.htm). 

3 Previously, the Commission estimated the 
number of FERC–61 respondents by including the 
potential for a holding company to file for a group 
of companies. In contrast, the current estimate is 

updated to instead reflect the actual number of 
filers filing the FERC–61, as opposed to the 
potential number of companies represented by the 
population of filers. The current approach is more 
precisee as it can be confirmed by reviewing the 
most recent number of FERC–61 filers. It is also 
consistent with the manner in which the number 
of respondents is estimated for other Commission 
collections. The varying corporate sizes and 
complexities inherent in the filing community is 
already taken into account via the burden hours 
estimate that is based on average filer burden. 

Data from FERC Form No. 60, FERC– 
61, and FERC–555A provide a level of 
transparency that: (1) helps protect 
ratepayers from pass-through of 
improper service company costs, (2) 
enables the Commission to review and 
determine cost allocations (among 
holding company members) for certain 
non-power goods and services, (3) aids 
the Commission in meeting its oversight 
and market monitoring obligations, and 

(4) benefits the public, both as 
ratepayers and investors. In addition, 
the Commission’s audit staff uses these 
records during compliance audits, 
reviews and special analyses. 

If data from FERC Form No. 60, 
FERC–61, and FERC–555A were not 
available, it would be difficult for the 
Commission to meet its statutory 
responsibilities under EPAct 1992, 
EPAct of 2005, and PUHCA 2005, and 

the Commission would have fewer of 
the regulatory mechanisms necessary to 
ensure transparency and protect 
ratepayers. 

Type of Respondent: Centralized 
service companies. 

Estimate of Annual Burden: 1 The 
Commission estimates the annual public 
reporting burden and cost (rounded in 
the tables) for the information 
collections as: 2 

FERC–60—ANNUAL BURDEN ESTIMATE 

B. 
Number of respondents 

C. 
Annual 

number of 
responses per 

respondent 

D. 
Total number 
of responses 

E. 
Average burden hours & 

cost per response 

F. 
Total annual burden hours & 

cost 

G. 
Cost per respondent 

(column B × column C) (column D × column E) (column F ÷ column B) 

37 ........................................... 1 37 78 hrs.; $7,800 ...................... 2,886 hrs.; $288,600 ............. $7,800 

FERC–61—ANNUAL BURDEN ESTIMATE 

B. 
Number of respondents 

C. 
Annual 

number of 
responses per 

respondent 

D. 
Total number 
of responses 

E. 
Average burden hours & 

cost per response 

F. 
Total annual burden hours & 

cost 

G. 
Cost per respondent 

(column B × column C) (column D × column E) (column F ÷ column B) 

14 3 ......................................... 1 14 0.5 hrs.; $50 .......................... 7 hrs.; $700 ........................... $50 

FERC–555A—ANNUAL BURDEN ESTIMATE 

B. 
Number of respondents 

C. 
Annual 

number of 
responses per 

respondent 

D. 
Total number 
of responses 

E. 
Average burden hours & 

cost per response 

F. 
Total annual burden hours & 

cost 

G. 
Cost per respondent 

(column B × column C) (column D × column E) (column F ÷ column B) 

51 ........................................... 1 51 1,080 hrs.; $42,692.40 .......... 55,080 hrs.; $2,177,312.40 ... $42,692.40 

FERC–555A—RECORD RETENTION 

Total number 
of responses 

Cost per 
respondent 

Total annual 
cost 

Electronic Storage ....................................................................................................................... 51 $10.00 $510 

Total Annual Cost: $2,468,472.40 
[$288,600 (FERC Form No. 60) + $700 
(FERC–61) + $2,177,312.40 (FERC– 
555A)] (Labor Cost) + $510 (Record 
Retention storage cost) = $2,468,472.40.] 

A more granular breakdown of the 
FERC–60/61/555A cost categories 
follows: 

Labor Cost: The total estimated 
annual cost for labor burden to 
respondents is $2,466,612.40 [$288,600 
(FERC Form No. 60) + $700 (FERC–61) 
+ $2,177,312.40 (FERC–555A)]. 

FERC Form No. 60: 37 respondents × 
$7,800 per respondent = $288,600. 

FERC–61: 14 respondents × $50 per 
respondent = $700. 

FERC–555A: 51 respondents × 
$42,692.40 per respondent = 
$2,177,312.40. 

We expect the labor cost of FERC– 
555A record keeping to trend downward 
over time as companies move their 
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4 Internal analysis assumes 100% electronic 
storage. 

records almost entirely to electronic 
record keeping and storage. 

Storage Cost: 4 In addition to the 
FERC–555A labor (burden cost provided 
above), there are additional costs that 
represent record retention and storage 
costs. Previously, the estimate included 
paper storage costs, but firms no longer 
rely on paper storage to maintain the 
majority of their records, therefore the 
Commission is removing the costs for 
paper storage. For electronic storage, the 
Commission estimates $10.00 per 
respondent annually. Total annual 
electronic storage cost to industry 
($10.00 × 51 respondents): $510. This 
calculation estimates storage of 1GB per 
year at $10.00. We expect that this 
estimate should continue to trend 
downward over time as the cost of 
electronic storage technology, including 
cloud storage, continues to decrease. For 
example, external hard drives of 
approximately 1,000 GB are available for 
approximately $75. In addition, cloud 
storage plans from multiple providers 
for 1TB of storage (with a reasonable 
amount of requests and data transfers) 
are available for less than $7 per month. 

Comments: Comments are invited on: 
(1) whether the collections of 
information are necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
Commission, including whether the 
information will have practical utility; 
(2) the accuracy of the agency’s 
estimates of the burden and cost of the 
collections of information, including the 
validity of the methodology and 
assumptions used; (3) ways to enhance 
the quality, utility, and clarity of the 
information collections; and (4) ways to 
minimize the burden of the collections 
of information on those who are to 
respond, including the use of automated 
collection techniques or other forms of 
information technology. 

Dated: January 27, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02357 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

Combined Notice of Filings #2 

Take notice that the Commission 
received the following electric rate 
filings: 

Docket Numbers: ER24–2557–001; 
ER24–2559–001. 

Applicants: Malaga BESS LLC, 
Henrietta BESS LLC. 

Description: Notice of Non-Material 
Change in Status of Henrietta BESS LLC, 
et al. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5514. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–651–000. 
Applicants: PJM Interconnection, 

L.L.C. 
Description: Report Filing: 

Supplement to GIA, SA No. 7419; AF2– 
032 in Docket No. ER25–651–000 to be 
effective N/A. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5252. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–835–001. 
Applicants: Golden Spread Electric 

Cooperative, Inc. 
Description: Tariff Amendment: WPC 

Amendments Ex B Formula Rate 
Template to be effective 1/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5064. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–934–001. 
Applicants: San Juan Solar 1, LLC. 
Description: Tariff Amendment: 

Amendment to Filing of Revised Rate 
Schedule and Request for Waivers to be 
effective 1/16/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5129. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1129–000. 
Applicants: LS Power Grid California, 

LLC. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: LS 

Power Grid CA TRBAA Filing to be 
effective 3/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5369. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1130–000. 
Applicants: Southwest Power Pool, 

Inc. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

2956R2 American Electric Power NITSA 
and NOA to be effective 1/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5470. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1137–000. 
Applicants: Southwest Power Pool, 

Inc. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Submission of Revisions to WEIS Tariff 
Regarding Market Holds to be effective 
4/5/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5085. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1138–000. 
Applicants: PJM Interconnection, 

L.L.C. 

Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 
Original GIA, SA No. 7508; Project 
Identifier No. AF1–091 to be effective 1/ 
3/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5105. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1139–000. 
Applicants: PJM Interconnection, 

L.L.C. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Amended WMPA, Service Agreement 
No. 5989; AF1–217 to be effective 4/5/ 
2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5116. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1140–000. 
Applicants: Electra Sparks, LLC. 
Description: Notice of Cancellation of 

Market-Based Rate Tariff of Electra 
Sparks, LLC. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5286. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1141–000. 
Applicants: PJM Interconnection, 

L.L.C. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Original GIA Service Agreement No. 
7507; Project Identifier #AF2–024 to be 
effective 1/2/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5150. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1142–000. 
Applicants: PJM Interconnection, 

L.L.C. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Original GIA, SA No. 7513; Project 
Identifier No. AE2–136 to be effective 1/ 
3/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5154. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1143–000. 
Applicants: Pacific Gas and Electric 

Company. 
Description: Notice of Termination of 

Service Agreement No. 266 under FERC 
Electric Tariff Volume No. 5 of Pacific 
Gas and Electric Company. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5504. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1144–000. 
Applicants: PJM Interconnection, 

L.L.C. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Original GIA, Service Agreement No. 
7506; AF2–366 to be effective 1/2/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5161. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1146–000. 
Applicants: Midcontinent 

Independent System Operator, Inc. 
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Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 2025– 
02–03_Citizen’s Electric Integration 
Attachment FF–3 & FF–4 to be effective 
4/5/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5191. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1147–000. 
Applicants: Southwest Power Pool, 

Inc. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Revisions to Clarify Calculation of 
Mitigated Regulation Service Offers (RR 
648) to be effective 4/7/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5194. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1148–000. 
Applicants: PJM Interconnection, 

L.L.C. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Original GIA Service Agreement No. 
7477; Project Identifier No. AF2–019 to 
be effective 1/2/2025. 

Filed Date: 2/3/25. 
Accession Number: 20250203–5200. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/24/25. 
Take notice that the Commission 

received the following electric securities 
filings: 

Docket Numbers: ES25–25–000. 
Applicants: RE Papago PV LLC. 
Description: Amendment to 

Application Under Section 204 of the 
Federal Power Act for Authorization to 
Issue Securities of RE Papago PV LLC. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5512. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/7/25. 
Docket Numbers: ES25–31–000. 
Applicants: Jersey Central Power & 

Light Company. 
Description: Application Under 

Section 204 of the Federal Power Act for 
Authorization to Issue Securities of 
Jersey Central Power & Light Company. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5281. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ES25–32–000. 
Applicants: El Paso Electric Company. 
Description: Application Under 

Section 204 of the Federal Power Act for 
Authorization to Issue Securities of El 
Paso Electric Company. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5496. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
The filings are accessible in the 

Commission’s eLibrary system (https://
elibrary.ferc.gov/idmws/search/ 
fercgensearch.asp) by querying the 
docket number. 

Any person desiring to intervene, to 
protest, or to answer a complaint in any 
of the above proceedings must file in 
accordance with Rules 211, 214, or 206 

of the Commission’s Regulations (18 
CFR 385.211, 385.214, or 385.206) on or 
before 5:00 p.m. Eastern time on the 
specified comment date. Protests may be 
considered, but intervention is 
necessary to become a party to the 
proceeding. 

eFiling is encouraged. More detailed 
information relating to filing 
requirements, interventions, protests, 
service, and qualifying facilities filings 
can be found at: https://www.ferc.gov/ 
docs-filing/efiling/filing-req.pdf. For 
other information, call (866) 208–3676 
(toll free). For TTY, call (202) 502–8659. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, local communities, Tribal 
members and others, access publicly 
available information and navigate 
Commission processes. For public 
inquiries and assistance with making 
filings such as interventions, comments, 
or requests for rehearing, the public is 
encouraged to contact OPP at (202) 502– 
6595 or OPP@ferc.gov. 

Dated: February 3, 2025. 
Carlos D. Clay, 
Deputy Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02366 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

Combined Notice of Filings #1 

Take notice that the Commission 
received the following electric rate 
filings: 

Docket Numbers: ER10–1852–101; 
ER00–3240–022; ER10–2641–050. 

Applicants: Oleander Power Project, 
Limited Partnership, Oleander Power 
Project, L.P., Florida Power & Light 
Company. 

Description: Notice of Change in 
Status of Florida Power & Light 
Company et al. 

Filed Date: 1/29/25. 
Accession Number: 20250129–5273. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/19/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER20–2101–003; 

ER23–2407–003. 
Applicants: Strauss Wind, LLC, Fern 

Solar LLC. 
Description: Notice of Non-Material 

Change in Status of Fern Solar LLC, et 
al. 

Filed Date: 1/29/25. 
Accession Number: 20250129–5267. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/19/25. 

Docket Numbers: ER23–2066–003; 
ER24–1336–002. 

Applicants: White Wing Ranch North, 
LLC, Antelope Valley BESS, LLC. 

Description: Notice of Non-Material 
Change in Status of Antelope Valley 
BESS, LLC et al. 

Filed Date: 1/29/25. 
Accession Number: 20250129–5261. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/19/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER24–708–002. 
Applicants: Transource Oklahoma, 

LLC, Southwest Power Pool, Inc. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Southwest Power Pool, Inc. submits 
tariff filing per 35: Transource 
Oklahoma Second Amended Order 864 
Compliance Filing to be effective 7/1/ 
2021. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5066. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER24–1163–001; 

ER10–1514–007; ER15–2534–002; 
ER17–1840–002; ER22–784–006; ER24– 
255–002. 

Applicants: CPV Stagecoach Solar, 
LLC, CPV Maple Hill Solar, LLC, Canton 
Mountain Wind, LLC, Saddleback Ridge 
Wind, LLC, CPV Keenan II Renewable 
Energy Company, LLC, CPV Backbone 
Solar, LLC. 

Description: Notice of Change in 
Status of CPV Backbone Solar, LLC et al. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5273. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER24–1738–002; 

ER24–1593–001. 
Applicants: Randolph Solar Park LLC, 

Ragsdale Solar, LLC. 
Description: Notice of Non-Material 

Change in Status of Ragsdale Solar, LLC 
et al. 

Filed Date: 1/29/25. 
Accession Number: 20250129–5262. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/19/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER24–2179–001; 

ER24–1832–002; ER24–1941–002; 
ER24–2824–003; ER25–960–001. 

Applicants: RE Papago PV LLC, RE 
Papago LLC, Liberty County Solar 
Project, LLC, North Fork Solar Project, 
LLC, Bayou Galion Solar Project, LLC. 

Description: Notice of Change in 
Status of Bayou Galion Solar Project, 
LLC et al. 

Filed Date: 1/29/25. 
Accession Number: 20250129–5265. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/19/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–503–002. 
Applicants: Public Service Company 

of Colorado. 
Description: Tariff Amendment: 

2025–01–31—PSC—UPI—T–2024–8— 
Farren—SISA—853—Deficiency to be 
effective 1/20/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 16:22 Feb 06, 2025 Jkt 265001 PO 00000 Frm 00015 Fmt 4703 Sfmt 4703 E:\FR\FM\07FEN1.SGM 07FEN1lo
tte

r 
on

 D
S

K
11

X
Q

N
23

P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 N
O

T
IC

E
S

1

https://elibrary.ferc.gov/idmws/search/fercgensearch.asp
https://elibrary.ferc.gov/idmws/search/fercgensearch.asp
https://elibrary.ferc.gov/idmws/search/fercgensearch.asp
https://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/efiling/filing-req.pdf
https://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/efiling/filing-req.pdf
mailto:OPP@ferc.gov


9148 Federal Register / Vol. 90, No. 25 / Friday, February 7, 2025 / Notices 

Accession Number: 20250131–5171. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1083–000. 
Applicants: Holtec Palisades, LLC. 
Description: Request for Limited 

Waiver of Tariff Provisions of Holtec 
Palisades, LLC. 

Filed Date: 1/28/25. 
Accession Number: 20250128–5258. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1107–000. 
Applicants: SloughHouse Solar, LLC. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Application for Market-Based Rate 
Authority to be effective 3/15/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5243. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1108–000. 
Applicants: Basin Electric Power 

Cooperative. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: Basin 

Electric Submission of Revisions to 
Attachment E to be effective 3/31/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5247. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1109–000. 
Applicants: Pacific Gas and Electric 

Company. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: WDT 

SA 275: City and County of San 
Francisco Q4 2024 Filing to be effective 
12/31/2024. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5000. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1110–000. 
Applicants: Entergy Louisiana, LLC. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: ELL- 

Concordia LBA Agreement to be 
effective 4/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5001. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1111–000. 
Applicants: Entergy Louisiana, LLC. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: ELL– 

JDEC LBA Agreement to be effective 4/ 
1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5002. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1112–000. 
Applicants: Entergy Louisiana, LLC. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: ELL– 

SLEMCO LBA Agreement to be effective 
4/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5003. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1113–000. 
Applicants: New York Independent 

System Operator, Inc., Niagara Mohawk 
Power Corporation. 

Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: New 
York Independent System Operator, Inc. 

submits tariff filing per 35.13(a)(2)(iii: 
NYISO—National Grid Joint 205: 
Amended SGIA Hawthorn Solar SA2756 
to be effective 1/16/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5017. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1114–000. 
Applicants: Green Mountain Power 

Corporation. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: GMP; 

Refund for Post-Retirement Benefits 
Other Than Pensions to be effective 4/ 
1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5035. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1116–000. 
Applicants: Southwest Power Pool, 

Inc. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

607R48 Evergy Kansas Central, Inc. 
NITSA NOA to be effective 1/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5083. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1117–000. 
Applicants: Southwest Power Pool, 

Inc. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

1276R36 Evergy Metro NITSA NOA to 
be effective 1/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5106. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1118–000. 
Applicants: PJM Interconnection, 

L.L.C. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Original GIA, Service Agreement No. 
7514; AG1–307 to be effective 1/3/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5128. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1119–000. 
Applicants: Consolidated Edison 

Company of New York, Inc. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 2025 

ICAP Peak Hour to be effective 2/1/ 
2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5177. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1120–000. 
Applicants: Virginia Electric and 

Power Company. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Virginia Electric and Power Co. submits 
WDSA SA No. 7285 to be effective 1/3/ 
2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5190. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1121–000. 
Applicants: Virginia Electric and 

Power Company. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Virginia Electric and Power Co. submits 

WDSA SA No. 7286 to be effective 1/3/ 
2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5194. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1122–000. 
Applicants: New England Power Pool 

Participants Committee. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: Feb 

2025 Membership Filing to be effective 
1/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5204. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1123–000. 
Applicants: Power Authority of the 

State of New York, Niagara Mohawk 
Power Corporation, New York 
Independent System Operator, Inc. 

Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: New 
York Independent System Operator, Inc. 
submits tariff filing per 35.13(a)(2)(iii: 
NYISO—National Grid—NYPA Joint 
205: TPIA for NNYPTP, SA 2870 (CEII) 
to be effective 1/16/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5205. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
The filings are accessible in the 

Commission’s eLibrary system (https://
elibrary.ferc.gov/idmws/search/ 
fercgensearch.asp) by querying the 
docket number. 

Any person desiring to intervene, to 
protest, or to answer a complaint in any 
of the above proceedings must file in 
accordance with Rules 211, 214, or 206 
of the Commission’s Regulations (18 
CFR 385.211, 385.214, or 385.206) on or 
before 5:00 p.m. Eastern time on the 
specified comment date. Protests may be 
considered, but intervention is 
necessary to become a party to the 
proceeding. 

eFiling is encouraged. More detailed 
information relating to filing 
requirements, interventions, protests, 
service, and qualifying facilities filings 
can be found at: http://www.ferc.gov/ 
docs-filing/efiling/filing-req.pdf. For 
other information, call (866) 208–3676 
(toll free). For TTY, call (202) 502–8659. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, environmental justice 
communities, Tribal members and 
others, access publicly available 
information and navigate Commission 
processes. For public inquiries and 
assistance with making filings such as 
interventions, comments, or requests for 
rehearing, the public is encouraged to 
contact OPP at (202) 502–6595 or OPP@
ferc.gov. 
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Dated: January 31, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02322 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

Combined Notice of Filings 

Take notice that the Commission has 
received the following Natural Gas 
Pipeline Rate and Refund Report filings: 

Filings Instituting Proceedings 

Docket Numbers: PR25–29–000. 
Applicants: Public Service Company 

of Colorado. 
Description: 284.123(g) Rate Filing: 

Statement of Rates_01–01–2025 to be 
effective 1/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5096. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
284.123(g) Protest: 5 p.m. ET 4/1/25. 
Docket Numbers: PR25–30–000. 
Applicants: NorthWestern 

Corporation. 
Description: 284.123 Rate Filing: 

Revised Transportation and Storage 
Rates(Annual Tax Tracker) to be 
effective. 1/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5165. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–421–000. 
Applicants: MarkWest Pioneer, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5158. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/11/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–422–000. 
Applicants: Rendezvous Pipeline 

Company, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5159. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/11/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–423–000. 
Applicants: Western Gas Interstate 

Company. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance to be effective 
8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5163. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/11/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–424–000. 
Applicants: El Paso Natural Gas 

Company, L.L.C. 

Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 
Negotiated Rate Agreement Update 
(Sempra Feb 2025) to be effective 2/1/ 
2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5214. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/11/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–425–000. 
Applicants: Northwest Pipeline LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5225. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/11/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–426–000. 
Applicants: El Paso Natural Gas 

Company, L.L.C. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 

Negotiated Rate Agreement Update 
(SoCal Feb–Apr 2025) to be effective 2/ 
1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5235. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/11/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–427–000. 
Applicants: High Point Gas 

Transmission, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: High 

Point Gas NAESB 4.0 Compliance Filing 
to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5257. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/11/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–428–000. 
Applicants: Destin Pipeline Company, 

L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: Destin 

Pipeline Company NAESB 4.0 
Compliance Filing to be effective 8/1/ 
2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5258. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/11/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–429–000. 
Applicants: Chandeleur Pipe Line, 

LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Chandeleur NAESB 4.0 Compliance 
Filing to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5261. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/11/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–430–000. 
Applicants: Mountain Valley 

Pipeline, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 

Negotiated Rate Agreement Filing—2/1/ 
2025 to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5004. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–431–000. 
Applicants: Great Lakes Gas 

Transmission Limited Partnership. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: Non- 

Conforming/Negotiated Rates Clean-Up 
to be effective 3/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5032. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–432–000. 
Applicants: Algonquin Gas 

Transmission, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Algonquin Order 587–AA (Docket 
RM96–1–043) Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5040. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–433–000. 
Applicants: Maritimes & Northeast 

Pipeline, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Maritimes Order 587–AA (Docket 
RM96–1–043) Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5042. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–434–000. 
Applicants: Millennium Pipeline 

Company, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 

Negotiated Rate Amendment—Shell 
309614 to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5045. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–435–000. 
Applicants: Cove Point LNG, LP. 
Description: Compliance filing: Cove 

Point—NAESB Version 4.0 Compliance 
to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5048. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–436–000. 
Applicants: Carolina Gas 

Transmission, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

CGT—NAESB Version 4.0 Compliance 
to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5050. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–437–000. 
Applicants: Eastern Gas Transmission 

and Storage, Inc. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

EGTS—NAESB Version 4.0 Compliance 
to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5052. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–438–000. 
Applicants: Transcontinental Gas 

Pipe Line Company, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: Rate 

Schedule S–2 Tracker Filing eff 2–1– 
2025 to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5060. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
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Docket Numbers: RP25–439–000. 
Applicants: Transwestern Pipeline 

Company, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: Alert 

Day Refund Report on 1–31–2025 to be 
effective N/A. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5061. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–440–000. 
Applicants: National Fuel Gas Supply 

Corporation. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

National Fuel NAESB Version 4 CF 
(Order No. 587–AA) to be effective 8/1/ 
2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5074. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–441–000. 
Applicants: Northern Natural Gas 

Company. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 

20250131 Annual PRA to be effective 4/ 
1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5081. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–442–000. 
Applicants: Empire Pipeline, Inc. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Empire NAESB Version 4 (Order No. 
587–AA) to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5085. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–443–000. 
Applicants: NEXUS Gas 

Transmission, LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 

Negotiated Rates—Various Releases—eff 
2–1–2025 to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5090. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–444–000. 
Applicants: OkTex Pipeline 

Company, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5102. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–445–000. 
Applicants: RH energytrans, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB Compliance Filing 2025 to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5110. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–446–000. 
Applicants: Guardian Pipeline, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5115. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–447–000. 
Applicants: Northern Natural Gas 

Company. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 

20250131 Negotiated Rates to be 
effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5117. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–448–000. 
Applicants: Viking Gas Transmission 

Company. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5125. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–449–000. 
Applicants: Midwestern Gas 

Transmission Company. 
Description: Compliance filing: Order 

No. 587–AA Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5141. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–450–000. 
Applicants: Southern Natural Gas 

Company, L.L.C. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: SNG 

NRA Filing—Jan 2025 to be effective 2/ 
1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5160. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–451–000. 
Applicants: Rockies Express Pipeline 

LLC. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: REX 

2025–01–31 Negotiated Rate 
Agreements to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5161. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–452–000. 
Applicants: Ruby Pipeline, L.L.C. 
Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: RP 

2025–01–31 FL&U and EPC Rate 
Adjustment to be effective 3/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5164. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–453–000. 
Applicants: Bobcat Gas Storage. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Bobcat Order 587–AA (Docket RM96–1– 
043) Compliance Filing to be effective 8/ 
1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5166. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–454–000. 
Applicants: Alliance Pipeline L.P. 

Description: 4(d) Rate Filing: 
Negotiated Rates—Releases, Extensions 
2025–02–01 to be effective 2/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5168. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–455–000. 
Applicants: Egan Hub Storage, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: Egan 

Hub Order 587–AA (Docket RM96–1– 
043) Compliance Filing to be effective 8/ 
1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5170. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–456–000. 
Applicants: Cadeville Gas Storage 

LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

NAESB 4.0 Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5174. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–457–000. 
Applicants: Ozark Gas Transmission, 

L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: Ozark 

Gas Transmission NAESB Compliance 
Filing to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5184. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–458–000. 
Applicants: BBT AlaTenn, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: BBT 

(Ala-Tenn) NAESB 4.0 Compliance 
Filing to be effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5185. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Docket Numbers: RP25–459–000. 
Applicants: BBT Midla, LLC. 
Description: Compliance filing: BBT 

(Midla) NAESB Compliance Filing to be 
effective 8/1/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5187. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/12/25. 
Any person desiring to intervene, to 

protest, or to answer a complaint in any 
of the above proceedings must file in 
accordance with Rules 211, 214, or 206 
of the Commission’s Regulations (18 
CFR 385.211, 385.214, or 385.206) on or 
before 5:00 p.m. Eastern time on the 
specified comment date. Protests may be 
considered, but intervention is 
necessary to become a party to the 
proceeding. 

Filings in Existing Proceedings 

Docket Numbers: RP24–617–002. 
Applicants: East Tennessee Natural 

Gas, LLC. 
Description: 2022–2023 Revised 

Cashout Report of East Tennessee 
Natural Gas, LLC. 
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1 As detailed in 18 CFR part 101 (Uniform System 
of Accounts Prescribed for Public Utilities and 
Licensees Subject to the Provision of the Federal 
Power Act, General Instructions) and 18 CFR 141.1. 

2 Burden is defined as the total time, effort, or 
financial resources expended by persons to 
generate, maintain, retain, disclose, or provide 
information to or for a Federal agency. For further 
explanation of what is included in the information 
collection burden, refer to 5 CFR 1320.3. The 
burden hours and costs are rounded for ease of 
presentation. 

3 The cost is based on FERC’s 2025 Commission- 
wide average salary cost (salary plus benefits) of 
$103.00/hour. The Commission staff believes the 
FERC FTE (full-time equivalent) average cost for 
wages plus benefits is representative of the 
corresponding cost for the industry respondents. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5270. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/11/25. 
Any person desiring to protest in any 

the above proceedings must file in 
accordance with Rule 211 of the 
Commission’s Regulations (18 CFR 
385.211) on or before 5:00 p.m. Eastern 
time on the specified comment date. 

The filings are accessible in the 
Commission’s eLibrary system (https://
elibrary.ferc.gov/idmws/search/ 
fercgensearch.asp) by querying the 
docket number. 

eFiling is encouraged. More detailed 
information relating to filing 
requirements, interventions, protests, 
service, and qualifying facilities filings 
can be found at: http://www.ferc.gov/ 
docs-filing/efiling/filing-req.pdf. For 
other information, call (866) 208–3676 
(toll free). For TTY, call (202) 502–8659. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, environmental justice 
communities, Tribal members and 
others, access publicly available 
information and navigate Commission 
processes. For public inquiries and 
assistance with making filings such as 
interventions, comments, or requests for 
rehearing, the public is encouraged to 
contact OPP at (202) 502–6595 or OPP@
ferc.gov. 

Dated: January 31, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02320 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. IC25–7–000] 

Commission Information Collection 
Activities (FERC Form Nos. 1,1–F, and 
3–Q); Comment Request; Extentions 

AGENCY: Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, Department of Energy. 
ACTION: Notice of information 
collections and request for comments. 

SUMMARY: In compliance with the 
requirements of the Paperwork 
Reduction Act of 1995 (PRA), the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
(Commission or FERC) is soliciting 

public comment on the currently 
approved information collections, FERC 
Form Nos. 1 (Annual Report of Major 
Electric Utilities, Licensees, and 
Others), 1–F (Annual Report for 
Nonmajor Public Utilities and 
Licensees), and 3–Q (Quarterly 
Financial Report of Electric Utilities, 
Licensees, and Natural Gas Companies). 
DATES: Comments on the collections of 
information are due April 8, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: You may submit comments 
(identified by Docket No. IC25–7–000 
and the form) by either of the following 
methods: 

• Electronic filing: Documents must 
be filed in acceptable native 
applications and print-to-PDF, but not 
in scanned or picture format. 

• For those unable to file 
electronically, comments may be filed 
by USPS mail or by hand (including 
courier) delivery: 

Æ Mail via U.S. Postal Service only, 
addressed to: Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, Secretary of the 
Commission, 888 First Street NE, 
Washington, DC 20426. 

Æ Hand (including courier) delivery 
to: Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, 12225 Wilkins Avenue, 
Rockville, MD 20852. 

Instructions: All submissions must be 
formatted and filed in accordance with 
submission guidelines at: http://
www.ferc.gov. For user assistance, 
contact FERC Online Support by email 
at ferconlinesupport@ferc.gov, or by 
phone at (866) 208–3676 (toll-free). 

Docket: Users interested in receiving 
automatic notification of activity in this 
docket or in viewing/downloading 
comments and issuances in this docket 
may do so at http://www.ferc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Kayla Williams may be reached by 
email at DataClearance@FERC.gov, and 
telephone at (202) 502–6468. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Type of Request: Three-year 
extensions of FERC Form Nos. 1, 1–F, 
and 3–Q, with no changes to the current 
reporting requirements. 

FERC Form No. 1, Annual Report of 
Major Electric Utilities, Licensees, and 
Others 

OMB Control Nos. and Titles: 1902– 
0021 (FERC Form No. 1, Annual Report 
of Major Electric Utilities, Licensees, 
and Others). 

Abstract: FERC Form No. 1 is a 
comprehensive financial and operating 
report submitted annually for electric 

rate regulation, market oversight 
analysis, and financial audits by major 
electric utilities, licensees, and others. A 
major electric utility, licensee, or other 
reporter is defined as having in each of 
the last three consecutive calendar 
years, sales or transmission services that 
exceed one of the following: (1) one 
million megawatt-hours of total sales; 
(2) 100 megawatt-hours of sales for 
resale; (3) 500 megawatt-hours of power 
exchanges delivered; or (4) 500 
megawatt-hours of wheeling for others 
(deliveries plus losses).1 

FERC Form No. 1 is designed to 
collect financial and operational 
information and is made available to the 
public. FERC Form No. 1 includes a 
basic set of financial statements: 

• Comparative Balance Sheet, 
• Statement of Income, 
• Statement of Retained Earnings, 
• Statement of Cash Flows, 
• Statement of Accumulated 

Comprehensive Income and Hedging 
Activities, and 

• Notes to Financial Statements. 
Supporting schedules contain: 
• Supplementary information and 

outlines of corporate structure and 
governance, 

• Information on formula rates, and 
• Description of important changes 

during the year. 
Other schedules provide: 
• Information on revenues and the 

related quantities of electric sales and 
electricity transmitted, 

• Account balances for all electric 
operation and maintenance expenses, 

• Selected plant cost data, and 
• Other statistical information. 
Type of Respondent: Major electric 

utilities. 
Estimate of Annual Burden: 2 The 

Commission estimates the annual 
burden and cost 3 for FERC Form No. 1 
as follows: 
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4 As detailed in 18 CFR part 101 (Uniform System 
of Accounts Prescribed for Public Utilities and 
Licensees Subject to the Provision of the Federal 
Power Act, General Instructions) and 18 CFR 141.2. 

5 18 CFR 260.1(b) states that for natural gas 
companies as defined by the Natural Gas Act, Major 
pertains to a company whose combined gas 
transported or stored for a fee exceed 50 million Dth 
in each of the three previous calendar years. 18 CFR 
260.2(b) states that for natural gas companies as 

defined by the Natural Gas Act, Non-Major pertains 
to a company not meeting the filing threshold for 
FERC Form No. 2, but having total gas sales or 
volume transactions exceeding 200,000 Dth in each 
of the three previous calendar years. 

Requirements Number of 
respondents 

Average 
annual 

number of 
responses 

Total 
number of 
responses 

Average annual burden (hrs.) & 
cost per response 

($) 

Total average annual burden 
(hrs.) & total annual cost 

($) 

Cost per 
respondent 

($) 

(1) (2) (1) * (2) = (3) (4) (3) * (4) = (5) (5) ÷ (1) 

Form 1 ........................ 216 1 216 1,168; $120,304 ............................ 252,288; $25,985,664 ................... $120,304 

Total .................... ........................ ........................ ........................ ....................................................... 252,288; $25,985,664 ................... 120,304 

FERC Form No. 1–F, Annual Report for 
Nonmajor Public Utilities and Licensees 

OMB Control Nos. and Titles: 1902– 
0029 (FERC Form No. 1–F, Annual 
Report for Nonmajor Public Utilities and 
Licensees). 

Abstract: FERC Form No. 1–F is a 
financial and operating report submitted 
annually for electric rate regulation, 
market oversight analysis, and financial 
audits by Nonmajor electric utilities and 
licensees. Nonmajor is defined as 
utilities and licensees that are not 
classified as Major, and having total 
sales in each of the last three 

consecutive years of 10,000 megawatt- 
hours or more.4 

FERC Form No. 1–F is designed to 
collect financial and operational 
information and is made available to the 
public. FERC Form No. 1–F includes a 
basic set of financial statements: 

• Comparative Balance Sheet, 
• Statement of Retained Earnings, 
• Statement of Cash Flows, 
• Statement of Comprehensive 

Income and Hedging Activities, and 
• Notes to Financial Statements. 
Supporting schedules contain: 
• Supplementary information and 

include revenues and the related 

quantities of electric sales and 
electricity transmitted, 

• Account balances for all electric 
operation and maintenance expenses, 

• Selected plant cost data, and 
• Other statistical information. 
Type of Respondent: Nonmajor 

electric utilities. 
Estimate of Annual Burden: The 

estimated annual burden and cost 
follow. (The estimated hourly cost used 
for FERC Form No. 1–F is $103 (for 
wages plus benefits) and is described 
above, under FERC Form No. 1.) The 
burden hours and costs are rounded for 
ease of presentation. 

Requirements Number of 
respondents 

Average 
annual 

number of 
responses 

Total 
number of 
responses 

Average annual burden (hrs.) & 
cost per response 

($) 

Total average annual burden 
(hrs.) & total annual cost 

($) 

Cost per 
respondent 

($) 

(1) (2) (1) * (2) = (3) (4) (3) * (4) = (5) (5) ÷ (1) 

Form 1F ...................... 2 1 2 122; $12,566 ................................. 244; $25,132 ................................. $12,566 

Total .................... ........................ ........................ ........................ ....................................................... 244; $25,132 ................................. 12,566 

FERC Form No. 3–Q, Quarterly 
Financial Report of Electric Utilities, 
Licensees, and Natural Gas Companies 

OMB Control Nos. and Titles: 1902– 
0205 (FERC Form No. 3–Q, Quarterly 
Financial Report of Electric Utilities, 
Licensees, and Natural Gas Companies). 

Abstract: FERC Form No. 3–Q is a 
quarterly financial and operating report 
for rate regulation, market oversight 
analysis, and financial audits which 
supplements (a) FERC Form Nos. 1 and 
1–F, for the electric industry, or (b) 
FERC Form No. 2 (Annual Report for 
Major Natural Gas Companies; OMB 
Control No. 1902–0028) and FERC Form 
No. 2–A (Annual Report for Nonmajor 
Natural Gas Companies; OMB Control 
No. 1902–0030), for the natural gas 
industry. FERC Form No. 3–Q is 
submitted for all Major and Nonmajor 

electric utilities, licensees, and natural 
gas companies.5 

FERC Form No. 3–Q includes a basic 
set of financial statements: 

• Comparative Balance Sheet, 
• Statement of Income and Statement 

of Retained Earnings, 
• Statement of Cash Flows, 
• Statement of Comprehensive 

Income and Hedging Activities, and 
• Supporting schedules containing 

supplementary information. 
Electric respondents report: 
• Revenues and the related quantities 

of electric sales and electricity 
transmitted, 

• Account balances for all electric 
operation and maintenance expenses, 

• Selected plant cost data, and 
• Other statistical information. 
Natural gas respondents report: 

• Monthly and quarterly quantities of 
gas transported and associated revenues, 

• Storage, terminalling, and 
processing services, 

• Natural gas customer accounts and 
details of service, and 

• Operational expenses, depreciation, 
depletion, and amortization of gas plant. 

Type of Respondent: Major and 
nonmajor electric utilities, licensees, 
and natural gas companies. 

Estimate of Annual Burden: The 
estimated annual burden and cost (as 
rounded) follow. (The estimated hourly 
cost used for FERC Form No. 3–Q is 
$103 (for wages plus benefits) and is 
described above, under FERC Form No. 
1.) The burden hours and costs are 
rounded for ease of presentation. The 
quarterly filings are generally a subset of 
the annual filings. 
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BURDEN TABLE—FORM 3–Q—ELECTRIC AND GAS 

Requirements Number of 
respondents 

Average 
annual 

number of 
responses 

Total 
number of 
responses 

Average annual burden (hrs.) & 
cost per response 

($) 

Total average annual burden 
(hrs.) & total annual cost 

($) 

Cost per 
respondent 

($) 

(1) (2) (1) * (2) = (3) (4) (3) * (4) = (5) (5) ÷ (1) 

Form 3–Q (Electric) .... 218 3 654 168; $17,304 ................................. 109,872; $11,316,816 ................... $51,912 

Form 3–Q (Gas) ......... 148 3 444 168; $17,304 ................................. 74,592; $7,682,976 ....................... 51,912 

Total .................... ........................ ........................ ........................ ....................................................... 184,464; $18,999,792 ................... 51,912 

For FERC Form No. 3–Q (electric and 
natural gas), the total average annual 
burden hours is 184,464, and the total 
annual cost is $18,999,792. 

Comments: Comments are invited on: 
(1) whether the collections of 
information are necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
Commission, including whether the 
information will have practical utility; 
(2) the accuracy of the agency’s 
estimates of the burden and cost of the 
collections of information, including the 
validity of the methodology and 
assumptions used; (3) ways to enhance 
the quality, utility, and clarity of the 
information collections; and (4) ways to 
minimize the burden of the collections 
of information on those who are to 
respond, including the use of automated 
collection techniques or other forms of 
information technology. 

Dated: February 3, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02356 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. CP25–37–000] 

Transwestern Pipeline Company, LLC; 
Notice of Scoping Period Requesting 
Comments on Environmental Issues 
for the Proposed WT–0 Compressor 
Station Project 

The staff of the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC or 
Commission) will prepare an 
environmental document, that will 
discuss the environmental impacts of 
the WT–0 Compressor Station involving 
construction and operation of facilities 
by Transwestern Pipeline Company, 
LLC (Transwestern) in Chaves County, 
New Mexico. The Commission will use 
this environmental document in its 
decision-making process to determine 
whether the project is in the public 
convenience and necessity. 

This notice announces the opening of 
the scoping process the Commission 
will use to gather input from the public 
and interested agencies regarding the 
project. As part of the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 
review process, the Commission takes 
into account concerns the public may 
have about proposals and the 
environmental impacts that could result 
from its action whenever it considers 
the issuance of a Certificate of Public 
Convenience and Necessity. This 
gathering of public input is referred to 
as ‘‘scoping.’’ The main goal of the 
scoping process is to focus the analysis 
in the environmental document on the 
important environmental issues. 
Additional information about the 
Commission’s NEPA process is 
described below in the NEPA Process 
and the Environmental Document 
section of this notice. 

By this notice, the Commission 
requests public comments on the scope 
of issues to address in the 
environmental document. To ensure 
that your comments are timely and 
properly recorded, please submit your 
comments so that the Commission 
receives them in Washington, DC, on or 
before 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on March 
5th, 2025. Comments may be submitted 
in written form. Further details on how 
to submit comments are provided in the 
Public Participation section of this 
notice. 

Your comments should focus on the 
potential environmental effects, 
reasonable alternatives, and measures to 
avoid or lessen environmental impacts. 
Your input will help the Commission 
staff determine what issues they need to 
evaluate in the environmental 
document. Commission staff will 
consider all written comments during 
the preparation of the environmental 
document. 

If you submitted comments on this 
project to the Commission before the 
opening of this docket on December 20, 
2024, you will need to file those 
comments in Docket No. CP25–37–000 
to ensure they are considered as part of 
this proceeding. 

This notice is being sent to the 
Commission’s current environmental 
mailing list for this project. State and 
local government representatives should 
notify their constituents of this 
proposed project and encourage them to 
comment on their areas of concern. 

If you are a landowner receiving this 
notice, a pipeline company 
representative may contact you about 
the acquisition of an easement to 
construct, operate, and maintain the 
proposed facilities. The company would 
seek to negotiate a mutually acceptable 
easement agreement. You are not 
required to enter into an agreement. 
However, if the Commission approves 
the project, the Natural Gas Act conveys 
the right of eminent domain to the 
company. Therefore, if you and the 
company do not reach an easement 
agreement, the pipeline company could 
initiate condemnation proceedings in 
court. In such instances, compensation 
would be determined by a judge in 
accordance with state law. The 
Commission does not subsequently 
grant, exercise, or oversee the exercise 
of that eminent domain authority. The 
courts have exclusive authority to 
handle eminent domain cases; the 
Commission has no jurisdiction over 
these matters. 

Transwestern provided landowners 
with a fact sheet prepared by the FERC 
entitled ‘‘An Interstate Natural Gas 
Facility On My Land? What Do I Need 
To Know?’’ which addresses typically 
asked questions, including the use of 
eminent domain and how to participate 
in the Commission’s proceedings. This 
fact sheet along with other landowner 
topics of interest are available for 
viewing on the FERC website 
(www.ferc.gov) under the Natural Gas, 
Landowner Topics link. 

Public Participation 

There are three methods you can use 
to submit your comments to the 
Commission. Please carefully follow 
these instructions so that your 
comments are properly recorded. The 
Commission encourages electronic filing 
of comments and has staff available to 
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1 The appendices referenced in this notice will 
not appear in the Federal Register. Copies of the 
appendices were sent to all those receiving this 
notice in the mail and are available at www.ferc.gov 
using the link called ‘‘eLibrary.’’ For instructions on 
connecting to eLibrary, refer to the last page of this 
notice. For assistance, contact FERC at 
FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov or call toll free, (886) 
208–3676 or TTY (202) 502–8659. 

2 For instructions on connecting to eLibrary, refer 
to the last page of this notice. 

3 Cooperating agency responsibilities are 
addressed in Section 107(a)(3) of NEPA (42 U.S. 
Code 4336(a)(3)). 

assist you at (866) 208–3676 or 
FercOnlineSupport@ferc.gov. 

(1) You can file your comments 
electronically using the eComment 
feature, which is located on the 
Commission’s website (www.ferc.gov) 
under the link to FERC Online. Using 
eComment is an easy method for 
submitting brief, text-only comments on 
a project; 

(2) You can file your comments 
electronically by using the eFiling 
feature, which is located on the 
Commission’s website (www.ferc.gov) 
under the link to FERC Online. With 
eFiling, you can provide comments in a 
variety of formats by attaching them as 
a file with your submission. New 
eFiling users must first create an 
account by clicking on ‘‘eRegister.’’ You 
will be asked to select the type of filing 
you are making; a comment on a 
particular project is considered a 
‘‘Comment on a Filing’’; or 

(3) You can file a paper copy of your 
comments by mailing them to the 
Commission. Be sure to reference the 
project docket number (CP25–37–000) 
on your letter. Submissions sent via the 
U.S. Postal Service must be addressed 
to: Debbie-Anne A. Reese, Secretary, 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, 
888 First Street NE, Room 1A, 
Washington, DC 20426. Submissions 
sent via any other carrier must be 
addressed to: Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary, Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, 12225 Wilkins Avenue, 
Rockville, MD 20852. 

Additionally, the Commission offers a 
free service called eSubscription which 
makes it easy to stay informed of all 
issuances and submittals regarding the 
dockets/projects to which you 
subscribe. These instant email 
notifications are the fastest way to 
receive notification and provide a link 
to the document files which can reduce 
the amount of time you spend 
researching proceedings. Go to https://
www.ferc.gov/ferc-online/overview to 
register for eSubscription. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, community organizations, 
Tribal members, and others, access 
publicly available information and 
navigate Commission processes. For 
public inquiries and assistance with 
making filings such as interventions, 
comments, or requests for rehearing, the 
public is encouraged to contact OPP at 
(202) 502–6595 or OPP@ferc.gov. 

Summary of the Proposed Project 

Transwestern proposes to construct, 
own, operate, and maintain the 
proposed WT–0 Compressor Station 
Project facilities in Chaves County, New 
Mexico. The WT–0 Compressor Station 
would provide about 80,000 million 
British thermal units per day of new 
firm transportation capacity, including 
receipts of natural gas in Transwestern’s 
West Texas Lateral Central Zone and 
deliveries on the Transwestern 
Panhandle Lateral. 

The WT–0 Compressor Station would 
consist of the following facilities: 

• a new compressor station including 
one new Solar Mars 90 natural gas 
turbine-driven compressor unit 
providing 13,220 horsepower; one 
natural-gas-driven micro turbine for on- 
site power generation; one backup 
generator; and associated buildings and 
appurtenances; 

• metering facilities, including an 
inlet filter separator and fuel gas 
measurement skid; 

• tie-in to Transwestern’s existing 24- 
inch-diameter dual lateral pipeline in its 
existing corridor; and 

• a new, permanent access driveway 
off Harriet Road and extending into the 
project site. 

The general location of the project 
facilities is shown in appendix 
document.1 

Land Requirements for Construction 

Construction of the proposed facilities 
would disturb about 11.8 acres of land 
for the aboveground facilities and the 
pipeline. Following construction, 
Transwestern would maintain 10.1 acres 
for permanent operation of the project’s 
facilities; the remaining acreage would 
be restored and revert to former uses. 
About 16.1 percent of the proposed 
pipeline route parallels existing 
pipeline, utility, or road rights-of-way. 

NEPA Process and the Environmental 
Document 

Any environmental document issued 
by the Commission will discuss impacts 
that could occur as a result of the 
construction and operation of the 
proposed project under the relevant 
general resource areas: 

• geology and soils; 
• water resources and wetlands; 
• vegetation and wildlife; 

• threatened and endangered species; 
• cultural resources; 
• land use; 
• socioeconomics; 
• air quality and noise; and 
• reliability and safety. 
Commission staff will also evaluate 

reasonable alternatives to the proposed 
project or portions of the project and 
make recommendations on how to 
lessen or avoid impacts on the various 
resource areas. Your comments will 
help Commission staff identify and 
focus on the issues that might have an 
effect on the human environment and 
potentially eliminate others from further 
study and discussion in the 
environmental document. 

Following this scoping period, 
Commission staff will determine 
whether to prepare an Environmental 
Assessment (EA) or an Environmental 
Impact Statement (EIS). The EA or the 
EIS will present Commission staff’s 
independent analysis of the issues. If 
Commission staff prepares an EA, a 
Notice of Schedule for the Preparation 
of an Environmental Assessment will be 
issued. The EA may be issued for an 
allotted public comment period. The 
Commission would consider timely 
comments on the EA before making its 
decision regarding the proposed project. 
If Commission staff prepares an EIS, a 
Notice of Intent to Prepare an EIS/ 
Notice of Schedule will be issued, 
which will open up an additional 
comment period. Staff will then prepare 
a draft EIS which will be issued for 
public comment. Commission staff will 
consider all timely comments received 
during the comment period on the draft 
EIS and revise the document, as 
necessary, before issuing a final EIS. 
Any EA or draft and final EIS will be 
available in electronic format in the 
public record through eLibrary 2 and the 
Commission’s natural gas 
environmental documents web page 
(https://www.ferc.gov/industries-data/ 
natural-gas/environment/ 
environmental-documents). If 
eSubscribed, you will receive instant 
email notification when the 
environmental document is issued. 

With this notice, the Commission is 
asking agencies with jurisdiction by law 
and/or special expertise with respect to 
the environmental issues of this project 
to formally cooperate in the preparation 
of the environmental document.3 
Agencies that would like to request 
cooperating agency status should follow 
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4 The Advisory Council on Historic Preservation’s 
regulations are at Title 36, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 800. Those regulations define 
historic properties as any prehistoric or historic 
district, site, building, structure, or object included 
in or eligible for inclusion in the National Register 
of Historic Places. 

1 The unique identification number for 
documents relating to this environmental review is 
EAXX–019–20–000–1728548635. 

the instructions for filing comments 
provided under the Public Participation 
section of this notice. 

Consultation Under Section 106 of the 
National Historic Preservation Act 

In accordance with the Advisory 
Council on Historic Preservation’s 
implementing regulations for section 
106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act, the Commission is 
using this notice to initiate consultation 
with the New Mexico State Historic 
Preservation Office, and to solicit their 
views and those of other government 
agencies, interested Indian tribes, and 
the public on the project’s potential 
effects on historic properties.4 The 
environmental document for this project 
will document findings on the impacts 
on historic properties and summarize 
the status of consultations under section 
106. 

Environmental Mailing List 
The environmental mailing list 

includes federal, state, and local 
government representatives and 
agencies; elected officials; 
environmental, community, and public 
interest groups; Native American Tribes; 
other interested parties; and local 
libraries and newspapers. This list also 
includes all affected landowners (as 
defined in the Commission’s 
regulations) who are potential right-of- 
way grantors, whose property may be 
used temporarily for project purposes, 
or who own homes within certain 
distances of aboveground facilities, and 
anyone who submits comments on the 
project and includes a mailing address 
with their comments. Commission staff 
will update the environmental mailing 
list as the analysis proceeds to ensure 
that Commission notices related to this 
environmental review are sent to all 
individuals, organizations, and 
government entities interested in and/or 
potentially affected by the proposed 
project. 

If you need to make changes to your 
name/address, or if you would like to 
remove your name from the mailing list, 
please complete one of the following 
steps: 

(1) Send an email to 
GasProjectAddressChange@ferc.gov 
stating your request. You must include 
the docket number CP25–37–000 in 
your request. If you are requesting a 
change to your address, please be sure 

to include your name and the correct 
address. If you are requesting to delete 
your address from the mailing list, 
please include your name and address 
as it appeared on this notice. This email 
address is unable to accept comments. 

OR 
(2) Return the attached ‘‘Mailing List 

Update Form’’ (appendix 2). 

Additional Information 

Additional information about the 
project is available from the 
Commission’s Office of External Affairs, 
at (866) 208–FERC, or on the FERC 
website at www.ferc.gov using the 
eLibrary link. Click on the eLibrary link, 
click on ‘‘General Search’’ and enter the 
docket number in the ‘‘Docket Number’’ 
field. Be sure you have selected an 
appropriate date range. For assistance, 
please contact FERC Online Support at 
FercOnlineSupport@ferc.gov or (866) 
208–3676, or for TTY, contact (202) 
502–8659. The eLibrary link also 
provides access to the texts of all formal 
documents issued by the Commission, 
such as orders, notices, and 
rulemakings. 

Public sessions or site visits will be 
posted on the Commission’s calendar 
located at https://www.ferc.gov/news- 
events/events along with other related 
information. 

Dated: February 3, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02355 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Project No. 8615–049] 

Fiske Hydro, Inc.; Notice of Availability 
of Environmental Assessment 

In accordance with the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 and 
the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission’s (Commission or FERC) 
regulations, 18 CFR part 380, 
Commission staff reviewed Fiske Hydro, 
Inc.’s application for surrender of 
license for the Fiske Mill Hydroelectric 
Project No. 8615 and have prepared an 
Environmental Assessment (EA) for the 
project.1 The licensee proposes to 
surrender its license and decommission 
the project. The project is located on the 
Ashuelot River in Hinsdale, Cheshire 

County, New Hampshire. The project is 
not located on federal lands. 

The EA contains Commission staff’s 
analysis of the potential environmental 
effects of the proposed surrender, 
alternatives to the proposed action, and 
concludes that the proposed surrender 
would not constitute a major federal 
action that would significantly affect the 
quality of the human environment. 

The EA may be viewed on the 
Commission’s website at http://
www.ferc.gov using the ‘‘eLibrary’’ link. 
Enter the docket number (P–8615) in the 
docket number field to access the 
document. For assistance, contact FERC 
Online Support at FERCOnline 
Support@ferc.gov or toll-free at 1–866– 
208–3676, or for TTY, (202) 502–8659. 

You may also register online at http:// 
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/esubscription.
asp to be notified via email of new 
filings and issuances related to this or 
other pending projects. For assistance, 
contact FERC Online Support. 

All comments must be filed by March 
5, 2025. 

The Commission strongly encourages 
electronic filing. Please file comments 
using the Commission’s eFiling system 
at http://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/ 
efiling.asp. Commenters can submit 
brief comments up to 6,000 characters, 
without prior registration, using the 
eComment system at http://
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/ 
ecomment.asp. For assistance, please 
contact FERC Online Support. In lieu of 
electronic filing, you may submit a 
paper copy. Submissions sent via the 
U.S. Postal Service must be addressed 
to: Debbie-Anne A. Reese, Secretary, 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, 
888 First Street NE, Room 1A, 
Washington, DC 20426. Submissions 
sent via any other carrier must be 
addressed to: Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary, Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, 12225 Wilkins Avenue, 
Rockville, Maryland 20852. The first 
page of any filing should include docket 
number P–8615–049. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, Tribal members, and others 
access publicly available information 
and navigate Commission processes. For 
public inquiries and assistance with 
making filings such as interventions, 
comments, or requests for rehearing, the 
public is encouraged to contact OPP at 
(202) 502–6595 or OPP@ferc.gov. 

For further information, contact Diana 
Shannon at 202–502–6136 or 
diana.shannon@ferc.gov. 
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Dated: February 3, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02353 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

Combined Notice of Filings #2 

Take notice that the Commission 
received the following exempt 
wholesale generator filings: 

Docket Numbers: EG25–95–000. 
Applicants: SloughHouse Solar, LLC. 
Description: SloughHouse Solar, LLC 

submits Notice of Self-Certification of 
Exempt Wholesale Generator Status. 

Filed Date: 1/30/25. 
Accession Number: 20250130–5272. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/20/25. 
Docket Numbers: EG25–96–000. 
Applicants: RWE Clean Energy, LLC. 
Description: Peyton Creek Wind Farm 

II, LLC submits Notice of Self- 
Certification of Exempt Wholesale 
Generator Status. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5234. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: EG25–97–000. 
Applicants: RWE Clean Energy, LLC. 
Description: Stoneridge Solar, LLC 

submits Notice of Self-Certification of 
Exempt Wholesale Generator Status. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5235. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Take notice that the Commission 

received the following electric rate 
filings: 

Docket Numbers: ER21–201–004. 
Applicants: Atlantic City Electric 

Company, PJM Interconnection, L.L.C. 
Description: Compliance filing: 

Atlantic City Electric Company submits 
tariff filing per 35: Atlantic City Electric 
Co. Order No. 864 Clean-Up Revisions 
in ER21–201 to be effective 5/1/2020. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5211. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–700–001. 
Applicants: Southwest Power Pool, 

Inc. 
Description: Tariff Amendment: 

4268R1 Blue Valley Grid GIA— 
Amended Filing to be effective 12/3/ 
2024. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5281. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1124–000. 
Applicants: EdSan 1C Solar, LLC. 

Description: Initial Rate Filing: 
Market-Based Rate Application to be 
effective 4/2/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5227. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1125–000. 
Applicants: Clearwater Energy 

Resources LLC. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: First 

Amendment to the Clearwater East 
Project TSA to be effective 2/1/2024. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5230. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1126–000. 
Applicants: Daylight I, LLC. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Facilities Use Agreement to be effective 
4/2/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5246. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1127–000. 
Applicants: Spring Grove Solar II, 

LLC. 
Description: Initial Rate Filing: 

Market-Based Rate Application to be 
effective 4/2/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5293. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
Docket Numbers: ER25–1128–000. 
Applicants: PJM Interconnection, 

L.L.C. 
Description: 205(d) Rate Filing: 

Replacement Generation 
Interconnection Service to be effective 
4/2/2025. 

Filed Date: 1/31/25. 
Accession Number: 20250131–5365. 
Comment Date: 5 p.m. ET 2/21/25. 
The filings are accessible in the 

Commission’s eLibrary system (https://
elibrary.ferc.gov/idmws/search/ 
fercgensearch.asp) by querying the 
docket number. 

Any person desiring to intervene, to 
protest, or to answer a complaint in any 
of the above proceedings must file in 
accordance with Rules 211, 214, or 206 
of the Commission’s Regulations (18 
CFR 385.211, 385.214, or 385.206) on or 
before 5:00 p.m. Eastern time on the 
specified comment date. Protests may be 
considered, but intervention is 
necessary to become a party to the 
proceeding. 

eFiling is encouraged. More detailed 
information relating to filing 
requirements, interventions, protests, 
service, and qualifying facilities filings 
can be found at: http://www.ferc.gov/ 
docs-filing/efiling/filing-req.pdf. For 
other information, call (866) 208–3676 
(toll free). For TTY, call (202) 502–8659. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 

public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, environmental justice 
communities, Tribal members and 
others, access publicly available 
information and navigate Commission 
processes. For public inquiries and 
assistance with making filings such as 
interventions, comments, or requests for 
rehearing, the public is encouraged to 
contact OPP at (202) 502–6595 or OPP@
ferc.gov. 

Dated: January 31, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02321 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY 

[FRL OP–OFA–164] 

Environmental Impact Statements; 
Notice of Availability 

Responsible Agency: Office of Federal 
Activities, General Information 202– 
564–5632 or https://www.epa.gov/nepa. 
Weekly receipt of Environmental Impact 

Statements (EIS) 
Filed January 27, 2025 10 a.m. EST 

Through February 3, 2025 10 a.m. 
EST 

Pursuant to 40 CFR 1506.9. 

Notice 

Section 309(a) of the Clean Air Act 
requires that EPA make public its 
comments on EISs issued by other 
Federal agencies. EPA’s comment letters 
on EISs are available at: https://
cdxapps.epa.gov/cdx-enepa-II/public/ 
action/eis/search. 
EIS No. 20250018, Final, NRCS, GA, 

Watershed Plan and Environmental 
Impact Statement for the Lower Little 
Tallapoosa River Watershed Structure 
No. 25A, Review Period Ends: 03/10/ 
2025, Contact: Sharon Swagger 706– 
546–2203. 

EIS No. 20250019, Final, NRC, SC, Site- 
Specific Environmental Impact 
Statement for Subsequent License 
Renewal of Oconee Nuclear Station, 
Units 1, 2, and 3 Second Renewal, 
Final Report, Review Period Ends: 03/ 
10/2025, Contact: Lance Rakovan 
301–415–2589. 
Dated: February 3, 2025. 

Nancy Abrams, 
Associate Director, Office of Federal 
Activities. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02364 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6560–50–P 
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FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM 

Agency Information Collection 
Activities: Announcement of Board 
Approval Under Delegated Authority 
and Submission to OMB 

AGENCY: Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System. 
SUMMARY: The Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System (Board) is 
adopting a proposal to extend for three 
years, without revision, the Supervisory 
and Regulatory Survey (FR 3052; OMB 
No. 7100–0322). 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Federal Reserve Board Clearance 
Officer—Nuha Elmaghrabi—Office of 
the Chief Data Officer, Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, nuha.elmaghrabi@frb.gov, (202) 
452–3884. 

Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Desk Officer for the Federal 
Reserve Board, Office of Information 
and Regulatory Affairs, Office of 
Management and Budget, New 
Executive Office Building, Room 10235, 
725 17th Street NW, Washington, DC 
20503, or by fax to (202) 395–6974. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On June 
15, 1984, OMB delegated to the Board 
authority under the Paperwork 
Reduction Act (PRA) to approve and 
assign OMB control numbers to 
collections of information conducted or 
sponsored by the Board. Board- 
approved collections of information are 
incorporated into the official OMB 
inventory of currently approved 
collections of information. The OMB 
inventory, as well as copies of the PRA 
Submission, supporting statements 
(which contain more detailed 
information about the information 
collections and burden estimates than 
this notice), and approved collection of 
information instrument(s) are available 
at https://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ 
PRAMain. These documents are also 
available on the Federal Reserve Board’s 
public website at https://
www.federalreserve.gov/apps/ 
reportingforms/review or may be 
requested from the agency clearance 
officer, whose name appears above. On 
the page displayed at the link above, 
you can find the supporting information 
by referencing the collection identifier, 
FR 3052. 

Final Approval Under OMB Delegated 
Authority of the Extension for Three 
Years, Without Revision, of the 
Following Information Collection 

Collection title: Supervisory and 
Regulatory Survey. 

Collection identifier: FR 3052. 
OMB control number: 7100–0322. 

General description of collection: This 
survey collects information from 
financial institutions specifically 
tailored to the Federal Reserve’s 
supervisory, regulatory, and operational 
responsibilities. The frequency and 
content of the questions may depend on 
economic, regulatory, supervisory, and 
legislative developments. The surveys 
are conducted on a voluntary basis. 

Frequency: On Occasion. 
Respondents: Respondents may 

include bank holding companies, state 
member banks, savings and loan 
holding companies, intermediate 
holding companies, U.S. branches and 
agencies of foreign banking 
organizations (FBOs), Edge Act and 
agreement corporations, non-bank 
financial companies that the Financial 
Stability Oversight Council has 
determined should be supervised by the 
Board, or the combined domestic 
operations of FBOs. 

Total estimated number of 
respondents: 5,000. 

Estimated average hours per response: 
0.5. 

Total estimated annual burden hours: 
60,000. 

Current actions: On October 2, 2024, 
the Board published a notice in the 
Federal Register (89 FR 80246) 
requesting public comment for 60 days 
on the extension, without revision, of 
the FR 3052. The comment period for 
this notice expired on December 2, 
2024. The Board received one comment. 
The comment supported the proposal to 
extend, without revision, the FR 3052. 
The comment recommended integrating 
an international auditing standard and 
establishing a collaborative working 
group related to future surveys under 
the FR 3052. The Board appreciates 
feedback and will consider these 
recommendations in connection with 
future surveys. The Board will adopt the 
extension, without revision, of the FR 
3052 as originally proposed. 

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, February 4, 2025. 
Benjamin W. McDonough, 
Deputy Secretary and Ombuds of the Board. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02360 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6210–01–P 

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM 

Formations of, Acquisitions by, and 
Mergers of Bank Holding Companies 

The companies listed in this notice 
have applied to the Board for approval, 
pursuant to the Bank Holding Company 
Act of 1956 (12 U.S.C. 1841 et seq.) 
(BHC Act), Regulation Y (12 CFR part 
225), and all other applicable statutes 

and regulations to become a bank 
holding company and/or to acquire the 
assets or the ownership of, control of, or 
the power to vote shares of a bank or 
bank holding company and all of the 
banks and nonbanking companies 
owned by the bank holding company, 
including the companies listed below. 

The public portions of the 
applications listed below, as well as 
other related filings required by the 
Board, if any, are available for 
immediate inspection at the Federal 
Reserve Bank(s) indicated below and at 
the offices of the Board of Governors. 
This information may also be obtained 
on an expedited basis, upon request, by 
contacting the appropriate Federal 
Reserve Bank and from the Board’s 
Freedom of Information Office at 
https://www.federalreserve.gov/foia/ 
request.htm. Interested persons may 
express their views in writing on the 
standards enumerated in the BHC Act 
(12 U.S.C. 1842(c)). 

Comments received are subject to 
public disclosure. In general, comments 
received will be made available without 
change and will not be modified to 
remove personal or business 
information including confidential, 
contact, or other identifying 
information. Comments should not 
include any information such as 
confidential information that would not 
be appropriate for public disclosure. 

Comments regarding each of these 
applications must be received at the 
Reserve Bank indicated or the offices of 
the Board of Governors, Ann E. 
Misback, Secretary of the Board, 20th 
Street and Constitution Avenue NW, 
Washington, DC 20551–0001, not later 
than March 10, 2025. 

A. Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas 
City (Jeffrey Imgarten, Assistant Vice 
President) 1 Memorial Drive, Kansas 
City, Missouri 64198–0001. Comments 
can also be sent electronically to 
KCApplicationComments@kc.frb.org: 

1. Heritage Bancshares, Inc., Topeka, 
Kansas; to acquire Fidelity State Bank 
and Trust Company, also of Topeka, 
Kansas. 

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System. 

Michele Taylor Fennell, 
Associate Secretary of the Board. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02372 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE P 
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FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM 

Agency Information Collection 
Activities: Announcement of Board 
Approval Under Delegated Authority 
and Submission to OMB 

AGENCY: Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System. 

SUMMARY: The Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System (Board) is 
adopting a proposal to extend for three 
years, with revision, the Application 
Form for Membership on the 
Community Advisory Council (FR 1401; 
OMB No. 7100–0371). 

DATES: The revisions are effective as of 
the 2025 application period. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Federal Reserve Board Clearance 
Officer—Nuha Elmaghrabi—Office of 
the Chief Data Officer, Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, nuha.elmaghrabi@frb.gov, (202) 
452–3884. 

Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Desk Officer for the Federal 
Reserve Board, Office of Information 
and Regulatory Affairs, Office of 
Management and Budget, New 
Executive Office Building, Room 10235, 
725 17th Street NW, Washington, DC 
20503, or by fax to (202) 395–6974. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On June 
15, 1984, OMB delegated to the Board 
authority under the Paperwork 
Reduction Act (PRA) to approve and 
assign OMB control numbers to 
collections of information conducted or 
sponsored by the Board. Board- 
approved collections of information are 
incorporated into the official OMB 
inventory of currently approved 
collections of information. The OMB 
inventory, as well as copies of the PRA 
Submission, supporting statements 
(which contain more detailed 
information about the information 
collections and burden estimates than 
this notice), and approved collection of 
information instrument(s) are available 
at https://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ 
PRAMain. These documents are also 
available on the Federal Reserve Board’s 
public website at https://
www.federalreserve.gov/apps/ 
reportingforms/review or may be 
requested from the agency clearance 
officer, whose name appears above. On 
the page displayed at the link above, 
you can find the supporting information 
by referencing the collection identifier, 
FR 1401. 

Final Approval Under OMB Delegated 
Authority of the Extension for Three 
Years, With Revision, of the Following 
Information Collection 

Collection title: Application Form for 
Membership on the Community 
Advisory Council. 

Collection identifier: FR 1401. 
OMB control number: 7100–0371. 
General description of collection: The 

Application Form for Membership on 
the Community Advisory Council 
(Application) is used to obtain 
information about the experiences and 
qualifications of persons seeking to be 
considered for membership on the 
Board’s Community Advisory Council 
(CAC). The Application collects an 
applicant’s contact information; details 
regarding current employment and areas 
of expertise; a resume, which typically 
includes information about employment 
history, education, and training; and a 
cover letter explaining why the 
applicant is interested in serving on the 
CAC and their primary qualifications. 
Applicants can voluntarily elect to 
provide additional information to 
support their application. 

Frequency: Annual. 
Respondents: Individuals seeking to 

be considered for membership on the 
CAC. 

Total estimated number of 
respondents: 300. 

Total estimated change in burden: 23. 
Total estimated annual burden hours: 

323. 
Current actions: On September 30, 

2024, the Board published a notice in 
the Federal Register (89 FR 79588) 
requesting public comment for 60 days 
on the extension, with revision, of the 
FR 1401. The Board proposed to modify 
the choices for the organization type, 
add choices for the areas of expertise on 
the application, and add two 
attestations. Revisions will be effective 
as of the 2025 application period. The 
comment period for this notice expired 
on November 29, 2024. The Board did 
not receive any comments. The 
revisions will be implemented as 
proposed. 

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, February 4, 2025. 

Benjamin W. McDonough, 
Deputy Secretary and Ombuds of the Board. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02358 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6210–01–P 

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM 

Agency Information Collection 
Activities: Announcement of Board 
Approval Under Delegated Authority 
and Submission to OMB 

AGENCY: Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System. 
SUMMARY: The Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System (Board) is 
adopting a proposal to extend for three 
years, without revision, the Holding 
Company Report of Insured Depository 
Institutions’ Section 23A Transactions 
with Affiliates (FR Y–8; OMB No. 7100– 
0126). 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Federal Reserve Board Clearance 
Officer—Nuha Elmaghrabi—Office of 
the Chief Data Officer, Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, nuha.elmaghrabi@frb.gov, (202) 
452–3884. 

Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Desk Officer for the Federal 
Reserve Board, Office of Information 
and Regulatory Affairs, Office of 
Management and Budget, New 
Executive Office Building, Room 10235, 
725 17th Street NW, Washington, DC 
20503, or by fax to (202) 395–6974. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On June 
15, 1984, OMB delegated to the Board 
authority under the Paperwork 
Reduction Act (PRA) to approve and 
assign OMB control numbers to 
collections of information conducted or 
sponsored by the Board. Board- 
approved collections of information are 
incorporated into the official OMB 
inventory of currently approved 
collections of information. The OMB 
inventory, as well as copies of the PRA 
Submission, supporting statements 
(which contain more detailed 
information about the information 
collections and burden estimates than 
this notice), and approved collection of 
information instrument(s) are available 
at https://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ 
PRAMain. These documents are also 
available on the Federal Reserve Board’s 
public website at https://
www.federalreserve.gov/apps/ 
reportingforms/review or may be 
requested from the agency clearance 
officer, whose name appears above. On 
the page displayed at the link above, 
you can find the supporting information 
by referencing the collection identifier, 
FR Y–8. 

Final Approval Under OMB Delegated 
Authority of the Extension for Three 
Years, Without Revision, of the 
Following Information Collection 

Collection title: Holding Company 
Report of Insured Depository 
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Institutions’ Section 23A Transactions 
with Affiliates. 

Collection identifier: FR Y–8. 
OMB control number: 7100–0126. 
General description of collection: The 

FR Y–8 collects information on covered 
transactions between an insured 
depository institution and its affiliates 
that are subject to the quantitative limits 
and other requirements of section 23A 
of the Federal Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. 
371c) and the Board’s Regulation W— 
Transactions Between Member Banks 
and Their Affiliates (12 CFR part 223). 
The data to be reported vary based on 
the activities and subsidiaries of the 
insured depository institution. A 
respondent must file a separate FR Y– 
8 report for each U.S. insured 
depository institution it controls. The 
reports are used by the Federal Reserve 
System to monitor bank exposures to 
affiliates and to ensure banks’ 
compliance with section 23A. 

Frequency: Quarterly. 
Respondents: U.S. top-tier bank 

holding companies, intermediate 
holding companies, and savings and 
loan holding companies; foreign 
banking organizations that directly own 
or control a U.S. subsidiary insured 
depository institution. 

Total estimated number of 
respondents: 590. 

Total estimated annual burden hours: 
12,178. 

Current actions: On October 2, 2024, 
the Board published a notice in the 
Federal Register (89 FR 80241) 
requesting public comment for 60 days 
on the extension, without revision, of 
the FR Y–8. The comment period for 
this notice expired on December 2, 
2024. The Board did not receive any 
comments. 

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, February 4, 2025. 
Benjamin W. McDonough, 
Deputy Secretary and Ombuds of the Board. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02363 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6210–01–P 

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM 

Agency Information Collection 
Activities: Announcement of Board 
Approval Under Delegated Authority 
and Submission to OMB 

AGENCY: Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System. 
SUMMARY: The Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System (Board) is 
adopting a proposal to extend for three 
years, without revision, the Complex 
Institution Liquidity Monitoring Report 
(FR 2052a; OMB No. 7100–0361). 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Federal Reserve Board Clearance 
Officer—Nuha Elmaghrabi—Office of 
the Chief Data Officer, Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, nuha.elmaghrabi@frb.gov, (202) 
452–3884. 

Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Desk Officer for the Federal 
Reserve Board, Office of Information 
and Regulatory Affairs, Office of 
Management and Budget, New 
Executive Office Building, Room 10235, 
725 17th Street NW, Washington, DC 
20503, or by fax to (202) 395–6974. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On June 
15, 1984, OMB delegated to the Board 
authority under the Paperwork 
Reduction Act (PRA) to approve and 
assign OMB control numbers to 
collections of information conducted or 
sponsored by the Board. Board- 
approved collections of information are 
incorporated into the official OMB 
inventory of currently approved 
collections of information. The OMB 
inventory, as well as copies of the PRA 
Submission, supporting statements 
(which contain more detailed 
information about the information 
collections and burden estimates than 
this notice), and approved collection of 
information instrument(s) are available 
at https://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ 
PRAMain. These documents are also 
available on the Federal Reserve Board’s 
public website at https://
www.federalreserve.gov/apps/ 
reportingforms/review or may be 
requested from the agency clearance 
officer, whose name appears above. On 
the page displayed at the link above, 
you can find the supporting information 
by referencing the collection identifier, 
FR 2052a. 

Final Approval Under OMB Delegated 
Authority of the Extension for Three 
Years, Without Revision, of the 
Following Information Collection 

Collection title: Complex Institution 
Liquidity Monitoring Report. 

Collection identifier: FR 2052a. 
OMB control number: 7100–0361. 
General description of collection: The 

FR 2052a collects quantitative 
information on select assets, liabilities, 
funding activities, and contingent 
liabilities of certain banking 
organizations. The Board uses this 
information to monitor the liquidity 
profile of these banking organizations. 

The data collected by the FR 2052a 
provide detailed information about the 
liquidity risks within different business 
lines (e.g., financing of securities 
positions or prime brokerage activities) 
of certain large banking organizations 
supervised by the Board. The Board’s 

supervisory surveillance program relies 
on this data, which provide timely 
information about banking organization- 
specific liquidity risks during periods of 
stress. The Board uses analyses of 
liquidity risk to inform its supervisory 
processes, including the preparation of 
analytical reports that detail funding 
vulnerabilities. FR 2052a data also 
contribute to the Board’s supervisory 
monitoring efforts by identifying 
potential impediments to the movement 
of liquidity across legal entities. In 
addition, the FR 2052a provides 
detailed information that the Board uses 
to monitor compliance with the 
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Net 
Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) rules 
under the Board’s Regulation WW— 
Liquidity Risk Measurement, Standards, 
and Monitoring (12 CFR part 249). 

Frequency: Daily, monthly. 
Respondents: Banking organizations 

subject to Category I, II, III, or IV 
standards under the Board’s Regulation 
YY and Regulation LL. The panel 
includes (1) any top-tier U.S. bank 
holding company with $100 billion or 
more in total consolidated assets that is 
not a subsidiary of a foreign banking 
organization (FBO), (2) any top-tier U.S. 
savings and loan holding company with 
$100 billion or more in total 
consolidated assets that is a covered 
depository institution holding company 
as defined by the LCR and NSFR rules 
and is not a subsidiary of an FBO, and 
(3) any FBO, as defined by the Board’s 
Regulation YY, with combined U.S. 
assets of $100 billion or more. 

Total estimated number of 
respondents: Daily, 18; Monthly, 23. 

Estimated average hours per response: 
Daily, 221; Monthly 121. 

Total estimated annual burden hours: 
1,027,896. 

Current actions: On October 2, 2024, 
the Board published a notice in the 
Federal Register (89 FR 80240) 
requesting public comment for 60 days 
on the extension, without revision, of 
the FR 2052a. The comment period for 
this notice expired on December 2, 
2024. The Board did not receive any 
comments. 

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, February 4, 2025. 

Benjamin W. McDonough, 
Deputy Secretary and Ombuds of the Board. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02359 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6210–01–P 
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FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM 

Agency Information Collection 
Activities: Announcement of Board 
Approval Under Delegated Authority 
and Submission to OMB 

AGENCY: Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System. 
SUMMARY: The Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System (Board) is 
adopting a proposal to extend for three 
years, without revision, the Policy 
Impact Survey (FR 3075; OMB No. 
7100–0362). 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Federal Reserve Board Clearance 
Officer—Nuha Elmaghrabi—Office of 
the Chief Data Officer, Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, nuha.elmaghrabi@frb.gov, (202) 
452–3884. 

Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Desk Officer for the Federal 
Reserve Board, Office of Information 
and Regulatory Affairs, Office of 
Management and Budget, New 
Executive Office Building, Room 10235, 
725 17th Street NW, Washington, DC 
20503, or by fax to (202) 395–6974. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On June 
15, 1984, OMB delegated to the Board 
authority under the Paperwork 
Reduction Act (PRA) to approve and 
assign OMB control numbers to 
collections of information conducted or 
sponsored by the Board. Board- 
approved collections of information are 
incorporated into the official OMB 
inventory of currently approved 
collections of information. The OMB 
inventory, as well as copies of the PRA 
Submission, supporting statements 
(which contain more detailed 
information about the information 
collections and burden estimates than 
this notice), and approved collection of 
information instrument(s) are available 
at https://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ 
PRAMain. These documents are also 
available on the Federal Reserve Board’s 
public website at https://
www.federalreserve.gov/apps/ 
reportingforms/review or may be 
requested from the agency clearance 
officer, whose name appears above. On 
the page displayed at the link above, 
you can find the supporting information 
by referencing the collection identifier, 
FR 3075. 

Final Approval Under OMB Delegated 
Authority of the Extension for Three 
Years, Without Revision, of the 
Following Information Collection 

Collection title: Policy Impact Survey. 
Collection identifier: FR 3075. 
OMB control number: 7100–0362. 

General description of collection: The 
Policy Impact Survey collects 
information from certain types of 
institutions regulated by the Board in 
order to assess the effects of proposed, 
pending, or recently adopted policy 
changes at the domestic and 
international levels. The Board uses the 
survey to collect information used for 
certain quantitative impact studies 
sponsored by financial stability bodies 
such as the Basel Committee on Banking 
Supervision and the Financial Stability 
Board. Recent collections have included 
the Basel III monitoring exercise, which 
monitors the global impact of the Basel 
III framework, the global systemically 
important bank exercise, which assesses 
firms’ systemic risk profiles, and a 
survey of the domestic systemic risk 
footprint of large foreign banking 
organizations. Since the collected data 
may change from survey to survey, there 
is no fixed reporting form. 

Frequency: On occasion. 
Respondents: Bank holding 

companies, savings and loan holding 
companies, nonbank financial 
companies, and foreign banking 
organizations. 

Total estimated number of 
respondents: 14. 

Estimated average hours per response: 
700. 

Total estimated annual burden hours: 
68,600. 

Current actions: On October 2, 2024, 
the Board published a notice in the 
Federal Register (89 FR 80242) 
requesting public comment for 60 days 
on the extension, without revision, of 
the FR 3075. The comment period for 
this notice expired on December 2, 
2024. The Board did not receive any 
comments. 

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, February 4, 2025. 
Benjamin W. McDonough, 
Deputy Secretary and Ombuds of the Board. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02361 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6210–01–P 

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM 

Agency Information Collection 
Activities: Announcement of Board 
Approval Under Delegated Authority 
and Submission to OMB 

AGENCY: Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System. 
SUMMARY: The Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System (Board) is 
adopting a proposal to extend for three 
years, without revision, the Domestic 
Branch Application (FR 4001; OMB No. 
7100–0097). 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Federal Reserve Board Clearance 
Officer—Nuha Elmaghrabi—Office of 
the Chief Data Officer, Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, nuha.elmaghrabi@frb.gov, (202) 
452–3884. 

Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Desk Officer for the Federal 
Reserve Board, Office of Information 
and Regulatory Affairs, Office of 
Management and Budget, New 
Executive Office Building, Room 10235, 
725 17th Street NW, Washington, DC 
20503, or by fax to (202) 395–6974. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On June 
15, 1984, OMB delegated to the Board 
authority under the Paperwork 
Reduction Act (PRA) to approve and 
assign OMB control numbers to 
collections of information conducted or 
sponsored by the Board. Board- 
approved collections of information are 
incorporated into the official OMB 
inventory of currently approved 
collections of information. The OMB 
inventory, as well as copies of the PRA 
Submission, supporting statements 
(which contain more detailed 
information about the information 
collections and burden estimates than 
this notice), and approved collection of 
information instrument(s) are available 
at https://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ 
PRAMain. These documents are also 
available on the Federal Reserve Board’s 
public website at https://
www.federalreserve.gov/apps/ 
reportingforms/review or may be 
requested from the agency clearance 
officer, whose name appears above. On 
the page displayed at the link above, 
you can find the supporting information 
by referencing the collection identifier, 
FR 4001. 

Final Approval Under OMB Delegated 
Authority of the Extension for Three 
Years, Without Revision, of the 
Following Information Collection 

Collection title: Domestic Branch 
Application. 

Collection identifier: FR 4001. 
OMB control number: 7100–0097. 
General description of collection: The 

Federal Reserve Act and the Board’s 
Regulation H—Membership of State 
Banking Institutions in the Federal 
Reserve System (12 CFR part 208) 
require a state member bank to seek 
prior approval of the Federal Reserve 
System before establishing or acquiring 
a domestic branch. Such requests for 
approval must be filed as applications at 
the appropriate Reserve Bank for the 
state member bank. Due to the limited 
information that a state member bank 
generally has to provide for branch 
proposals, there is no formal reporting 
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form for a domestic branch application. 
A state member bank is required to 
notify the Federal Reserve by letter of its 
intent to establish one or more new 
branches and provide evidence that 
public notice of the proposed branch(es) 
has been published by the state member 
bank in the appropriate newspaper(s). 
The applicant may include with its 
letter a copy of the Conference of State 
Bank Supervisors Uniform Interstate 
Application/Notice form. The Federal 
Reserve uses the information provided 
by the applicant to fulfill its statutory 
obligation to review branch applications 
before acting on the proposals and to 
otherwise supervise state member 
banks. 

Frequency: Event-generated. 
Respondents: State member banks. 
Total estimated number of 

respondents: 179. 
Total estimated annual burden hours: 

425. 
Current actions: On October 2, 2024, 

the Board published a notice in the 
Federal Register (89 FR 80243) 
requesting public comment for 60 days 
on the extension, without revision, of 
the FR 4001. The comment period for 
this notice expired on December 2, 
2024. The Board did not receive any 
comments. 

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, February 4, 2025. 
Benjamin W. McDonough, 
Deputy Secretary and Ombuds of the Board. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02362 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6210–01–P 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 

[File No. 161 0125/Docket No. C–4604] 

Petition of Enbridge Inc. To Reopen 
and Set Aside Order; Correction 

AGENCY: Federal Trade Commission. 
ACTION: Notice; correction. 

SUMMARY: The Federal Trade 
Commission (‘‘Commission’’) published 
a document in the Federal Register of 
January 30, 2025, announcing the 
Commission’s receipt of a petition from 
Enbridge Inc. (‘‘Enbridge’’ or ‘‘the 
company’’) to reopen and set aside the 
Commission’s Decision and Order 
entered on March 22, 2017 (the 
‘‘Order’’), concerning ownership 
interests in competing natural gas 
pipelines. Shortly after publication, the 
Commission learned the document 
contained the incorrect deadline for 
receipt of public comments. The 
Commission issues this correction to 
reflect the corrected deadline. 
Comments must be received on or 

before February 21, 2025, not March 3, 
2025. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Maribeth Petrizzi (202–326–2564), 
Bureau of Competition, Federal Trade 
Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue 
NW, Washington, DC 20580. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The notice 
document submitted by Commission 
staff for publication contained an 
incorrect comment deadline. 

Corrections 
In notice FR Doc. 2025–01939 

appearing at 90 FR 8530 in the Federal 
Register of Thursday, January 30, 2025, 
make the following corrections. On page 
8530, in the DATES section, the date of 
‘‘March 3, 2025’’ is corrected to read 
‘‘February 21, 2025’’. On page 8531, in 
the first column, in the third paragraph, 
the date in the second sentence is 
corrected to read ‘‘February 21, 2025’’ 
and not ‘‘March 3, 2025’’. Also on page 
8531, in the second column, in the final 
paragraph, the date in the third sentence 
is corrected to read ‘‘February 21, 2025’’ 
and not ‘‘March 3, 2025’’. 

Dated: February 3, 2025. 
April J. Tabor, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02314 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6750–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND 
SECURITY 

Coast Guard 

[Docket No. USCG–2025–0048] 

Revisions to Maritime Security 
(MARSEC) Directive 104–6; Guidelines 
for U.S. Vessels Operating in High Risk 
Waters 

AGENCY: Coast Guard, DHS. 
ACTION: Notice of availability. 

SUMMARY: The Coast Guard announces 
the availability of Revision 9 to 
Maritime Security (MARSEC) Directive 
104–6, which provides guidelines for 
U.S. vessels operating in high-risk 
waters (HRW) where acts of terrorism, 
piracy, and armed robbery against ships 
are prevalent. The directive contains 
security-sensitive information and, 
therefore, cannot be made available to 
the general public. U.S. vessel owners 
and operators who have needed to take 
action under previous versions of 
MARSEC Directive 104–6, should 
immediately contact their local Coast 
Guard Captain of the Port or District 
Commander for a copy of Revision 9. 
This revision contains important 
updates to HRW locations and 

organizational responsibilities regarding 
addressing security risks in those 
waters. 

DATES: MARSEC Directive 104–6 
(Revision 9) has been available since 
January 10, 2025. MARSEC Directive 
104–6 (Revision 8) is no longer valid 
after that date. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For 
information about this document call or 
email Commander Andrew Czarniak; 
U.S. Coast Guard, Office of Commercial 
Vessel Compliance; telephone 202–372– 
1236, email cgcvc@uscg.mil. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Maritime 
Security (MARSEC) Directive 104–6 
Revision 9 replaces Revision 8, 
previously signed on August 11, 2021. 
The directive provides direction to U.S. 
flagged vessels operating in High Risk 
Waters (HRW) where acts of terrorism, 
piracy, and armed robbery against ships 
are prevalent. This revision reflects the 
addition of provisions for the reduction 
of electronic vessel transmissions, an 
amendment to the applicability of 
Annex 1 to include the high risk waters 
of the Red Sea and Arabian Sea, and a 
revision to the northern limits of the 
high risk waters of the Red Sea. 

Electronic vessel transmissions 
broadly include any device onboard 
capable of generating a radio frequency 
signal with or without operator 
intervention. Examples of electronic 
vessel transmissions include those from 
cellular and satellite phone systems, 
vessel-to-vessel and vessel-to-shore 
radio transmission equipment, 
Automatic Identification System, Long 
Range Identification and Tracking 
Systems, and radar. 

U.S. vessel owners and operators who 
have needed to take action under 
previous versions of MARSEC Directive 
104–6 should immediately contact their 
local Coast Guard Captain of the Port or 
District Commander for a copy of 
Revision 9, which contains important 
updates to the locations of HRW and to 
the guidelines for addressing security 
risks in those waters. The Coast Guard 
advises owners and operators that, 
under Revision 9, they may need to take 
specific actions in accordance with 
MARSEC Directive 104–6 before their 
vessel enters HRW. 

This notice is issued under authority 
of 33 CFR 101.405(a)(2) and 5 U.S.C. 
552(a). 

Dated: January 31, 2025. 
A.M. Beach, 
Captain, U.S. Coast Guard, Director of 
Inspections and Compliance. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02367 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 9110–04–P 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 16:22 Feb 06, 2025 Jkt 265001 PO 00000 Frm 00029 Fmt 4703 Sfmt 9990 E:\FR\FM\07FEN1.SGM 07FEN1lo
tte

r 
on

 D
S

K
11

X
Q

N
23

P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 N
O

T
IC

E
S

1

mailto:cgcvc@uscg.mil


9162 Federal Register / Vol. 90, No. 25 / Friday, February 7, 2025 / Notices 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation Nos. 701–TA–729–730 and 
731–TA–1698–1699 (Final)] 

Brake Drums From China and Turkey; 
Scheduling of the Final Phase of 
Countervailing Duty and Antidumping 
Duty Investigations 

AGENCY: United States International 
Trade Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: The Commission hereby gives 
notice of the scheduling of the final 
phase of antidumping and 
countervailing duty investigation Nos. 
701–TA–729–730 and 731–TA–1698– 
1699 (Final) pursuant to the Tariff Act 
of 1930 (‘‘the Act’’) to determine 
whether an industry in the United 
States is materially injured or 
threatened with material injury, or the 
establishment of an industry in the 
United States is materially retarded, by 
reason of imports of brake drums from 
China and Turkey, provided for in 
subheading 8708.30.50 of the 
Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the 
United States, preliminarily determined 
by the Department of Commerce 
(‘‘Commerce’’) to be subsidized and sold 
at less-than-fair-value. 
DATES: January 29, 2025. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Mary Messer (202–205–3193), Office of 
Investigations, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street SW, 
Washington, DC 20436. Hearing- 
impaired persons can obtain 
information on this matter by contacting 
the Commission’s TDD terminal on 202– 
205–1810. Persons with mobility 
impairments who will need special 
assistance in gaining access to the 
Commission should contact the Office 
of the Secretary at 202–205–2000. 
General information concerning the 
Commission may also be obtained by 
accessing its internet server (https://
www.usitc.gov). The public record for 
these investigations may be viewed on 
the Commission’s electronic docket 
(EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Scope.—For purposes of these 
investigations, Commerce has defined 
the subject merchandise as ‘‘. . . certain 
brake drums made of gray cast iron, 
whether finished or unfinished, with an 
actual or nominal inside diameter of 
14.75 inches or more but not over 16.6 
inches, weighing more than 50 pounds. 
Unfinished brake drums are those 
which have undergone some turning or 
machining but are not ready for 
installation. Subject brake drums are 

included within the scope whether 
imported individually or with 
nonsubject merchandise (for example, a 
hub), whether assembled or 
unassembled, or if joined with non- 
subject merchandise. When a subject 
drum is imported together with non- 
subject merchandise, such as, but not 
limited to, a drum-hub assembly, only 
the subject drum is covered by the 
scope. 

Subject merchandise also includes 
finished and unfinished brake drums 
that are further processed in a third 
country or in the United States, 
including, but not limited to, assembly 
or any other processing that would not 
otherwise remove the merchandise from 
the scope of this investigation if 
performed in the country of 
manufacture of the subject brake drums. 
The inclusion, attachment, joining, or 
assembly of non-subject merchandise 
with subject drums either in the country 
of manufacture of the subject drum or in 
a third country does not remove the 
subject drum from the scope. 
Specifically excluded is merchandise 
covered by the scope of the 
antidumping and countervailing duty 
orders on certain chassis and 
subassemblies thereof from the People’s 
Republic of China. See Certain Chassis 
and Subassemblies Thereof from the 
People’s Republic of China: 
Antidumping Duty Order, 86 FR 36093 
(July 8, 2021) and Certain Chassis and 
Subassemblies Thereof from the 
People’s Republic of China: 
Countervailing Duty Order and 
Amended Final Affirmative 
Countervailing Duty Determination, 86 
FR 24844 (May 10, 2021). 

The scope also excludes composite 
brake drums that contain more than 38 
percent steel by weight.’’ 

Background.—The final phase of 
these investigations is being scheduled 
pursuant to sections 705(b) and 731(b) 
of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C. 
1671d(b) and 1673d(b)), as a result of 
affirmative preliminary determinations 
by Commerce that certain benefits 
which constitute subsidies within the 
meaning of § 703 of the Act (19 U.S.C. 
1671b) are being provided to 
manufacturers, producers, or exporters 
in China and Turkey of brake drums, 
and that such products are being sold in 
the United States at less than fair value 
within the meaning of § 733 of the Act 
(19 U.S.C. 1673b). The investigations 
were requested in petitions filed on June 
20, 2024, by Webb Wheel Products, Inc., 
Cullman, Alabama. 

For further information concerning 
the conduct of this phase of the 
investigations, hearing procedures, and 
rules of general application, consult the 

Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, part 201, subparts A and B 
(19 CFR part 201), and part 207, 
subparts A and C (19 CFR part 207). 

Participation in the investigations and 
public service list.—Persons, including 
industrial users of the subject 
merchandise and, if the merchandise is 
sold at the retail level, representative 
consumer organizations, wishing to 
participate in the final phase of these 
investigations as parties must file an 
entry of appearance with the Secretary 
to the Commission, as provided in 
§ 201.11 of the Commission’s rules, no 
later than 21 days prior to the hearing 
date specified in this notice. A party 
that filed a notice of appearance during 
the preliminary phase of the 
investigations need not file an 
additional notice of appearance during 
this final phase. The Secretary will 
maintain a public service list containing 
the names and addresses of all persons, 
or their representatives, who are parties 
to the investigations. 

Please note the Secretary’s Office will 
accept only electronic filings during this 
time. Filings must be made through the 
Commission’s Electronic Document 
Information System (EDIS, https://
edis.usitc.gov). No in-person paper- 
based filings or paper copies of any 
electronic filings will be accepted until 
further notice. 

Limited disclosure of business 
proprietary information (BPI) under an 
administrative protective order (APO) 
and BPI service list.—Pursuant to 
§ 207.7(a) of the Commission’s rules, the 
Secretary will make BPI gathered in the 
final phase of these investigations 
available to authorized applicants under 
the APO issued in the investigations, 
provided that the application is made 
no later than 21 days prior to the 
hearing date specified in this notice. 
Authorized applicants must represent 
interested parties, as defined by 19 
U.S.C. 1677(9), who are parties to the 
investigations. A party granted access to 
BPI in the preliminary phase of the 
investigations need not reapply for such 
access. A separate service list will be 
maintained by the Secretary for those 
parties authorized to receive BPI under 
the APO. 

Staff report.—The prehearing staff 
report in the final phase of these 
investigations will be placed in the 
nonpublic record on June 3, 2025, and 
a public version will be issued 
thereafter, pursuant to § 207.22 of the 
Commission’s rules. 

Hearing.—The Commission will hold 
a hearing in connection with the final 
phase of this investigation beginning at 
9:30 a.m. on June 17, 2025. Requests to 
appear at the hearing should be filed in 
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1 The record is defined in § 207.2(f) of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 
CFR 207.2(f)). 

2 90 FR 3788 and 90 FR 3792 (January 15, 2025). 
3 Commissioner Rhonda K. Schmidtlein did not 

participate. 

writing with the Secretary to the 
Commission on or before June 11, 2025. 
Any requests to appear as a witness via 
videoconference must be included with 
your request to appear. Requests to 
appear via videoconference must 
include a statement explaining why the 
witness cannot appear in person; the 
Chairman, or other person designated to 
conduct the investigation, may in their 
discretion for good cause shown, grant 
such a request. Requests to appear as 
remote witness due to illness or a 
positive COVID–19 test result may be 
submitted by 3 p.m. the business day 
prior to the hearing. Further information 
about participation in the hearing will 
be posted on the Commission’s website 
at https://www.usitc.gov/calendarpad/ 
calendar.html. 

A nonparty who has testimony that 
may aid the Commission’s deliberations 
may request permission to present a 
short statement at the hearing. All 
parties and nonparties desiring to 
appear at the hearing and make oral 
presentations should attend a 
prehearing conference, if deemed 
necessary, to be held at 9:30 a.m. on 
June 13, 2025. Parties shall file and 
serve written testimony and 
presentation slides in connection with 
their presentation at the hearing by no 
later than noon on June 16, 2025. Oral 
testimony and written materials to be 
submitted at the public hearing are 
governed by sections 201.6(b)(2), 
201.13(f), and 207.24 of the 
Commission’s rules. Parties must submit 
any request to present a portion of their 
hearing testimony in camera no later 
than 7 business days prior to the date of 
the hearing. 

Written submissions.—Each party 
who is an interested party shall submit 
a prehearing brief to the Commission. 
Prehearing briefs must conform with the 
provisions of § 207.23 of the 
Commission’s rules; the deadline for 
filing is 5:15 p.m. on June 10, 2025. 
Parties shall also file written testimony 
in connection with their presentation at 
the hearing, and posthearing briefs, 
which must conform with the 
provisions of § 207.25 of the 
Commission’s rules. The deadline for 
filing posthearing briefs is 5:15 p.m. on 
June 25, 2025. In addition, any person 
who has not entered an appearance as 
a party to the investigations may submit 
a written statement of information 
pertinent to the subject of the 
investigations, including statements of 
support or opposition to the petition, on 
or before 5:15 p.m. on June 25, 2025. On 
July 9, 2025, the Commission will make 
available to parties all information on 
which they have not had an opportunity 
to comment. Parties may submit final 

comments on this information on or 
before 5:15 p.m. on July 11, 2025, but 
such final comments must not contain 
new factual information and must 
otherwise comply with § 207.30 of the 
Commission’s rules. All written 
submissions must conform with the 
provisions of § 201.8 of the 
Commission’s rules; any submissions 
that contain BPI must also conform with 
the requirements of §§ 201.6, 207.3, and 
207.7 of the Commission’s rules. The 
Commission’s Handbook on Filing 
Procedures, available on the 
Commission’s website at https://
www.usitc.gov/documents/handbook_
on_filing_procedures.pdf, elaborates 
upon the Commission’s procedures with 
respect to filings. 

Additional written submissions to the 
Commission, including requests 
pursuant to § 201.12 of the 
Commission’s rules, shall not be 
accepted unless good cause is shown for 
accepting such submissions, or unless 
the submission is pursuant to a specific 
request by a Commissioner or 
Commission staff. 

In accordance with §§ 201.16(c) and 
207.3 of the Commission’s rules, each 
document filed by a party to the 
investigations must be served on all 
other parties to the investigations (as 
identified by either the public or BPI 
service list), and a certificate of service 
must be timely filed. The Secretary will 
not accept a document for filing without 
a certificate of service. 

Authority: These investigations are 
being conducted under authority of title 
VII of the Tariff Act of 1930; this notice 
is published pursuant to § 207.21 of the 
Commission’s rules. 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: February 4, 2025. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02365 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation Nos. 701–TA–752 and 731– 
TA–1730 (Preliminary)] 

Active Anode Material From China 

Determinations 

On the basis of the record 1 developed 
in the subject investigations, the United 
States International Trade Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’) determines, pursuant 
to the Tariff Act of 1930 (‘‘the Act’’), 

that there is a reasonable indication that 
the establishment of an industry in the 
United States is materially retarded by 
reason of imports of active anode 
material from China, provided for in 
subheadings 2504.10.50 and 3801.10.50 
of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of 
the United States, that are alleged to be 
sold in the United States at less than fair 
value (‘‘LTFV’’) and alleged to be 
subsidized by the government of 
China.2 3 

Commencement of Final Phase 
Investigations 

Pursuant to § 207.18 of the 
Commission’s rules, the Commission 
also gives notice of the commencement 
of the final phase of its investigations. 
The Commission will issue a final phase 
notice of scheduling, which will be 
published in the Federal Register as 
provided in § 207.21 of the 
Commission’s rules, upon notice from 
the U.S. Department of Commerce 
(‘‘Commerce’’) of affirmative 
preliminary determinations in the 
investigations under section 703(b) or 
733(b) of the Act, or, if the preliminary 
determinations are negative, upon 
notice of affirmative final 
determinations in those investigations 
under section 705(a) or 735(a) of the 
Act. Parties that filed entries of 
appearance in the preliminary phase of 
the investigations need not enter a 
separate appearance for the final phase 
of the investigations. Any other party 
may file an entry of appearance for the 
final phase of the investigations after 
publication of the final phase notice of 
scheduling. Industrial users, and, if the 
merchandise under investigation is sold 
at the retail level, representative 
consumer organizations have the right 
to appear as parties in Commission 
antidumping and countervailing duty 
investigations. The Secretary will 
prepare a public service list containing 
the names and addresses of all persons, 
or their representatives, who are parties 
to the investigations. As provided in 
§ 207.20 of the Commission’s rules, the 
Director of the Office of Investigations 
will circulate draft questionnaires for 
the final phase of the investigations to 
parties to the investigations, placing 
copies on the Commission’s Electronic 
Document Information System (EDIS, 
https://edis.usitc.gov), for comment. 

Background 
On December 18, 2024, the American 

Active Anode Material Producers, the 
members of which are Anovion 
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Technologies LLC, Sanborn, New York; 
Syrah Technologies LLC (‘‘Syrah’’), 
Vidalia, Louisiana; NOVONIX Anode 
Materials LLC, Chattanooga, Tennessee; 
Epsilon Advanced Materials Pty. Ltd., 
Leland, North Carolina; and SKI US, 
Inc., Marietta, Georgia, filed petitions 
with the Commission and Commerce, 
alleging that an industry in the United 
States is materially injured or 
threatened with material injury by 
reason of subsidized imports of active 
anode material from China and LTFV 
imports of active anode material from 
China. Accordingly, effective December 
18, 2024, the Commission instituted 
countervailing duty investigation No. 
701–TA–752 and antidumping duty 
investigation No. 731–TA–1730 
(Preliminary). 

Notice of the institution of the 
Commission’s investigations and of a 
public conference to be held in 
connection therewith was given by 
posting copies of the notice in the Office 
of the Secretary, U.S. International 
Trade Commission, Washington, DC, 
and by publishing the notice in the 
Federal Register of December 26, 2024 
(89 FR 105100). The Commission 
conducted its conference on January 8, 
2025. All persons who requested the 
opportunity were permitted to 
participate. 

The Commission made these 
determinations pursuant to sections 
703(a) and 733(a) of the Act (19 U.S.C. 
1671b(a) and 1673b(a)). It completed 
and filed its determinations in these 
investigations on February 3, 2025. The 
views of the Commission are contained 
in USITC Publication 5585 (February 
2025), entitled Active Anode Material 
from China: Investigation Nos. 701–TA– 
752 and 731–TA–1730 (Preliminary). 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: February 3, 2025. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02315 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1379] 

Certain Video Capable Electronic 
Devices, Including Computers, 
Streaming Devices, Televisions, 
Cameras, and Components and 
Modules Thereof; Notice of Request 
for Submissions on the Public Interest 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that on 
January 29, 2025, the presiding 
administrative law judge (‘‘ALJ’’) issued 
an Initial Determination on Violation of 
Section 337. The ALJ also issued a 
Recommended Determination on 
remedy and bonding should a violation 
be found in the above-captioned 
investigation. The Commission is 
soliciting submissions on public interest 
issues raised by the recommended relief 
should the Commission find a violation. 
This notice is soliciting comments from 
the public and interested government 
agencies only. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Joelle P. Justus, Esq., Office of the 
General Counsel, U.S. International 
Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, 
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 
205–2593. Copies of non-confidential 
documents filed in connection with this 
investigation may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help 
accessing EDIS, please email 
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General 
information concerning the Commission 
may also be obtained by accessing its 
internet server at https://www.usitc.gov. 
Hearing-impaired persons are advised 
that information on this matter can be 
obtained by contacting the 
Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 
205–1810. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 provides 
that, if the Commission finds a 
violation, it shall exclude the articles 
concerned from the United States 
unless, after considering the effect of 
such exclusion upon the public health 
and welfare, competitive conditions in 
the United States economy, the 
production of like or directly 
competitive articles in the United 
States, and United States consumers, it 
finds that such articles should not be 
excluded from entry. (19 U.S.C. 
1337(d)(1)). A similar provision applies 
to cease and desist orders. (19 U.S.C. 
1337(f)(1)). 

The Commission is soliciting 
submissions on public interest issues 
raised by the recommended relief 
should the Commission find a violation, 
specifically: a limited exclusion order 
directed to certain video capable 
electronic devices, including computers, 
streaming devices, televisions, cameras, 
and components and modules thereof 
imported, sold for importation, and/or 
sold after importation by respondents 
Amazon.com, Inc. and Amazon.com 
Services, LLC (collectively, ‘‘Amazon’’); 
and cease and desist orders directed to 
Amazon. Parties are to file public 

interest submissions pursuant to 19 CFR 
210.50(a)(4). 

The Commission is interested in 
further development of the record on 
the public interest in this investigation. 
Accordingly, members of the public and 
interested government agencies are 
invited to file submissions of no more 
than five (5) pages, inclusive of 
attachments, concerning the public 
interest in light of the ALJ’s 
Recommended Determination on 
Remedy and Bonding issued in this 
investigation on January 29, 2025. 
Comments should address whether 
issuance of the recommended remedial 
orders in this investigation, should the 
Commission find a violation, would 
affect the public health and welfare in 
the United States, competitive 
conditions in the United States 
economy, the production of like or 
directly competitive articles in the 
United States, or United States 
consumers. 

In particular, the Commission is 
interested in comments that: 

(i) explain how the articles potentially 
subject to the recommended remedial 
orders are used in the United States; 

(ii) identify any public health, safety, 
or welfare concerns in the United States 
relating to the recommended orders; 

(iii) identify like or directly 
competitive articles that complainant, 
its licensees, or third parties make in the 
United States which could replace the 
subject articles if they were to be 
excluded; 

(iv) indicate whether complainant, 
complainant’s licensees, and/or third- 
party suppliers have the capacity to 
replace the volume of articles 
potentially subject to the recommended 
orders within a commercially 
reasonable time; and 

(v) explain how the recommended 
orders would impact consumers in the 
United States. 

Written submissions must be filed no 
later than by close of business on March 
5, 2025. 

Persons filing written submissions 
must file the original document 
electronically on or before the deadlines 
stated above pursuant to 19 CFR 
210.4(f). Submissions should refer to the 
investigation number (‘‘Inv. No. 337– 
TA–1379’’) in a prominent place on the 
cover page and/or the first page. (See 
Handbook for Electronic Filing 
Procedures, https://www.usitc.gov/ 
secretary/fed_reg_notices/rules/ 
handbook_on_electronic_filing.pdf). 
Persons with questions regarding filing 
should contact the Secretary (202–205– 
2000). 

Any person desiring to submit a 
document to the Commission in 
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confidence must request confidential 
treatment by marking each document 
with a header indicating that the 
document contains confidential 
information. This marking will be 
deemed to satisfy the request procedure 
set forth in Rules 201.6(b) and 
210.5(e)(2) (19 CFR 201.6(b) & 
210.5(e)(2)). Documents for which 
confidential treatment by the 
Commission is properly sought will be 
treated accordingly. Any non-party 
wishing to submit comments containing 
confidential information must serve 
those comments on the parties to the 
investigation pursuant to the applicable 
Administrative Protective Order. A 
redacted non-confidential version of the 
document must also be filed 
simultaneously with any confidential 
filing and must be served in accordance 
with Commission Rule 210.4(f)(7)(ii)(A) 
(19 CFR 210.4(f)(7)(ii)(A)). All 
information, including confidential 
business information and documents for 
which confidential treatment is properly 
sought, submitted to the Commission for 
purposes of this investigation may be 
disclosed to and used: (i) by the 
Commission, its employees and Offices, 
and contract personnel (a) for 
developing or maintaining the records 
of this or a related proceeding, or (b) in 
internal investigations, audits, reviews, 
and evaluations relating to the 
programs, personnel, and operations of 
the Commission including under 5 
U.S.C. Appendix 3; or (ii) by U.S. 
government employees and contract 
personnel, solely for cybersecurity 
purposes. All contract personnel will 
sign appropriate nondisclosure 
agreements. All nonconfidential written 
submissions will be available for public 
inspection on EDIS. 

This action is taken under the 
authority of section 337 of the Tariff Act 
of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), 
and in Part 210 of the Commission’s 
Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR 
part 210). 

By order of the Commission. 

Issued: February 3, 2025. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02337 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1362 (Remand)] 

Certain Liquid Transfer Devices With 
an Integral Vial Adapter; Notice of a 
Commission Determination Finding a 
Violation of Section 337; Issuance of a 
Limited Exclusion Order and a Cease 
and Desist Order; Termination of the 
Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that 
the U.S. International Trade 
Commission has determined to affirm 
the determination finding a violation of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, in the remand initial 
determination (‘‘Remand ID’’) issued by 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge 
(‘‘CALJ’’) and to take no position with 
respect to a portion of the Remand ID. 
The Commission has also determined to 
issue a limited exclusion order 
prohibiting further importation of 
infringing products by the three 
remaining respondents and a cease and 
desist order against one respondent. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Edward S. Jou, Esq., Office of the 
General Counsel, U.S. International 
Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, 
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 
205–3316. Copies of non-confidential 
documents filed in connection with this 
investigation may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help 
accessing EDIS, please email 
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General 
information concerning the Commission 
may also be obtained by accessing its 
internet server at https://www.usitc.gov. 
Hearing-impaired persons are advised 
that information on this matter can be 
obtained by contacting the 
Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 
205–1810. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
Commission instituted this investigation 
on May 11, 2023, based on a complaint, 
as supplemented, (the ‘‘Complaint’’) 
filed by West Pharmaceutical Services, 
Inc. and West Pharma. Services IL, Ltd. 
(collectively, ‘‘West’’ or 
‘‘Complainants’’). 88 FR 30342 (May 11, 
2023). The Complaint alleged violations 
of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, 
as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, based on 
the importation into the United States, 
the sale for importation, and the sale 
within the United States after 
importation of certain liquid transfer 
devices with an integral vial adapter by 

reason of the infringement of claim 1 of 
U.S. Patent No. 10,688,295 (the ‘‘ ’295 
patent’’); the claim of U.S. Design Patent 
No. D767,124 (‘‘the D’124 patent’’); the 
claim of U.S. Design Patent No. 
D765,837 (‘‘the D’837 patent’’); the 
claim of U.S. Design Patent No. 
D630,732 (‘‘the D’732 patent’’); and U.S. 
Trademark Registration No. 5,810,583 
(‘‘the ’583 mark’’). Id. at 30342. 

The Commission’s notice of 
investigation named four respondents: 
Advcare Medical, Inc. (‘‘Advcare’’) of 
New Taipei City, Taiwan, Dragon Heart 
Medical Devices Co., Ltd. (‘‘Dragon 
Heart Devices’’) of Kaiping City, China, 
Dragon Heart Medical, Inc. (‘‘Dragon 
Heart’’) of Addison, Illinois, and 
Summit International Medical 
Technologies, Inc. (‘‘Summit’’) of 
Franklin, Massachusetts. Id. The Office 
of Unfair Import Investigations (‘‘OUII’’) 
is also a party to this investigation. Id. 

The investigation was terminated as 
to Dragon Heart Devices by withdrawal 
of the Complaint. Order No. 9 (Aug. 24, 
2023), unreviewed by Comm’n Notice 
(Sept. 20, 2023). 

The ’583 mark and the three asserted 
design patents (the D’124 patent, the 
D’837 patent, and the D’732 patent) 
were terminated from the investigation 
by withdrawal of the Complaint. Order 
No. 12 (Sept. 19, 2023), unreviewed by 
Comm’n Notice (Oct. 19, 2023); Order 
No. 14 (Oct. 4, 2023), unreviewed by 
Comm’n Notice (Nov. 2, 2023). 
Accordingly, the ’295 patent is the only 
remaining asserted intellectual property 
in this investigation, and the 
respondents remaining in the 
investigation are Summit, Advcare, and 
Dragon Heart (collectively, 
‘‘Respondents’’). 

On October 16, 2023, West filed an 
unopposed motion for summary 
determination that it satisfied the 
economic prong of the domestic 
industry requirement, which was 
granted. Order No. 17 (Nov. 28, 2023), 
unreviewed by Comm’n Notice (Dec. 28, 
2023). 

A claim construction hearing was 
held on October 26, 2023, and the CALJ 
issued a claim construction order on 
November 13, 2023. Order No. 15 (Nov. 
13, 2023). The parties filed motions in 
limine, and the CALJ precluded certain 
evidence and arguments in Order No. 19 
(Dec. 1, 2023). In particular, the CALJ 
granted West’s motion in limine no. 2, 
precluding Respondents and OUII from 
challenging the validity of the ’295 
patent. Id. at 2–6. 

An evidentiary hearing was held on 
December 4–5, 2023, and the CALJ 
issued a final initial determination 
(‘‘Final ID’’) on March 15, 2024, finding 
a violation of section 337 based on 
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1 Commissioner Schmidtlein stepped down from 
the Commission on January 31, 2025. 

2 Commissioner Kearns respectfully dissents from 
the Commission’s decision and has filed a separate 
opinion explaining his views. 

1 Based on the Government’s submissions in its 
RFAA dated April 18, 2024, the Agency finds that 
service of the OSC on Registrant was adequate. 
Specifically, the Declaration from a DEA Diversion 
Investigator (DI) indicates that on February 29, 
2024, the DI successfully served the OSC via email 
to Registrant’s registered email address, as the DI’s 
email was not returned undeliverable. RFAAX 2, at 
2; Mohammed S. Aljanaby, M.D., 82 FR 34552, 
34552 (2017) (finding that service by email satisfies 
due process where the email is not returned as 
undeliverable and other methods have been 
unsuccessful). 

The DI made several other attempts to serve 
Registrant with the OSC, but they were unsucessful. 
On February 27, 2024, the DI attempted personal 
service at Registrant’s last known forwarding 
address. RFAAX 2, at 2. The DI left a copy of the 
OSC at the address and asked the current residents 
to give the documents to Registrant. Id. Also on this 
date, the DI called and texted Registrant via a 
telephone number provided by the current residents 
and received no response. Id. On February 29, 2024, 
the DI attempted to contact Registrant by his 
registered phone number and left her contact 
information with an acquaintance of Registrant who 
answered the phone. Id. at 2–3. On March 1, 2024, 
the DI sent the OSC via certified mail to four 
addresses associated with Registrant, including 
Registrant’s registered address. Id. at 3, Attachment 
C. According to the DI, all four mailings were 
returned unable to forward. Id. at 3. The DI also 
contacted the Medical Board of California in 
attempting service, but the Board was unable to 
provide a current address. Id. at 3. 

In sum, the Agency finds that Registrant was 
successfully served the OSC by email and the DI’s 
efforts to serve Registrant by other means were 
‘‘ ‘reasonably calculated, under all the 
circumstances, to apprise [Registrant] of the 
pendency of the action.’ ’’ Jones v. Flowers, 547 U.S. 
220, 226 (2006) (quoting Mullane v. Central 
Hanover Bank & Trust Co., 339 U.S. 306, 314 
(1950)). Therefore, due process notice requirements 
have been satisfied. 

infringement of claim 1 of the ’295 
patent. The Final ID included a 
recommended determination (‘‘RD’’) on 
remedy and bonding that recommended 
issuance of a limited exclusion order 
directed to the three remaining 
respondents and a cease and desist 
order directed to Summit. See Final ID 
at 73–87. 

On May 16, 2024, the Commission 
determined to review the Final ID in 
part. 89 FR 45012–15 (May 22, 2024). 
The Commission determined not to 
review the Final ID’s findings with 
respect to claim construction, 
infringement, and the technical prong of 
the domestic industry requirement. Id. 
at 45013. On July 23, 2024, the 
Commission determined to supplement 
the Final ID and to reverse-in-part Order 
No. 19 and remand the investigation to 
the CALJ for further proceedings with 
respect to the written description 
requirement. See Comm’n Notice (July 
23, 2024); Comm’n Op. (July 23, 2024); 
Remand Order (July 23, 2024). 

On remand, the parties agreed that a 
live hearing was unnecessary and the 
CALJ set a procedural schedule for the 
submission of evidence and the parties’ 
briefing and extended the target date to 
February 10, 2025. Order No. 23 (Aug. 
1, 2024), unreviewed by Comm’n Notice 
(Aug. 27, 2024). The parties conducted 
additional expert discovery and the 
CALJ admitted the resulting evidence 
into the record. Order No. 24 (Sept. 3, 
2024). 

On November 8, 2024, the CALJ 
issued the Remand ID finding that claim 
1 of the ’295 is not invalid for lack of 
written description under 35 U.S.C. 112. 
OUII filed a petition for review on 
November 21, 2024. Respondents filed a 
petition for review on November 29, 
2024. West filed a response to OUII’s 
petition for review on November 29, 
2024. West filed a response to 
Respondents’ petition for review on 
December 6, 2024. 

On December 20, 2024, the 
Commission determined to review the 
Remand ID in its entirety. On review, 
the Commission has determined to take 
no position with respect to certain 
statements in the Remand ID.1 
Specifically, the Commission takes no 
position on the second sentence of the 
last paragraph on page 5 continuing to 
page 6 (‘‘The Commission concluded 
that OUII, . . .’’) and the subsequent 
citations (‘‘Id. at 18 . . .; see also; . . .; 
but cf. . . . .’’); and the Commission 
takes no position on the second 
sentence in the first full paragraph on 
page 7 (‘‘Because OUII . . . .’’). The 

Commission has determined to affirm 
the remainder of the Remand ID. 
Because the Commission previously 
determined not to review the finding on 
summary determination with respect to 
the economic prong of the domestic 
industry requirement and the findings 
in the Final ID with respect to claim 
construction, infringement, and the 
technical prong of the domestic industry 
requirement, the Commission has 
determined that there has been a 
violation of section 337 with respect to 
infringement of claim 1 of the ’295 
patent.2 

For remedy, the Commission has 
determined to issue a limited exclusion 
order prohibiting further importation of 
infringing products by the three 
remaining respondents and a cease and 
desist order against Respondent 
Summit. The Commission has 
determined that the public interest 
factors do not counsel against issuing 
remedial orders. The Commission has 
determined that bond should be set in 
the amount of zero percent (0%) (i.e., no 
bond). 

The Commission vote for this 
determination took place on February 3, 
2025. 

This action is taken under the 
authority of section 337 of the Tariff Act 
of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), 
and in Part 210 of the Commission’s 
Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR 
part 210). 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: February 3, 2025. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02336 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

Massoud Amini, M.D.; Decision and 
Order 

On February 23, 2024, the Drug 
Enforcement Administration (DEA or 
Government) issued an Order to Show 
Cause (OSC) to Massoud Amini, M.D., 
of Woodland Hills, California. 
(Registrant). Request for Final Agency 
Action (RFAA), Exhibit (RFAAX) 1, at 1, 
3. The OSC proposed the revocation of 
Registrant’s DEA Certificate of 
Registration No. BA6612142, alleging 
that Registrant’s registration should be 
revoked because Registrant is ‘‘currently 
without authority to handle controlled 

substances in California, the state in 
which [he is] registered with DEA.’’ Id. 
at 2 (citing 21 U.S.C. 824(a)(3)). 

The OSC notified Registrant of his 
right to file with DEA a written request 
for hearing, and that if he failed to file 
such a request, he would be deemed to 
have waived his right to a hearing and 
be in default. Id. (citing 21 CFR 
1301.43). Here, Registrant did not 
request a hearing. RFAA, at 2.1 ‘‘A 
default, unless excused, shall be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
[registrant’s] right to a hearing and an 
admission of the factual allegations of 
the [OSC].’’ 21 CFR 1301.43(e). 

Further, ‘‘[i]n the event that a 
registrant . . . is deemed to be in 
default . . . DEA may then file a request 
for final agency action with the 
Administrator, along with a record to 
support its request. In such 
circumstances, the Administrator may 
enter a default final order pursuant to 
[21 CFR] § 1316.67.’’ Id. § 1301.43(f)(1). 
Here, the Government has requested 
final agency action based on Registrant’s 
default pursuant to 21 CFR 1301.43(c), 
(f), 1301.46. RFAA, at 1; see also 21 CFR 
1316.67. 
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2 Under the Administrative Procedure Act, an 
agency ‘‘may take official notice of facts at any stage 
in a proceeding—even in the final decision.’’ 
United States Department of Justice, Attorney 
General’s Manual on the Administrative Procedure 
Act 80 (1947) (Wm. W. Gaunt & Sons, Inc., Reprint 
1979). Pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 556(e), ‘‘[w]hen an 
agency decision rests on official notice of a material 
fact not appearing in the evidence in the record, a 
party is entitled, on timely request, to an 
opportunity to show the contrary.’’ Accordingly, 
Registrant may dispute the Agency’s finding by 
filing a properly supported motion for 
reconsideration of findings of fact within fifteen 
calendar days of the date of this Order. Any such 
motion and response shall be filed and served by 
email to the other party and to Office of the 
Administrator, Drug Enforcement Administration at 
dea.addo.attorneys@dea.gov. 

3 This rule derives from the text of two provisions 
of the Controlled Substances Act (CSA). First, 
Congress defined the term ‘‘practitioner’’ to mean 
‘‘a physician . . . or other person licensed, 
registered, or otherwise permitted, by . . . the 
jurisdiction in which he practices . . . , to 
distribute, dispense, . . . [or] administer . . . a 
controlled substance in the course of professional 
practice.’’ 21 U.S.C. 802(21). Second, in setting the 
requirements for obtaining a practitioner’s 

registration, Congress directed that ‘‘[t]he Attorney 
General shall register practitioners . . . if the 
applicant is authorized to dispense . . . controlled 
substances under the laws of the State in which he 
practices.’’ 21 U.S.C. 823(g)(1). Because Congress 
has clearly mandated that a practitioner possess 
state authority in order to be deemed a practitioner 
under the CSA, DEA has held repeatedly that 
revocation of a practitioner’s registration is the 
appropriate sanction whenever he is no longer 
authorized to dispense controlled substances under 
the laws of the state in which he practices. See, e.g., 
James L. Hooper, 76 FR 71371, 71372; Sheran 
Arden Yeates, D.O., 71 FR 39130, 39131 (2006); 
Dominick A. Ricci, D.O., 58 FR 51104, 51105 (1993); 
Bobby Watts, D.O., 53 FR 11919, 11920 (1988); 
Frederick Marsh Blanton, 43 FR 27617. 

1 On June 17, 2024, Respondent filed a Motion to 
Continue Show Cause Hearing to request a 
continuance on the instant proceedings, which the 
Administrative Law Judge denied. 

I. Findings of Fact 
The Agency finds that, in light of 

Registrant’s default, the factual 
allegations in the OSC are admitted. 
According to the OSC, effective January 
12, 2024, the Medical Board of 
California revoked Registrant’s 
California medical license. RFAAX 1, at 
2. According to California’s online 
records, of which the Agency takes 
official notice, Registrant’s California 
medical license remains revoked.2 
California DCA License Search, https:// 
search.dca.ca.gov/ (last visited date of 
signature of this Order). Accordingly, 
the Agency finds that Registrant is not 
licensed to practice medicine in 
California, the state in which he is 
registered with DEA. 

II. Discussion 
Pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 824(a)(3), the 

Attorney General is authorized to 
suspend or revoke a registration issued 
under 21 U.S.C. 823 ‘‘upon a finding 
that the registrant . . . has had his State 
license or registration suspended . . . 
[or] revoked . . . by competent State 
authority and is no longer authorized by 
State law to engage in the . . . 
dispensing of controlled substances.’’ 
With respect to a practitioner, DEA has 
also long held that the possession of 
authority to dispense controlled 
substances under the laws of the state in 
which a practitioner engages in 
professional practice is a fundamental 
condition for obtaining and maintaining 
a practitioner’s registration. See, e.g., 
James L. Hooper, D.O., 76 FR 71371, 
71372 (2011), pet. for rev. denied, 481 
F. App’x 826 (4th Cir. 2012); Frederick 
Marsh Blanton, D.O., 43 FR 27616, 
27617 (1978).3 

According to California statute, 
‘‘dispense’’ means ‘‘to deliver a 
controlled substance to an ultimate user 
or research subject by or pursuant to the 
lawful order of a practitioner, including 
the prescribing, furnishing, packaging, 
labeling, or compounding necessary to 
prepare the substance for that delivery.’’ 
Cal. Health & Safety Code section 11010 
(West 2024). Furthermore, a 
‘‘practitioner’’ means a person 
‘‘licensed, registered, or otherwise 
permitted, to distribute, dispense, 
conduct research with respect to, or 
administer, a controlled substance in 
the course of professional practice or 
research in [the] state.’’ Id. 
section 11026(c). 

Here, the undisputed evidence in the 
record is that Registrant currently lacks 
authority to practice medicine in 
California. As discussed above, a 
physician must be a licensed 
practitioner to dispense a controlled 
substance in California. Thus, because 
Registrant currently lacks authority to 
practice medicine in California and, 
therefore, is not currently authorized to 
handle controlled substances in 
California, Registrant is not eligible to 
maintain a DEA registration. 
Accordingly, the Agency will order that 
Registrant’s DEA registration be 
revoked. 

Order 
Pursuant to 28 CFR 0.100(b) and the 

authority vested in me by 21 U.S.C. 
824(a), I hereby revoke DEA Certificate 
of Registration No. BA6612142 issued to 
Massoud Amini, M.D. Further, pursuant 
to 28 CFR 0.100(b) and the authority 
vested in me by 21 U.S.C. 823(g)(1), I 
hereby deny any pending applications 
of Massoud Amini, M.D., to renew or 
modify this registration, as well as any 
other pending application of Massoud 
Amini, M.D., for additional registration 
in California. This Order is effective 
March 10, 2025. 

Signing Authority 
This document of the Drug 

Enforcement Administration was signed 

on January 31, 2025, by Acting 
Administrator Derek Maltz. That 
document with the original signature 
and date is maintained by DEA. For 
administrative purposes only, and in 
compliance with requirements of the 
Office of the Federal Register, the 
undersigned DEA Federal Register 
Liaison Officer has been authorized to 
sign and submit the document in 
electronic format for publication, as an 
official document of DEA. This 
administrative process in no way alters 
the legal effect of this document upon 
publication in the Federal Register. 

Heather Achbach, 
Federal Register Liaison Officer, Drug 
Enforcement Administration. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02342 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4410–09–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

[Docket No. 24–47] 

Herold Pierre-Louis, P.A.; Decision and 
Order 

On May 21, 2024, the Drug 
Enforcement Administration (DEA or 
Government) issued an Order to Show 
Cause (OSC) to Herold Pierre-Louis, 
P.A., of Tucson, Arizona (Respondent). 
OSC, at 1, 3. The OSC proposed the 
revocation of Respondent’s DEA 
Certificate of Registration No. 
MP7845766, alleging that Respondent’s 
DEA registration should be revoked 
because Respondent is ‘‘without 
authority to prescribe, administer, 
dispense, or otherwise handle 
controlled substances in the State of 
Arizona, the state in which [he is] 
registered with DEA.’’ Id. at 2 (citing 21 
U.S.C. 824(a)(3)). 

On May 30, 2024, Respondent 
requested a hearing and filed an Answer 
to the OSC. On June 10, 2024, the 
Government filed a Motion for 
Summary Disposition, to which 
Respondent did not respond.1 On June 
27, 2024, Administrative Law Judge 
Paul E. Soeffing (the ALJ) granted the 
Government’s Motion for Summary 
Disposition and recommended the 
revocation of Respondent’s registration, 
finding that because Respondent lacks 
state authority to handle controlled 
substances in Arizona, the state in 
which he is registered with DEA, ‘‘there 
is no other fact of consequence for this 
tribunal to decide.’’ Order Granting the 
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2 See also Government’s Notice of Filing of 
Evidence of Lack of State Authority; Service of 
Order to Show Cause; and Motion for Summary 
Disposition, Exhibit A, at 10. 

3 Under the Administrative Procedure Act, an 
agency ‘‘may take official notice of facts at any stage 
in a proceeding—even in the final decision.’’ 
United States Department of Justice, Attorney 
General’s Manual on the Administrative Procedure 
Act 80 (1947) (Wm. W. Gaunt & Sons, Inc., Reprint 
1979). Pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 556(e), ‘‘[w]hen an 
agency decision rests on official notice of a material 
fact not appearing in the evidence in the record, a 
party is entitled, on timely request, to an 
opportunity to show the contrary.’’ Accordingly, 
Respondent may dispute the Agency’s finding by 
filing a properly supported motion for 
reconsideration of findings of fact within fifteen 
calendar days of the date of this Order. Any such 
motion and response shall be filed and served by 
email to the other party and to Office of the 
Administrator, Drug Enforcement Administration at 
dea.addo.attorneys@dea.gov. 

4 As of August 23, 2024, the Arizona Regulatory 
Board of Physician Assistants website identified 
Respondent’s physician assistant license as 
revoked. However, there is no longer any record of 
Respondent’s licensure on the website. Despite 
being provided an opportunity to so do, Respondent 
has not established that his Arizona license has 
been reinstated or that he otherwise has state 
authority to dispense controlled substances. 
Following the issuance of the RD, Respondent did 
not file any Exceptions to indicate that his license 
had been restored. Additionally, on October 1, 
2024, the Agency issued a Briefing Order requesting 
documentary evidence regarding the status of 
Respondent’s Arizona physician assistant license. 
Respondent’s acknowledged receipt of the Order, 
but did not provide any responsive documentation 
or evidence regarding the status of his Arizona 
license. Accordingly, the Agency finds that 
Respondent’s Arizona physician assistant license 
remains revoked. See Fares F. Yasin, M.D., 88 FR 
74523, 74524 n.5 (2023); Heather M. Entrekin, 
DVM, 88 FR 17266, 17266 (2023). Respondent may 
dispute the Agency’s finding by filing a motion for 

reconsideration of findings of fact within fifteen 
calendar days of the date of this Order with 
supporting documentation (showing that 
Respondent had state authority to dispense 
controlled substances on or before the date of this 
Order). Any such motion and response shall be 
filed and served by email to the other party and to 
Office of the Administrator, Drug Enforcement 
Administration, at dea.addo.attorneys@dea.gov. 

5 This rule derives from the text of two provisions 
of the CSA. First, Congress defined the term 
‘‘practitioner’’ to mean ‘‘a physician . . . or other 
person licensed, registered, or otherwise permitted, 
by . . . the jurisdiction in which he practices . . . , 
to distribute, dispense, . . . [or] administer . . . a 
controlled substance in the course of professional 
practice.’’ 21 U.S.C. 802(21). Second, in setting the 
requirements for obtaining a practitioner’s 
registration, Congress directed that ‘‘[t]he Attorney 
General shall register practitioners . . . if the 
applicant is authorized to dispense . . . controlled 
substances under the laws of the State in which he 
practices.’’ 21 U.S.C. 823(g)(1). Because Congress 
has clearly mandated that a practitioner possess 
state authority in order to be deemed a practitioner 
under the CSA, DEA has held repeatedly that 
revocation of a practitioner’s registration is the 
appropriate sanction whenever he is no longer 
authorized to dispense controlled substances under 

the laws of the state in which he practices. See, e.g., 
James L. Hooper, M.D., 76 FR 71371, 71372; Sheran 
Arden Yeates, M.D., 71 FR 39130, 39131 (2006); 
Dominick A. Ricci, M.D., 58 FR 51104, 51105 
(1993); Bobby Watts, M.D., 53 FR 11919, 11920 
(1988); Frederick Marsh Blanton, M.D., 43 FR 
27617. Moreover, because ‘‘the controlling 
question’’ in a proceeding brought under 21 U.S.C. 
824(a)(3) is whether the holder of a practitioner’s 
registration ‘‘is currently authorized to handle 
controlled substances in the [S]tate,’’ Hooper, 76 FR 
71371 (quoting Anne Lazar Thorn, 62 FR 12847, 
12848 (1997)), the Agency has also long held that 
revocation is warranted even where a practitioner 
is still challenging the underlying action. Bourne 
Pharmacy, 72 FR 18273, 18274 (2007); Wingfield 
Drugs, 52 FR 27070, 27071 (1987). Thus, it is of no 
consequence that Respondent is still challenging 
the underlying action here, see Respondent’s 
Answer, at 2; Respondent’s Motion to Continue 
Show Cause Hearing. What is consequential is the 
Agency’s finding that Respondent is not currently 
authorized to dispense controlled substances in 
Arizona, the state in which he is registered with the 
DEA. Adley Dasilva, P.A., 87 FR 69341, 69341 n.2 
(2022); see also Order Denying Respondent’s 
Motion to Continue. 

Government’s Motion for Summary 
Disposition, and Recommended 
Rulings, Findings of Fact, Conclusions 
of Law, and Decision of the 
Administrative Law Judge (RD), at 5. 
Respondent did not file exceptions to 
the RD. 

Having reviewed the entire record, the 
Agency adopts and hereby incorporates 
by reference the entirety of the ALJ’s 
rulings, findings of fact, conclusions of 
law, and recommended sanction as 
found in the RD and summarizes and 
expands upon portions thereof herein. 

Findings of Fact 
On or about November 29, 2023, the 

Arizona Regulatory Board of Physician 
Assistants revoked Respondent’s 
Arizona physician assistant license. RD, 
at 3.2 According to Arizona online 
records, of which the Agency takes 
official notice, as of August 23, 2024, 
the status of Respondent’s Arizona 
physician assistant license was 
revoked.3 Arizona Regulatory Board of 
Physician Assistants, Find Your PA, 
https://www.azpa.gov/PASearch/ 
PASearch (last visited date of signature 
of this Order).4 Accordingly, the Agency 

finds that Respondent is not currently 
licensed to practice as a physician 
assistant in Arizona, the state in which 
he is registered with DEA. 

Discussion 
Pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 824(a)(3), the 

Attorney General is authorized to 
suspend or revoke a registration issued 
under section 823 of the Controlled 
Substances Act (CSA) ‘‘upon a finding 
that the registrant . . . has had his State 
license or registration suspended . . . 
[or] revoked . . . by competent State 
authority and is no longer authorized by 
State law to engage in the . . . 
dispensing of controlled substances.’’ 
With respect to a practitioner, DEA has 
also long held that the possession of 
authority to dispense controlled 
substances under the laws of the state in 
which a practitioner engages in 
professional practice is a fundamental 
condition for obtaining and maintaining 
a practitioner’s registration. Gonzales v. 
Oregon, 546 U.S. 243, 270 (2006) (‘‘The 
Attorney General can register a 
physician to dispense controlled 
substances ‘if the applicant is 
authorized to dispense . . . controlled 
substances under the laws of the State 
in which he practices.’ . . . The very 
definition of a ‘practitioner’ eligible to 
prescribe includes physicians ‘licensed, 
registered, or otherwise permitted, by 
the United States or the jurisdiction in 
which he practices’ to dispense 
controlled substances. § 802(21).’’). The 
Agency has applied these principles 
consistently. See, e.g., James L. Hooper, 
M.D., 76 FR 71371, 71372 (2011), pet. 
for rev. denied, 481 F. App’x 826 (4th 
Cir. 2012); Frederick Marsh Blanton, 
M.D., 43 FR 27616, 27617 (1978).5 

According to Arizona statute, ‘‘[e]very 
person who manufactures, distributes, 
dispenses, prescribes or uses for 
scientific purposes any controlled 
substance within th[e] state or who 
proposes to engage in the manufacture, 
distribution, prescribing or dispensing 
of or using for scientific purposes any 
controlled substance within th[e] state 
must first: (1) [o]btain and possess a 
current license or permit as a medical 
practitioner as defined in § 32–1901 
. . . .’’ Ariz. Rev. Stat. Ann. section 36– 
2522(A)(1) (2024). Section 32–1901 
defines a ‘‘[m]edical practitioner’’ as 
‘‘any medical doctor . . . or other 
person who is licensed and authorized 
by law to use and prescribe drugs and 
devices to treat sick and injured human 
beings or animals or to diagnose or 
prevent sickness in human beings or 
animals in [Arizona] or any state, 
territory or district of the United 
States.’’ Id. section 32–1901. 

Here, the undisputed evidence in the 
record is that Respondent lacks 
authority to practice as a physician 
assistant in Arizona. As discussed 
above, only a licensed medical 
practitioner can dispense controlled 
substances in Arizona. Thus, because 
Respondent lacks authority to practice 
as a physician assistant in Arizona, and 
therefore is not a licensed medical 
practitioner, Respondent is not eligible 
to maintain a DEA registration. 
Accordingly, the Agency will order that 
Respondent’s DEA registration be 
revoked. 

Order 
Pursuant to 28 CFR 0.100(b) and the 

authority vested in me by 21 U.S.C. 
824(a), I hereby revoke DEA Certificate 
of Registration No. MP7845766 issued to 
Herold Pierre-Louis, P.A. Further, 
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1 According to Agency records, Registrant’s 
registration expired on August 31, 2024. The fact 
that a registrant allows his registration to expire 
during the pendency of an OSC does not impact the 
Agency’s jurisdiction or prerogative under the 
Controlled Substances Act (CSA) to adjudicate the 
OSC to finality. Jeffrey D. Olsen, M.D., 84 FR 68474, 
68476–79 (2019). 

2 Based on the Government’s submissions in its 
RFAA dated July 18, 2024, the Agency finds that 
service of the OSC on Registrant was adequate. 
Specifically, the included Declaration from a DEA 
Diversion Investigator (DI) indicates that on May 26, 
2023, Registrant was personally served a copy of the 
OSC at the Arapahoe County Detention Center in 
Centennial, Colorado, where Registrant remained 
incarcerated. RFAAX 3, at 2. 

3 Under the Administrative Procedure Act, an 
agency ‘‘may take official notice of facts at any stage 
in a proceeding—even in the final decision.’’ 
United States Department of Justice, Attorney 
General’s Manual on the Administrative Procedure 
Act 80 (1947) (Wm. W. Gaunt & Sons, Inc., Reprint 
1979). Pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 556(e), ‘‘[w]hen an 
agency decision rests on official notice of a material 
fact not appearing in the evidence in the record, a 
party is entitled, on timely request, to an 
opportunity to show the contrary.’’ Accordingly, 
Registrant may dispute the Agency’s finding by 
filing a properly supported motion for 
reconsideration of findings of fact within fifteen 
calendar days of the date of this Order. Any such 
motion and response shall be filed and served by 
email to the other party and to the DEA Office of 
the Administrator, Drug Enforcement 
Administration at dea.addo.attorneys@dea.gov. 

4 This rule derives from the text of two provisions 
of the CSA. First, Congress defined the term 
‘‘practitioner’’ to mean ‘‘a physician . . . or other 
person licensed, registered, or otherwise permitted, 
by . . . the jurisdiction in which he practices . . . , 
to distribute, dispense, . . . [or] administer . . . a 
controlled substance in the course of professional 
practice.’’ 21 U.S.C. 802(21). Second, in setting the 
requirements for obtaining a practitioner’s 
registration, Congress directed that ‘‘[t]he Attorney 
General shall register practitioners . . . if the 
applicant is authorized to dispense . . . controlled 
substances under the laws of the State in which he 
practices.’’ 21 U.S.C. 823(g)(1). Because Congress 
has clearly mandated that a practitioner possess 
state authority in order to be deemed a practitioner 
under the CSA, DEA has held repeatedly that 
revocation of a practitioner’s registration is the 
appropriate sanction whenever he is no longer 
authorized to dispense controlled substances under 
the laws of the state in which he practices. See, e.g., 
James L. Hooper, M.D., 76 FR 71371–72; Sheran 
Arden Yeates, M.D., 71 FR 39130, 39131 (2006); 
Dominick A. Ricci, M.D., 58 FR 51104, 51105 
(1993); Bobby Watts, M.D., 53 FR 11919, 11920 
(1988); Frederick Marsh Blanton, M.D., 43 FR 
27617. 

pursuant to 28 CFR 0.100(b) and the 
authority vested in me by 21 U.S.C. 
823(g)(1), I hereby deny any pending 
applications of Herold Pierre-Louis, 
P.A., to renew or modify this 
registration, as well as any other 
pending application of Herold Pierre- 
Louis, P.A., for additional registration in 
Arizona. This Order is effective March 
10, 2025. 

Signing Authority 

This document of the Drug 
Enforcement Administration was signed 
on January 31, 2025, by Acting 
Administrator Derek Maltz. That 
document with the original signature 
and date is maintained by DEA. For 
administrative purposes only, and in 
compliance with requirements of the 
Office of the Federal Register, the 
undersigned DEA Federal Register 
Liaison Officer has been authorized to 
sign and submit the document in 
electronic format for publication, as an 
official document of DEA. This 
administrative process in no way alters 
the legal effect of this document upon 
publication in the Federal Register. 

Heather Achbach, 
Federal Register Liaison Officer, Drug 
Enforcement Administration. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02339 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4410–09–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

James T. Craig, D.D.S.; Decision and 
Order 

On May 24, 2023, the Drug 
Enforcement Administration (DEA or 
Government) issued an Order to Show 
Cause (OSC) to James T. Craig, D.D.S., 
of Aurora, Colorado (Registrant). 
Request for Final Agency Action 
(RFAA), Exhibit (RFAAX) 2, at 1, 3. The 
OSC proposed the revocation of 
Registrant’s Certificate of Registration 
No. FC0032348, alleging that 
Registrant’s registration should be 
revoked because Registrant is ‘‘currently 
without authority to prescribe, 
administer, dispense, or otherwise 
handle controlled substances in 
Colorado, the state in which [he is] 
registered with DEA.’’ Id. at 2 (citing 21 
U.S.C. 824(a)(3)).1 

The OSC notified Registrant of his 
right to file a written request for hearing, 
and that if he failed to file such a 
request, he would be deemed to have 
waived his right to a hearing and be in 
default. Id. at 2 (citing 21 CFR 1301.43). 
Here, Registrant did not request a 
hearing. RFAA, at 2.2 ‘‘A default, unless 
excused, shall be deemed to constitute 
a waiver of the registrant’s/applicant’s 
right to a hearing and an admission of 
the factual allegations of the [OSC].’’ 21 
CFR 1301.43(e). 

Further, ‘‘[i]n the event that a 
registrant . . . is deemed to be in 
default . . . DEA may then file a request 
for final agency action with the 
Administrator, along with a record to 
support its request. In such 
circumstances, the Administrator may 
enter a default final order pursuant to 
[21 CFR] § 1316.67.’’ Id. § 1301.43(f)(1). 
Here, the Government has requested 
final agency action based on Registrant’s 
default pursuant to 21 CFR 1301.43(c), 
(f), 1301.46. RFAA, at 3; see also 21 CFR 
1316.67. 

Findings of Fact 

The Agency finds that, in light of 
Registrant’s default, the factual 
allegations in the OSC are admitted. 
According to the OSC, on March 23, 
2023, Registrant’s Colorado dental 
license was suspended. RFAAX 2, at 1– 
2. According to Colorado online records, 
of which the Agency takes official 
notice, Registrant’s Colorado dentist 
license is revoked.3 Colorado Division 
of Professions and Occupations License 
Search, https://apps2.colorado.gov/ 
dora/licensing/lookup/licenselookup.
aspx (last visited date of signature of 
this Order). 

Accordingly, the Agency finds that 
Registrant is not licensed to practice as 
a dentist in Colorado, the state in which 
he is registered with DEA. 

Discussion 
Pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 824(a)(3), the 

Attorney General is authorized to 
suspend or revoke a registration issued 
under 21 U.S.C. 823 ‘‘upon a finding 
that the registrant . . . has had his State 
license or registration suspended . . . 
[or] revoked . . . by competent State 
authority and is no longer authorized by 
State law to engage in the . . . 
dispensing of controlled substances.’’ 
With respect to a practitioner, DEA has 
also long held that the possession of 
authority to dispense controlled 
substances under the laws of the state in 
which a practitioner engages in 
professional practice is a fundamental 
condition for obtaining and maintaining 
a practitioner’s registration. Gonzales v. 
Oregon, 546 U.S. 243, 270 (2006) (‘‘The 
Attorney General can register a 
physician to dispense controlled 
substances ‘if the applicant is 
authorized to dispense . . . controlled 
substances under the laws of the State 
in which he practices.’ . . . The very 
definition of a ‘practitioner’ eligible to 
prescribe includes physicians ‘licensed, 
registered, or otherwise permitted, by 
the United States or the jurisdiction in 
which he practices’ to dispense 
controlled substances. § 802(21).’’). The 
Agency has applied these principles 
consistently. See, e.g., James L. Hooper, 
M.D., 76 FR 71371, 71372 (2011), pet. 
for rev. denied, 481 F. App’x 826 (4th 
Cir. 2012); Frederick Marsh Blanton, 
M.D., 43 FR 27616, 27617 (1978).4 

According to Colorado statute, 
‘‘dispense’’ means ‘‘to deliver a 
controlled substance to an ultimate user, 
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patient, or research subject by or 
pursuant to the lawful order of a 
practitioner, including the prescribing, 
administering, packaging, labeling, or 
compounding necessary to prepare the 
substance for that delivery.’’ Colo. Rev. 
Stat. section 18–18–102(9) (2024). 
Further, a ‘‘practitioner’’ means a 
‘‘physician . . . or other person 
licensed, registered, or otherwise 
permitted, by this state, to distribute, 
dispense, conduct research with respect 
to, administer, or to use in teaching or 
chemical analysis, a controlled 
substance in the course of professional 
practice or research.’’ Id. section 18–18– 
102(29). 

Here, the undisputed evidence in the 
record is that Registrant lacks authority 
to practice as a dentist in Colorado. As 
discussed above an individual must be 
a licensed practitioner to dispense a 
controlled substance in Colorado. Thus, 
because Registrant lacks authority to 
practice as a dentist in Colorado and, 
therefore, is not authorized to handle 
controlled substances in Colorado, 
Registrant is not eligible to maintain a 
DEA registration. Accordingly, the 
Agency will order that Registrant’s DEA 
registration be revoked. 

Order 

Pursuant to 28 CFR 0.100(b) and the 
authority vested in me by 21 U.S.C. 
824(a), I hereby revoke DEA Certificate 
of Registration No. FC0032348, issued to 
James T. Craig, D.D.S. Further, pursuant 
to 28 CFR 0.100(b) and the authority 
vested in me by 21 U.S.C. 823(g)(1), I 
hereby deny any pending applications 
of James T. Craig, D.D.S., to renew or 
modify this registration, as well as any 
other pending application of James T. 
Craig, D.D.S., for additional registration 
in Colorado. This Order is effective 
March 10, 2025. 

Signing Authority 

This document of the Drug 
Enforcement Administration was signed 
on January 31, 2025, by Acting 
Administrator Derek Maltz. That 
document with the original signature 
and date is maintained by DEA. For 
administrative purposes only, and in 
compliance with requirements of the 
Office of the Federal Register, the 
undersigned DEA Federal Register 
Liaison Officer has been authorized to 
sign and submit the document in 
electronic format for publication, as an 
official document of DEA. This 
administrative process in no way alters 

the legal effect of this document upon 
publication in the Federal Register. 

Heather Achbach, 
Federal Register Liaison Officer, Drug 
Enforcement Administration. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02341 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4410–09–P 

NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION 

Sunshine Act Meetings 

The National Science Board’s 
Committee on Awards and Facilities 
(A&F) hereby gives notice of the 
scheduling of meetings for the 
transaction of National Science Board 
business pursuant to the National 
Science Foundation Act and the 
Government in the Sunshine Act. 
TIME AND DATE: The A&F meeting will be 
held on Monday, February 10, 2025. 
The open session will be from 2:30 
p.m.–3:00 p.m. The closed session will 
be from 3:00 p.m.–5:00 p.m. 
PLACE: The meetings will be held at NSF 
headquarters, 2145 Eisenhower Ave., 
Alexandria, VA 22314, and by 
videoconference. 
STATUS: One session is open, and one 
session is closed. 
MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED:  

A&F open session agenda: Opening 
Remarks; Information Item: Summit 
Station Recapitalization. 

A&F closed session agenda: Opening 
Remarks regarding the agenda; 
Discussion and Vote: National Radio 
Astronomy Observatory Operations and 
Maintenance Award Authorization 
Level Increase; Context Item: Mid-scale 
Research Infrastructure Program Track 
2; Context Item: National Geophysical 
Facility. 
CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE INFORMATION: 
Point of contact for this meeting is: 
Michelle McCrackin, mmccrack@
nsf.gov, (703) 292–7000. Members of the 
public can observe the public portion of 
this meeting through a YouTube 
livestream: https://youtube.com/live/
45FMoMrZar8?feature=share. 

Ann E. Bushmiller, 
Senior Legal Counsel to the National Science 
Board. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02403 Filed 2–5–25; 11:15 am] 

BILLING CODE 7555–01–P 

NEIGHBORHOOD REINVESTMENT 
CORPORATION 

Sunshine Act Meetings 

TIME AND DATE: 2:00 p.m., Thursday, 
February 18, 2025. 

PLACE: via ZOOM. 
STATUS: Parts of this meeting will be 
open to the public. The rest of the 
meeting will be closed to the public. 
MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular 
Board of Directors meeting. 

The General Counsel of the 
Corporation has certified that in her 
opinion, one or more of the exemptions 
set forth in the Government in the 
Sunshine Act, 5 U.S.C. 552b(c)(2) 
permit closure of the following 
portion(s) of this meeting: 
• Executive (Closed) Session 

Agenda 
I. Call to Order 
II. Sunshine Act Approval of Executive 

(Closed) Session 
III. Executive Session: CEO Report 
IV. Executive Session: CFO Report 
V. Executive Session: General Counsel 

Report 
VI. Executive Session: CIO Report 
VII. Action Item: Approval of Meeting 

Minutes for December 19 Regular 
Board Meeting 

VIII. Action Item: Resolution of 
Recognition of Service for Former 
FDIC Chairman Gruenberg 

IX. Action Item: Resolution of 
Recognition of Service for Former 
Acting HUD Secretary Todman 

X. Discussion Item: National 
NeighborWorks Association 
Presentation 

XI. Discussion Item: Capital 
Corporations Presentation 

XII. Discussion Item: Health Insurance 
Delegation of Authority 

XIII. Discussion Item: Professional 
Learning and Event Planning 
Management System (PLEMS) 

XIV. Discussion Item: Management 
Program Background and Updates 

a. 2025 Board Calendar 
b. 2025 Board Agenda Planner 
c. CFO Report 
i. Financials (through 11/30/24) 
ii. Single Invoice Approvals $100K 

and over 
iii. Vendor Payments $350K and over 
iv. Exceptions 
d. Housing Stability Counseling 

Program (HSCP) 
e. Strategic Plan Scorecard—FY24 Q4 

(With Q4 Production) 
PORTIONS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: 
Everything except the Executive 
(Closed) Session. 
PORTIONS CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC: 
Executive (Closed) Session. 
CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE INFORMATION: 
Jenna Sylvester, Paralegal, (202) 568– 
2560; jsylvester@nw.org. 

Jenna Sylvester, 
Paralegal. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02391 Filed 2–5–25; 11:15 am] 

BILLING CODE 7570–01–P 
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NUCLEAR REGULATORY 
COMMISSION 

[Docket Nos. 50–269, 50–270, and 50–287; 
NRC–2021–0146] 

Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC; Oconee 
Nuclear Station, Units 1, 2, and 3; Final 
Site-Specific Environmental Impact 
Statement 

AGENCY: Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice; issuance. 

SUMMARY: The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission (NRC) has published a final 
site-specific environmental impact 
statement (EIS), issued as NUREG–1437, 
Supplement 2, Second Renewal, ‘‘Site- 
Specific Environmental Impact 
Statement for License Renewal of 
Nuclear Plants Regarding Subsequent 
License Renewal for Oconee Nuclear 
Station, Units 1, 2, and 3, Final Report.’’ 
This EIS evaluates, on a site-specific 
basis, the environmental impacts of 
subsequent renewal of Renewed Facility 
Operating License Nos. DPR–38, DPR– 
47, and DPR–55 for an additional 20 
years of operation for Oconee Nuclear 
Station, Units 1, 2, and 3 (Oconee 
Station), respectively. Oconee Station is 
located in Seneca, South Carolina, 
approximately 30 miles west of 
Greenville. Possible alternatives to the 
proposed action of subsequent license 
renewal for Oconee Station include the 
no-action alternative, a new nuclear 
alternative, a natural gas combined- 
cycle alternative, and a combination 
alternative. 

DATES: NUREG–1437, Supplement 2, 
Second Renewal, is available as of 
February 3, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: Please refer to Docket ID 
NRC–2021–0146 when contacting the 
NRC about the availability of 
information regarding this document. 
You may obtain publicly available 
information related to this document 
using any of the following methods: 

• Federal Rulemaking Website: Go to 
https://www.regulations.gov and search 
for Docket ID NRC–2021–0146. Address 
questions about Docket IDs in 
Regulations.gov to Bridget Curran; 
telephone: 301–415–1003; email: 
Bridget.Curran@nrc.gov. For technical 
questions, contact the individual listed 
in the FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
CONTACT section of this document. 

• NRC’s Agencywide Documents 
Access and Management System 
(ADAMS): You may obtain publicly 
available documents online in the 
ADAMS Public Documents collection at 
https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/ 
adams.html. To begin the search, select 

‘‘Begin Web-based ADAMS Search.’’ For 
problems with ADAMS, please contact 
the NRC’s Public Document Room (PDR) 
reference staff at 1–800–397–4209, at 
301–415–4737, or by email to 
PDR.Resource@nrc.gov. NUREG–1437, 
Supplement 2, Second Renewal, is 
available in ADAMS under Accession 
No. ML25031A307. 

• NRC’s PDR: The PDR, where you 
may examine and order copies of 
publicly available documents, is open 
by appointment. To make an 
appointment to visit the PDR, please 
send an email to PDR.Resource@nrc.gov 
or call 1–800–397–4209 or 301–415– 
4737, between 8 a.m. and 4 p.m. eastern 
time (ET), Monday through Friday, 
except Federal holidays. 

• Public Library: NUREG–1437, 
Supplement 2, Second Renewal, will be 
available for public inspection at the 
Oconee County Public Library, 300 E 
South 2nd St., Seneca, SC 29678. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Lance J. Rakovan, Office of Nuclear 
Material Safety and Safeguards, U.S. 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 
Washington, DC 20555–0001; telephone: 
301–415–2589; email: Lance.Rakovan@
nrc.gov. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

I. Background 

In accordance with section 51.118 of 
title 10 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations, ‘‘Final environmental 
impact statement—notice of 
availability,’’ the NRC is making 
available for public inspection site- 
specific NUREG–1437, Supplement 2, 
Second Renewal, regarding the 
subsequent renewal of Duke Energy 
Carolinas’ (Duke Energy) Renewed 
Facility Operating License Nos. DPR–38, 
DPR–47, and DPR–55 for an additional 
20 years of operation for Oconee 
Station. A notice of availability of the 
site-specific draft of NUREG–1437, 
Supplement 2, Second Renewal, was 
published in the Federal Register on 
February 13, 2024, by the NRC (89 FR 
10107) and on February 16, 2024, by the 
Environmental Protection Agency (89 
FR 12335). The public comment period 
on the draft site-specific EIS ended on 
April 1, 2024, and the comments 
received are addressed in the final EIS. 

II. Discussion 

As discussed in Chapter 4 of NUREG– 
1437, Supplement 2, Second Renewal, 
the NRC staff’s recommendation is that 
the adverse environmental impacts of 
subsequent license renewal for Oconee 
Station for an additional 20 years 
beyond the expiration dates of the 
initial renewed licenses are not so great 

that preserving the option of subsequent 
license renewal for energy-planning 
decisionmakers would be unreasonable. 
This recommendation is based on: (1) 
Duke Energy’s environmental report, as 
supplemented; (2) the NRC staff’s 
consultations with Federal, State, 
Tribal, and local government agencies; 
(3) the NRC staff’s independent 
environmental review, which is 
documented in NUREG–1437, 
Supplement 2, Second Renewal; and (4) 
the NRC staff’s consideration of public 
comments. 

Dated: February 4, 2025. 
For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. 

John Moses, 
Deputy Director, Division of Rulemaking, 
Environmental, and Financial Support, Office 
of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02369 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7590–01–P 

NUCLEAR REGULATORY 
COMMISSION 

[NRC–2025–0001] 

Sunshine Act Meetings 

TIME AND DATE: Weeks of February 10, 
17, 24, March 3, 10 and March 17, 2025. 
The schedule for Commission meetings 
is subject to change on short notice. The 
NRC Commission Meeting Schedule can 
be found on the internet at: https://
www.nrc.gov/public-involve/public- 
meetings/schedule.html. 
PLACE: The NRC provides reasonable 
accommodation to individuals with 
disabilities where appropriate. If you 
need a reasonable accommodation to 
participate in these public meetings or 
need this meeting notice or the 
transcript or other information from the 
public meetings in another format (e.g., 
braille, large print), please notify Anne 
Silk, NRC Disability Program Specialist, 
at 301–287–0745, by videophone at 
240–428–3217, or by email at 
Anne.Silk@nrc.gov. Determinations on 
requests for reasonable accommodation 
will be made on a case-by-case basis. 
STATUS: Public. 

Members of the public may request to 
receive the information in these notices 
electronically. If you would like to be 
added to the distribution, please contact 
the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 
Office of the Secretary, Washington, DC 
20555, at 301–415–1969, or by email at 
Betty.Thweatt@nrc.gov or 
Samantha.Miklaszewski@nrc.gov. 
MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED:  

Week of February 10, 2025 
There are no meetings scheduled for 

the week of February 10, 2025. 
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1 See Docket No. RM2018–3, Order Adopting 
Final Rules Relating to Non-Public Information, 
June 27, 2018, Attachment A at 19–22 (Order No. 
4679). 

Week of February 17, 2025—Tentative 

There are no meetings scheduled for 
the week of February 17, 2025. 

Week of February 24, 2025—Tentative 

There are no meetings scheduled for 
the week of February 24, 2025. 

Week of March 3, 2025—Tentative 

There are no meetings scheduled for 
the week of March 3, 2025. 

Week of March 10, 2025—Tentative 

There are no meetings scheduled for 
the week of March 10, 2025. 

Week of March 17, 2025—Tentative 

There are no meetings scheduled for 
the week of March 17, 2025. 
CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE INFORMATION: 
For more information or to verify the 
status of meetings, contact Chris 
Markley at 301–415–6293 or via email at 
Christopher.Markley@nrc.gov. 

The NRC is holding the meetings 
under the authority of the Government 
in the Sunshine Act, 5 U.S.C. 552b. 

Dated: February 5, 2025. 
For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. 

Christopher Markley, 
Policy Coordinator, Office of the Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02413 Filed 2–5–25; 11:15 am] 

BILLING CODE 7590–01–P 

POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION 

[Docket Nos. MC2025–1169 and K2025– 
1169; MC2025–1171 and K2025–1171; 
MC2025–1172 and K2025–1172] 

New Postal Products 

AGENCY: Postal Regulatory Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: The Commission is noticing a 
recent Postal Service filing for the 
Commission’s consideration concerning 
a negotiated service agreement. This 
notice informs the public of the filing, 
invites public comment, and takes other 
administrative steps. 
DATES: Comments are due: February 11, 
2025. 
ADDRESSES: Submit comments 
electronically via the Commission’s 
Filing Online system at https://
www.prc.gov. Those who cannot submit 
comments electronically should contact 
the person identified in the FOR FURTHER 
INFORMATION CONTACT section by 
telephone for advice on filing 
alternatives. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
David A. Trissell, General Counsel, at 
202–789–6820. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Table of Contents 

I. Introduction 
II. Public Proceeding(s) 
III. Summary Proceeding(s) 

I. Introduction 

Pursuant to 39 CFR 3041.405, the 
Commission gives notice that the Postal 
Service filed request(s) for the 
Commission to consider matters related 
to Competitive negotiated service 
agreement(s). The request(s) may 
propose the addition of a negotiated 
service agreement from the Competitive 
product list or the modification of an 
existing product currently appearing on 
the Competitive product list. 

The public portions of the Postal 
Service’s request(s) can be accessed via 
the Commission’s website (http://
www.prc.gov). Non-public portions of 
the Postal Service’s request(s), if any, 
can be accessed through compliance 
with the requirements of 39 CFR 
3011.301.1 

Section II identifies the docket 
number(s) associated with each Postal 
Service request, if any, that will be 
reviewed in a public proceeding as 
defined by 39 CFR 3010.101(p), the title 
of each such request, the request’s 
acceptance date, and the authority cited 
by the Postal Service for each request. 
For each such request, the Commission 
appoints an officer of the Commission to 
represent the interests of the general 
public in the proceeding, pursuant to 39 
U.S.C. 505 and 39 CFR 3000.114 (Public 
Representative). Section II also 
establishes comment deadline(s) 
pertaining to each such request. 

The Commission invites comments on 
whether the Postal Service’s request(s) 
identified in Section II, if any, are 
consistent with the policies of title 39. 
Applicable statutory and regulatory 
requirements include 39 U.S.C. 3632, 39 
U.S.C. 3633, 39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 
part 3035, and 39 CFR part 3041. 
Comment deadline(s) for each such 
request, if any, appear in Section II. 

Section III identifies the docket 
number(s) associated with each Postal 
Service request, if any, to add a 
standardized distinct product to the 
Competitive product list or to amend a 
standardized distinct product, the title 
of each such request, the request’s 
acceptance date, and the authority cited 
by the Postal Service for each request. 
Standardized distinct products are 
negotiated service agreements that are 
variations of one or more Competitive 
products, and for which financial 

models, minimum rates, and 
classification criteria have undergone 
advance Commission review. See 39 
CFR 3041.110(n); 39 CFR 3041.205(a). 
Such requests are reviewed in summary 
proceedings pursuant to 39 CFR 
3041.325(c)(2) and 39 CFR 
3041.505(f)(1). Pursuant to 39 CFR 
3041.405(c)–(d), the Commission does 
not appoint a Public Representative or 
request public comment in proceedings 
to review such requests. 

II. Public Proceeding(s) 

1. Docket No(s).: MC2025–1169 and 
K2025–1169; Filing Title: USPS Request 
to Add Priority Mail & USPS Ground 
Advantage Contract 611 to the 
Competitive Product List and Notice of 
Filing Materials Under Seal; Filing 
Acceptance Date: February 3, 2025; 
Filing Authority: 39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 
3035.105, and 39 CFR 3041.310; Public 
Representative: Kenneth Moeller; 
Comments Due: February 11, 2025. 

2. Docket No(s).: MC2025–1171 and 
K2025–1171; Filing Title: USPS Request 
to Add Priority Mail & USPS Ground 
Advantage Contract 613 to the 
Competitive Product List and Notice of 
Filing Materials Under Seal; Filing 
Acceptance Date: February 3, 2025; 
Filing Authority: 39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 
3035.105, and 39 CFR 3041.310; Public 
Representative: Christopher Mohr; 
Comments Due: February 11, 2025. 

3. Docket No(s).: MC2025–1172 and 
K2025–1172; Filing Title: USPS Request 
to Add Priority Mail Express, Priority 
Mail & USPS Ground Advantage 
Contract 1327 to the Competitive 
Product List and Notice of Filing 
Materials Under Seal; Filing Acceptance 
Date: February 3, 2025; Filing Authority: 
39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR 3035.105, and 
39 CFR 3041.310; Public Representative: 
Christopher Mohr; Comments Due: 
February 11, 2025. 

III. Summary Proceeding(s) 

None. See Section II for public 
proceedings. 

This Notice will be published in the 
Federal Register. 

Erica A. Barker, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02349 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 
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1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 
3 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A). 
4 17 CFR 240.19b–4(f). At any time within 60 days 

of the filing of the proposed rule change, the 
Commission summarily may temporarily suspend 
such rule change if it appears to the Commission 
that such action is necessary or appropriate in the 
public interest, for the protection of investors, or 
otherwise in furtherance of the purposes of the Act. 
If the Commission takes such action, the 
Commission will institute proceedings to determine 
whether the proposed rule change should be 
approved or disapproved. 

5 Copies of the submission, all subsequent 
amendments, all written statements with respect to 
the proposed rule change that are filed with the 
Commission, and all written communications 
relating to the proposed rule change between the 
Commission and any person, other than those that 
may be withheld from the public in accordance 
with the provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be 
available for website viewing and printing in the 
Commission’s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street 
NE, Washington, DC 20549, on official business 
days between the hours of 10 a.m. and 3 p.m. 
Copies of the filing also will be available for 
inspection and copying at the principal office of 
SRO. 

6 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 

1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 
3 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 101866 

(Dec. 10, 2024), 89 FR 101674 (Dec. 16, 2024) 
(‘‘Notice’’). 

4 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A). A proposed rule change 
may take effect upon filing with the Commission if 
it is designated by the exchange as ‘‘establishing or 
changing a due, fee, or other charge imposed by the 
self-regulatory organization on any person, whether 
or not the person is a member of the self-regulatory 
organization.’’ 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A)(ii). 

5 See Notice, supra note 3. 
6 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 

102277, 90 FR 8546 (Jan. 30, 2025). 
7 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102321; File No. SR– 
SAPPHIRE–2025–04] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; MIAX 
Sapphire, LLC; Notice of Filing and 
Immediate Effectiveness of a Proposed 
Rule Change To Establish Fees for the 
Exchange’s Proprietary Market Data 
Feeds: (i) MIAX Sapphire Top of Market 
Data Feed; (ii) MIAX Sapphire Complex 
Top of Market Data Feed; and (iii) MIAX 
Sapphire Liquidity Feed 

February 3, 2025. 
Pursuant to Section 19(b)(1) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(‘‘Act’’),1 and Rule 19b–4 thereunder,2 
notice is hereby given that on January 
23, 2025, MIAX Sapphire, LLC 
(‘‘Exchange’’) filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’) the proposed rule 
change as described in Item I below, 
which Item has been substantially 
prepared by the Exchange. The 
Exchange has designated this proposal 
for immediate effectiveness pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(3)(A) of the Act 3 and Rule 
19b–4(f) thereunder.4 The Commission 
is publishing this notice to solicit 
comments on the proposed rule change 
from interested persons. 

I. Self-Regulatory Organization’s 
Statement of the Terms of Substance of 
the Proposed Rule Change 

The Exchange is filing a proposal to 
amend the MIAX Sapphire Options 
Exchange Fee Schedule to establish fees 
for the Exchange’s proprietary market 
data feeds: (i) MIAX Sapphire Top of 
Market (‘‘ToM’’) data feed; (ii) MIAX 
Sapphire Complex Top of Market 
(‘‘cToM’’) data feed; and (iii) MIAX 
Sapphire Liquidity Feed (‘‘SLF’’). 

The proposed rule change, including 
the Exchange’s statement of the purpose 
of, and statutory basis for, the proposed 
rule change, is available on the 
Exchange’s website at https://
www.miaxglobal.com/markets/us- 
options/miax-sapphire/rule-filings and 
on the Commission’s website at https:// 
www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/self- 

regulatory-organization-rulemaking/ 
national-securities-exchanges?file_
number=SR-SAPPHIRE-2025-04. 

II. Solicitation of Comments 
Interested persons are invited to 

submit written data, views, and 
arguments concerning the foregoing, 
including whether the proposed rule 
change is consistent with the Act.5 
Comments may be submitted 
electronically by using the 
Commission’s internet comment form 
(https://www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/ 
self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-SAPPHIRE- 
2025-04) or by sending an email to rule- 
comments@sec.gov. Please include file 
number SR–SAPPHIRE–2025–04 on the 
subject line. Alternatively, paper 
comments may be sent to Secretary, 
Securities and Exchange Commission, 
100 F Street NE, Washington, DC 
20549–1090. All submissions should 
refer to file number SR–SAPPHIRE– 
2025–04. To help the Commission 
process and review your comments 
more efficiently, please use only one 
method. The Commission will post all 
comments on the Commission’s internet 
website (https://www.sec.gov/rules- 
regulations/self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-SAPPHIRE- 
2025-04). Do not include personal 
identifiable information in submissions; 
you should submit only information 
that you wish to make available 
publicly. We may redact in part or 
withhold entirely from publication 
submitted material that is obscene or 
subject to copyright protection. All 
submissions should refer to file number 
SR–SAPPHIRE–2025–04 and should be 
submitted on or before February 28, 
2025. 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.6 
Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02326 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102328; File No. SR– 
NYSEAMER–2024–63] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; NYSE 
American, LLC; Notice of Withdrawal 
of a Proposed Rule Change To Waive 
the Options Regulatory Fee (ORF) for 
December 2024 

February 3, 2025. 

On November 25, 2024, NYSE 
American, LLC (the ‘‘Exchange’’ or 
‘‘NYSE American’’) filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
(the ‘‘Commission’’), pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(1) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (the ‘‘Act’’) 1 and 
Rule 19b–4 thereunder,2 a proposed rule 
change (File No. SR–NYSEAMER–2024– 
63) to amend its Options Fee Schedule 
regarding the Options Regulatory Fee 
(‘‘ORF’’).3 The proposed rule change 
was immediately effective upon filing 
with the Commission pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(3)(A) of the Act.4 The 
proposed rule change was published for 
comment in the Federal Register on 
December 16, 2024.5 On January 24, 
2025, pursuant to Section 19(b)(3)(C) of 
the Act, the Commission temporarily 
suspended the proposed rule change 
and instituted proceedings under 
Section 19(b)(2)(B) of the Act to 
determine whether to approve or 
disapprove the proposed rule change.6 
On January 27, 2025, the Exchange 
withdrew the proposed rule change 
(SR–NYSEAMER–2024–63). 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.7 

Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02328 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 
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1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 
3 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 101868 

(Dec. 10, 2024), 89 FR 101650 (Dec. 16, 2024) 
(‘‘Notice’’). 

4 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A). A proposed rule change 
may take effect upon filing with the Commission if 
it is designated by the exchange as ‘‘establishing or 
changing a due, fee, or other charge imposed by the 
self-regulatory organization on any person, whether 
or not the person is a member of the self-regulatory 
organization.’’ 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A)(ii). 

5 See Notice, supra note 3. 
6 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 

102274, 90 FR 8413 (Jan. 29, 2025). 
7 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 

1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 
3 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A). 
4 17 CFR 240.19b–4(f). At any time within 60 days 

of the filing of the proposed rule change, the 
Commission summarily may temporarily suspend 
such rule change if it appears to the Commission 
that such action is necessary or appropriate in the 
public interest, for the protection of investors, or 
otherwise in furtherance of the purposes of the Act. 
If the Commission takes such action, the 
Commission will institute proceedings to determine 
whether the proposed rule change should be 
approved or disapproved. 

5 Copies of the submission, all subsequent 
amendments, all written statements with respect to 
the proposed rule change that are filed with the 
Commission, and all written communications 
relating to the proposed rule change between the 
Commission and any person, other than those that 
may be withheld from the public in accordance 
with the provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be 
available for website viewing and printing in the 
Commission’s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street 
NE, Washington, DC 20549, on official business 
days between the hours of 10 a.m. and 3 p.m. 
Copies of the filing also will be available for 
inspection and copying at the principal office of 
SRO. 

6 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102329; File No. SR– 
NYSEARCA–2024–90] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; NYSE 
Arca, Inc.; Notice of Withdrawal of a 
Proposed Rule Change To Waive the 
Options Regulatory Fee (ORF) for 
December 2024 

February 3, 2025. 

On November 25, 2024, NYSE Arca, 
Inc. (the ‘‘Exchange’’ or ‘‘NYSE Arca’’) 
filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the ‘‘Commission’’), 
pursuant to Section 19(b)(1) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the 
‘‘Act’’) 1 and Rule 19b–4 thereunder,2 a 
proposed rule change (File No. SR– 
NYSEARCA–2024–90) to amend its 
Options Fee Schedule regarding the 
Options Regulatory Fee (‘‘ORF’’).3 The 
proposed rule change was immediately 
effective upon filing with the 
Commission pursuant to Section 
19(b)(3)(A) of the Act.4 The proposed 
rule change was published for comment 
in the Federal Register on December 16, 
2024.5 On January 23, 2025, pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(3)(C) of the Act, the 
Commission temporarily suspended the 
proposed rule change and instituted 
proceedings under Section 19(b)(2)(B) of 
the Act to determine whether to approve 
or disapprove the proposed rule 
change.6 On January 27, 2025, the 
Exchange withdrew the proposed rule 
change (SR–NYSEARCA–2024–90). 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.7 

Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02333 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102325; File No. SR– 
CboeBZX–2025–009] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; Cboe 
BZX Exchange, Inc.; Notice of Filing 
and Immediate Effectiveness of a 
Proposed Rule Change To Amend Its 
Fee Schedule Regarding Dedicated 
Cores 

February 3, 2025. 
Pursuant to Section 19(b)(1) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(‘‘Act’’),1 and Rule 19b–4 thereunder,2 
notice is hereby given that on January 
24, 2025, Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc. 
(‘‘Exchange’’) filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’) the proposed rule 
change as described in Item I below, 
which Item has been substantially 
prepared by the Exchange. The 
Exchange has designated this proposal 
for immediate effectiveness pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(3)(A) of the Act 3 and Rule 
19b–4(f) thereunder.4 The Commission 
is publishing this notice to solicit 
comments on the proposed rule change 
from interested persons. 

I. Self-Regulatory Organization’s 
Statement of the Terms of Substance of 
the Proposed Rule Change 

The Exchange proposes to amend its 
fee schedule to adopt fees for Dedicated 
Cores. 

The proposed rule change, including 
the Exchange’s statement of the purpose 
of, and statutory basis for, the proposed 
rule change, is available on the 
Exchange’s website at http://
markets.cboe.com/us/equities/ 
regulation/rule_filings/BZX/ and on the 
Commission’s website at https://
www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/self- 
regulatory-organization-rulemaking/ 
national-securities-exchanges?file_
number=SR-CboeBZX-2025-009. 

II. Solicitation of Comments 

Interested persons are invited to 
submit written data, views, and 
arguments concerning the foregoing, 
including whether the proposed rule 

change is consistent with the Act.5 
Comments may be submitted 
electronically by using the 
Commission’s internet comment form 
(https://www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/ 
self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-CboeBZX- 
2025-009) or by sending an email to 
rule-comments@sec.gov. Please include 
file number SR–CboeBZX–2025–009 on 
the subject line. Alternatively, paper 
comments may be sent to Secretary, 
Securities and Exchange Commission, 
100 F Street NE, Washington, DC 
20549–1090. All submissions should 
refer to file number SR–CboeBZX–2025– 
009. To help the Commission process 
and review your comments more 
efficiently, please use only one method. 
The Commission will post all comments 
on the Commission’s internet website 
(https://www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/ 
self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-CboeBZX- 
2025-009). Do not include personal 
identifiable information in submissions; 
you should submit only information 
that you wish to make available 
publicly. We may redact in part or 
withhold entirely from publication 
submitted material that is obscene or 
subject to copyright protection. All 
submissions should refer to file number 
SR–CboeBZX–2025–009 and should be 
submitted on or before February 28, 
2025. 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.6 

Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02331 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 
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1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 
3 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 100473 

(July 9, 2024), 89 FR 57491. Comments on the 
proposed rule change are available at: https://
www.sec.gov/comments/sr-cboebzx-2024-055/ 
srcboebzx2024055.htm. 

4 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(2). 
5 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 

100867, 89 FR 71944 (Sept. 4, 2024). The 
Commission designated October 13, 2024, as the 
date by which the Commission shall approve or 
disapprove, or institute proceedings to determine 
whether to disapprove, the proposed rule change, 
as modified by Amendment No. 1. 

6 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(2)(B). 
7 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 

101322, 89 FR 83724 (Oct. 17, 2024). 

8 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 
101969, 89 FR 105162 (Dec. 26, 2024). 

9 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 
1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 
3 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A). 
4 17 CFR 240.19b–4(f). At any time within 60 days 

of the filing of the proposed rule change, the 
Commission summarily may temporarily suspend 
such rule change if it appears to the Commission 
that such action is necessary or appropriate in the 
public interest, for the protection of investors, or 
otherwise in furtherance of the purposes of the Act. 
If the Commission takes such action, the 
Commission will institute proceedings to determine 
whether the proposed rule change should be 
approved or disapproved. 

5 LTSE’s fee schedule was adopted in SR–LTSE– 
2024–06. See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 
34–101226 (October 1, 2024), 89 FR 81587 (October 
8, 2024) (SR–LTSE–2024–06). LTSE initially 
proposed to adopt Section C and establish 
Connectivity Fees in LTSE–2024–07. See Securities 
Exchange Act Release No. 34–101320 (October 11, 
2024), 89 FR 83731 (October 17, 2024) (SR–LTSE– 
2024–07). On November 27, 2024, the Exchange 
withdrew LTSE–2024–07 and replaced with a 
revised proposal (SR–LTSE–2024–09). See 
Securities Exchange Act Release No. 34–101851 
(December 9, 2024), 89 FR 101057 (December 13, 
2024) (SR–LTSE–2024–09). On January 23, 2025, 
the Exchange withdrew LTSE–2024–09. This 
proposal replaces LTSE–2024–09. 

6 Copies of the submission, all subsequent 
amendments, all written statements with respect to 
the proposed rule change that are filed with the 
Commission, and all written communications 
relating to the proposed rule change between the 
Commission and any person, other than those that 
may be withheld from the public in accordance 
with the provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be 
available for website viewing and printing in the 
Commission’s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street 
NE, Washington, DC 20549, on official business 
days between the hours of 10 a.m. and 3 p.m. 
Copies of the filing also will be available for 
inspection and copying at the principal office of 
SRO. 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102327; File No. SR– 
CboeBZX–2024–055] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; Cboe 
BZX Exchange, Inc.; Notice of 
Withdrawal of a Proposed Rule 
Change, as Modified by Amendment 
No. 1, To Exempt Closed-End 
Management Investment Companies 
Registered Under the Investment 
Company Act of 1940 From the Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders Requirement 
Set Forth in Exchange Rule 14.10(f) 

February 3, 2025. 
On June 25, 2024, Cboe BZX 

Exchange, Inc. (‘‘Exchange’’) filed with 
the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (‘‘Commission’’), pursuant 
to Section 19(b)(1) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (‘‘Act’’) 1 and Rule 
19b–4 thereunder,2 a proposed rule 
change to exempt closed-end 
management investment companies 
registered under the Investment 
Company Act of 1940 from the annual 
meeting of shareholders requirement set 
forth in Exchange Rule 14.10(f). On July 
2, 2024, the Exchange filed Amendment 
No. 1 to the proposed rule change, 
which replaced and superseded the 
proposed rule change in its entirety. The 
proposed rule change, as modified by 
Amendment No. 1, was published for 
comment in the Federal Register on July 
15, 2024.3 

On August 28, 2024, pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(2) of the Act,4 the 
Commission designated a longer period 
within which to approve the proposed 
rule change, disapprove the proposed 
rule change, or institute proceedings to 
determine whether to disapprove the 
proposed rule change.5 On October 11, 
2024, the Commission instituted 
proceedings under Section 19(b)(2)(B) of 
the Act 6 to determine whether to 
approve or disapprove the proposed 
rule change, as modified by Amendment 
No. 1.7 On December 18, 2024, the 
Commission extended the period for 

consideration of the proposed rule 
change to March 12, 2025.8 

On January 31, 2025, the Exchange 
withdrew the proposed rule change 
(CboeBZX–2024–055), as modified by 
Amendment No. 1. 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.9 

Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02327 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102322; File No. SR–LTSE– 
2025–01] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; Long- 
Term Stock Exchange, Inc.; Notice of 
Filing and Immediate Effectiveness of 
Proposed Rule Change To Amend the 
Fee Schedule To Establish Section C 
and Adopt Connectivity Fees for 
Cross-Connects at the Primary, 
Disaster Recovery and Test 
Environment Facilities 

February 3, 2025. 

Pursuant to Section 19(b)(1) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(‘‘Act’’),1 and Rule 19b–4 thereunder,2 
notice is hereby given that on January 
23, 2025, Long-Term Stock Exchange, 
Inc. (‘‘LTSE’’ or ‘‘Exchange’’) filed with 
the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (‘‘Commission’’) the 
proposed rule change as described in 
Item I below, which Item has been 
substantially prepared by the Exchange. 
The Exchange has designated this 
proposal for immediate effectiveness 
pursuant to Section 19(b)(3)(A) of the 
Act 3 and Rule 19b–4(f) thereunder.4 
The Commission is publishing this 
notice to solicit comments on the 
proposed rule change from interested 
persons. 

I. Self-Regulatory Organization’s 
Statement of the Terms of Substance of 
the Proposed Rule Change 

The Exchange is filing with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’) a proposed rule change 
to amend the LTSE Fee Schedule (the 
‘‘Fee Schedule’’) to establish Section C 
and adopt Connectivity Fees for Cross- 
Connects at the Primary, Disaster 
Recovery and Test Environment 
facilities. The Exchange also proposes to 
adopt Connectivity Fees for Logical 
Connectivity (all environments), 
effective January 23, 2025.5 

The text of the proposed rule change 
is available at the Exchange’s website at 
https://ltse.com/regulation/rule-filings, 
at the principal office of the Exchange, 
and at the Commission’s Public 
Reference Room. 

The proposed rule change, including 
the Exchange’s statement of the purpose 
of, and statutory basis for, the proposed 
rule change, is available on the 
Exchange’s website at https://ltse.com/ 
regulation/rule-filings, and on the 
Commission’s website at https://
www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/self- 
regulatory-organization-rulemaking/ 
national-securities-exchanges?file_
number=SR-LTSE-2025-01. 

II. Solicitation of Comments 

Interested persons are invited to 
submit written data, views, and 
arguments concerning the foregoing, 
including whether the proposed rule 
change is consistent with the Act.6 
Comments may be submitted 
electronically by using the 
Commission’s internet comment form 
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7 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 
1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 

3 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A). 
4 17 CFR 240.19b–4(f). At any time within 60 days 

of the filing of the proposed rule change, the 
Commission summarily may temporarily suspend 
such rule change if it appears to the Commission 
that such action is necessary or appropriate in the 
public interest, for the protection of investors, or 
otherwise in furtherance of the purposes of the Act. 
If the Commission takes such action, the 
Commission will institute proceedings to determine 
whether the proposed rule change should be 
approved or disapproved. 

5 Copies of the submission, all subsequent 
amendments, all written statements with respect to 
the proposed rule change that are filed with the 
Commission, and all written communications 
relating to the proposed rule change between the 
Commission and any person, other than those that 
may be withheld from the public in accordance 
with the provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be 
available for website viewing and printing in the 
Commission’s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street 
NE, Washington, DC 20549, on official business 
days between the hours of 10 a.m. and 3 p.m. 
Copies of the filing also will be available for 
inspection and copying at the principal office of the 
Exchange. 

6 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 
1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 

(https://www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/ 
self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-LTSE-2025- 
01) or by sending an email to rule- 
comments@sec.gov. Please include file 
number SR–LTSE–2025–01 on the 
subject line. Alternatively, paper 
comments may be sent to Secretary, 
Securities and Exchange Commission, 
100 F Street NE, Washington, DC 
20549–1090. All submissions should 
refer to file number SR–LTSE–2025–01. 
To help the Commission process and 
review your comments more efficiently, 
please use only one method. The 
Commission will post all comments on 
the Commission’s internet website 
(https://www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/ 
self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-LTSE-2025- 
01). Do not include personal identifiable 
information in submissions; you should 
submit only information that you wish 
to make available publicly. We may 
redact in part or withhold entirely from 
publication submitted material that is 
obscene or subject to copyright 
protection. All submissions should refer 
to file number SR–LTSE–2025–01 and 
should be submitted on or before 
February 28, 2025. 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.7 
Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02332 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102323; File No. SR–BX– 
2025–006] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; Nasdaq 
BX, Inc.; Notice of Filing and 
Immediate Effectiveness of Proposed 
Rule Change To Amend Options 3, 
Section 13 Concerning PRISM and 
Options 3, Section 15(b)(1) Concerning 
the Risk Protection Acceptable Trade 
Range 

February 3, 2025. 
Pursuant to Section 19(b)(1) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(‘‘Act’’),1 and Rule 19b–4 thereunder,2 
notice is hereby given that on January 
28, 2025, Nasdaq BX, Inc. (‘‘BX’’ or 
‘‘Exchange’’) filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’) the proposed rule 

change as described in Item I below, 
which Item has been substantially 
prepared by the Exchange. The 
Exchange has designated this proposal 
for immediate effectiveness pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(3)(A) of the Act 3 and Rule 
19b–4(f) thereunder.4 The Commission 
is publishing this notice to solicit 
comments on the proposed rule change 
from interested persons. 

I. Self-Regulatory Organization’s 
Statement of the Terms of Substance of 
the Proposed Rule Change 

The Exchange proposes to amend 
various options rules to: (1) amend the 
treatment of responses in the Price 
Improvement Auction (‘‘PRISM’’) in 
Options 3, Section 13 and clarify how 
multiple responses are treated; and (2) 
describe the application of Acceptable 
Trade Range at Options 3, Section 
15(b)(1). 

The proposed rule change, including 
the Exchange’s statement of the purpose 
of, and statutory basis for, the proposed 
rule change, is available on the 
Exchange’s website at https://
listingcenter.nasdaq.com/rulebook/bx/ 
rulefilings, and on the Commission’s 
website at https://www.sec.gov/rules- 
regulations/self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-BX-2025- 
006. 

II. Solicitation of Comments 
Interested persons are invited to 

submit written data, views, and 
arguments concerning the foregoing, 
including whether the proposed rule 
change is consistent with the Act.5 
Comments may be submitted 
electronically by using the 
Commission’s internet comment form 
(https://www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/ 

self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securites- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-BX-2025- 
006) or by sending an email to rule- 
comments@sec.gov. Please include file 
number SR–BX–2025–006 on the 
subject line. Alternatively, paper 
comments may be sent to Secretary, 
Securities and Exchange Commission, 
100 F Street NE, Washington, DC 
20549–1090. All submissions should 
refer to file number SR–BX–2025–006. 
To help the Commission process and 
review your comments more efficiently, 
please use only one method. The 
Commission will post all comments on 
the Commission’s internet website 
(https://www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/ 
self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securites- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-BX-2025- 
006). Do not include personal 
identifiable information in submissions; 
you should submit only information 
that you wish to make available 
publicly. We may redact in part or 
withhold entirely from publication 
submitted material that is obscene or 
subject to copyright protection. All 
submissions should refer to file number 
SR–BX–2025–006 and should be 
submitted on or before February 28, 
2025. 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.6 
Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02324 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102324; File No. SR–NYSE– 
2024–35] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; New 
York Stock Exchange LLC; Notice of 
Withdrawal of a Proposed Rule Change 
To Amend Section 302.00 of the NYSE 
Listed Company Manual To Exempt 
Closed-End Funds Registered Under 
the Investment Company Act of 1940 
From the Requirement To Hold Annual 
Shareholder Meetings 

February 3, 2025. 
On June 21, 2024, New York Stock 

Exchange LLC (‘‘NYSE’’) filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’), pursuant to Section 
19(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 (‘‘Act’’) 1 and Rule 19b–4 
thereunder,2 a proposed rule change to 
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3 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 100460 
(July 3, 2024), 89 FR 56447. Comments on the 
proposed rule change are available at: https://
www.sec.gov/comments/sr-nyse-2024-35/ 
srnyse202435.htm. 

4 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(2). 
5 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 

100790, 89 FR 68676 (Aug. 27, 2024). The 
Commission designated October 7, 2024, as the date 
by which the Commission shall approve or 
disapprove, or institute proceedings to determine 
whether to disapprove, the proposed rule change. 

6 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(2)(B). 
7 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 

101257, 89 FR 82277 (Oct. 10, 2024). 
8 See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 

101968, 89 FR 105143 (Dec. 26, 2024). 
9 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 

1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 
3 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A). 
4 17 CFR 240.19b–4(f). At any time within 60 days 

of the filing of the proposed rule change, the 
Commission summarily may temporarily suspend 
such rule change if it appears to the Commission 
that such action is necessary or appropriate in the 
public interest, for the protection of investors, or 
otherwise in furtherance of the purposes of the Act. 
If the Commission takes such action, the 
Commission will institute proceedings to determine 
whether the proposed rule change should be 
approved or disapproved. 

5 Copies of the submission, all subsequent 
amendments, all written statements with respect to 
the proposed rule change that are filed with the 
Commission, and all written communications 
relating to the proposed rule change between the 
Commission and any person, other than those that 
may be withheld from the public in accordance 
with the provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be 
available for website viewing and printing in the 
Commission’s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street 
NE, Washington, DC 20549, on official business 
days between the hours of 10 a.m. and 3 p.m. 
Copies of the filing also will be available for 
inspection and copying at the principal office of 
SRO. 

6 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 
1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 

amend Section 302.00 of the NYSE 
Listed Company Manual to exempt 
closed-end funds registered under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940 from 
the requirement to hold annual 
shareholder meetings. The proposed 
rule change was published for comment 
in the Federal Register on July 9, 2024.3 

On August 21, 2024, pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(2) of the Act,4 the 
Commission designated a longer period 
within which to approve the proposed 
rule change, disapprove the proposed 
rule change, or institute proceedings to 
determine whether to disapprove the 
proposed rule change.5 On October 4, 
2024, the Commission instituted 
proceedings under Section 19(b)(2)(B) of 
the Act 6 to determine whether to 
approve or disapprove the proposed 
rule change.7 On December 18, 2024, 
the Commission extended the period for 
consideration of the proposed rule 
change to March 6, 2025.8 

On January 31, 2025, NYSE withdrew 
the proposed rule change (SR–NYSE– 
2024–35). 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.9 
Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02329 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102331; File No. SR– 
CboeEDGA–2025–001] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; Cboe 
EDGA Exchange, Inc.; Notice of Filing 
and Immediate Effectiveness of a 
Proposed Rule Change To Amend Its 
Fee Schedule Regarding Dedicated 
Cores 

February 3, 2025. 
Pursuant to Section 19(b)(1) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

(‘‘Act’’),1 and Rule 19b–4 thereunder,2 
notice is hereby given that on January 
24, 2025, Cboe EDGA Exchange, Inc. 
(‘‘Exchange’’) filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’) the proposed rule 
change as described in Item I below, 
which Item has been substantially 
prepared by the Exchange. The 
Exchange has designated this proposal 
for immediate effectiveness pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(3)(A) of the Act 3 and Rule 
19b–4(f) thereunder.4 The Commission 
is publishing this notice to solicit 
comments on the proposed rule change 
from interested persons. 

I. Self-Regulatory Organization’s 
Statement of the Terms of Substance of 
the Proposed Rule Change 

The Exchange proposes to amend its 
fee schedule to adopt fees for Dedicated 
Cores. 

The proposed rule change, including 
the Exchange’s statement of the purpose 
of, and statutory basis for, the proposed 
rule change, is available on the 
Exchange’s website at http://
markets.cboe.com/us/equities/ 
regulation/rule_filings/edga/ and on the 
Commission’s website at https://
www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/self- 
regulatory-organization-rulemaking/ 
national-securities-exchanges?file_
number=SR-CboeEDGA-2025-001. 

II. Solicitation of Comments 
Interested persons are invited to 

submit written data, views, and 
arguments concerning the foregoing, 
including whether the proposed rule 
change is consistent with the Act.5 
Comments may be submitted 
electronically by using the 

Commission’s internet comment form 
(https://www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/ 
self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-CboeEDGA- 
2025-001) or by sending an email to 
rule-comments@sec.gov. Please include 
file number SR–CboeEDGA–2025–001 
on the subject line. Alternatively, paper 
comments may be sent to Secretary, 
Securities and Exchange Commission, 
100 F Street NE, Washington, DC 
20549–1090. All submissions should 
refer to file number SR–CboeEDGA– 
2025–001. To help the Commission 
process and review your comments 
more efficiently, please use only one 
method. The Commission will post all 
comments on the Commission’s internet 
website (https://www.sec.gov/rules- 
regulations/self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-CboeEDGA- 
2025-001). Do not include personal 
identifiable information in submissions; 
you should submit only information 
that you wish to make available 
publicly. We may redact in part or 
withhold entirely from publication 
submitted material that is obscene or 
subject to copyright protection. All 
submissions should refer to file number 
SR–CboeEDGA–2025–001 and should 
be submitted on or before February 28, 
2025. 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.6 
Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02330 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102330; File No. SR– 
CboeEDGX–2025–006] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; Cboe 
EDGX Exchange, Inc.; Notice of Filing 
and Immediate Effectiveness of a 
Proposed Rule Change To Amend Its 
Fee Schedule Regarding Dedicated 
Cores 

February 3, 2025. 
Pursuant to Section 19(b)(1) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(‘‘Act’’),1 and Rule 19b–4 thereunder,2 
notice is hereby given that on January 
24, 2025, Cboe EDGX Exchange, Inc. 
(‘‘Exchange’’) filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’) the proposed rule 
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3 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A). 
4 17 CFR 240.19b–4(f). At any time within 60 days 

of the filing of the proposed rule change, the 
Commission summarily may temporarily suspend 
such rule change if it appears to the Commission 
that such action is necessary or appropriate in the 
public interest, for the protection of investors, or 
otherwise in furtherance of the purposes of the Act. 
If the Commission takes such action, the 
Commission will institute proceedings to determine 
whether the proposed rule change should be 
approved or disapproved. 

5 Copies of the submission, all subsequent 
amendments, all written statements with respect to 
the proposed rule change that are filed with the 
Commission, and all written communications 
relating to the proposed rule change between the 
Commission and any person, other than those that 
may be withheld from the public in accordance 
with the provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be 
available for website viewing and printing in the 
Commission’s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street 
NE, Washington, DC 20549, on official business 
days between the hours of 10 a.m. and 3 p.m. 
Copies of the filing also will be available for 
inspection and copying at the principal office of 
SRO. 

6 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 
1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1). 
2 17 CFR 240.19b–4. 
3 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(3)(A). 

4 17 CFR 240.19b–4(f). At any time within 60 days 
of the filing of the proposed rule change, the 
Commission summarily may temporarily suspend 
such rule change if it appears to the Commission 
that such action is necessary or appropriate in the 
public interest, for the protection of investors, or 
otherwise in furtherance of the purposes of the Act. 
If the Commission takes such action, the 
Commission will institute proceedings to determine 
whether the proposed rule change should be 
approved or disapproved. 

5 Copies of the submission, all subsequent 
amendments, all written statements with respect to 
the proposed rule change that are filed with the 
Commission, and all written communications 
relating to the proposed rule change between the 
Commission and any person, other than those that 
may be withheld from the public in accordance 
with the provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be 
available for website viewing and printing in the 
Commission’s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street 
NE, Washington, DC 20549, on official business 
days between the hours of 10 a.m. and 3 p.m. 
Copies of the filing also will be available for 
inspection and copying at the principal office of 
SRO. 

change as described in Item I below, 
which Item has been substantially 
prepared by the Exchange. The 
Exchange has designated this proposal 
for immediate effectiveness pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(3)(A) of the Act 3 and Rule 
19b–4(f) thereunder.4 The Commission 
is publishing this notice to solicit 
comments on the proposed rule change 
from interested persons. 

I. Self-Regulatory Organization’s 
Statement of the Terms of Substance of 
the Proposed Rule Change 

The Exchange proposes to amend its 
fee schedule to adopt fees for Dedicated 
Cores. 

The proposed rule change, including 
the Exchange’s statement of the purpose 
of, and statutory basis for, the proposed 
rule change, is available on the 
Exchange’s website at https://
www.cboe.com/us/equities/regulation/ 
rule_filings/edgx/ and on the 
Commission’s website at https://
www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/self- 
regulatory-organization-rulemaking/ 
national-securities-exchanges?file_
number=SR-CboeEDGX-2025-006. 

II. Solicitation of Comments 
Interested persons are invited to 

submit written data, views, and 
arguments concerning the foregoing, 
including whether the proposed rule 
change is consistent with the Act.5 
Comments may be submitted 
electronically by using the 
Commission’s internet comment form 
(https://www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/ 
self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-CboeEDGX- 
2025-006) or by sending an email to 
rule-comments@sec.gov. Please include 
file number SR–CboeEDGX–2025–006 

on the subject line. Alternatively, paper 
comments may be sent to Secretary, 
Securities and Exchange Commission, 
100 F Street NE, Washington, DC 
20549–1090. All submissions should 
refer to file number SR–CboeEDGX– 
2025–006. To help the Commission 
process and review your comments 
more efficiently, please use only one 
method. The Commission will post all 
comments on the Commission’s internet 
website (https://www.sec.gov/rules- 
regulations/self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-CboeEDGX- 
2025-006). Do not include personal 
identifiable information in submissions; 
you should submit only information 
that you wish to make available 
publicly. We may redact in part or 
withhold entirely from publication 
submitted material that is obscene or 
subject to copyright protection. 

All submissions should refer to file 
number SR–CboeEDGX–2025–006 and 
should be submitted on or before 
February 28, 2025. 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.6 
Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02325 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

[Release No. 34–102326; File No. SR– 
CboeBYX–2025–001] 

Self-Regulatory Organizations; Cboe 
BYX Exchange, Inc.; Notice of Filing 
and Immediate Effectiveness of a 
Proposed Rule Change To Amend Its 
Fee Schedule Regarding Dedicated 
Cores 

February 3, 2025. 
Pursuant to Section 19(b)(1) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(‘‘Act’’),1 and Rule 19b–4 thereunder,2 
notice is hereby given that on January 
24, 2025, Cboe BYX Exchange, Inc. 
(‘‘Exchange’’) filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’) the proposed rule 
change as described in Item I below, 
which Item has been substantially 
prepared by the Exchange. The 
Exchange has designated this proposal 
for immediate effectiveness pursuant to 
Section 19(b)(3)(A) of the Act 3 and Rule 

19b–4(f) thereunder.4 The Commission 
is publishing this notice to solicit 
comments on the proposed rule change 
from interested persons. 

I. Self-Regulatory Organization’s 
Statement of the Terms of Substance of 
the Proposed Rule Change 

The Exchange proposes to amend its 
fee schedule to adopt fees for Dedicated 
Cores. 

The proposed rule change, including 
the Exchange’s statement of the purpose 
of, and statutory basis for, the proposed 
rule change, is available on the 
Exchange’s website at http://
markets.cboe.com/us/equities/ 
regulation/rule_filings/BYX/ and on the 
Commission’s website at https://
www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/self- 
regulatory-organization-rulemaking/ 
national-securities-exchanges?file_
number=SR-CboeBYX-2025-001. 

II. Solicitation of Comments 
Interested persons are invited to 

submit written data, views, and 
arguments concerning the foregoing, 
including whether the proposed rule 
change is consistent with the Act.5 
Comments may be submitted 
electronically by using the 
Commission’s internet comment form 
(https://www.sec.gov/rules-regulations/ 
self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-CboeBYX- 
2025-001) or by sending an email to 
rule-comments@sec.gov. Please include 
file number SR–CboeBYX–2025–001 on 
the subject line. Alternatively, paper 
comments may be sent to Secretary, 
Securities and Exchange Commission, 
100 F Street NE, Washington, DC 
20549–1090. All submissions should 
refer to file number SR–CboeBYX– 
2025–001. To help the Commission 
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6 17 CFR 200.30–3(a)(12). 

process and review your comments 
more efficiently, please use only one 
method. The Commission will post all 
comments on the Commission’s internet 
website (https://www.sec.gov/rules- 
regulations/self-regulatory-organization- 
rulemaking/national-securities- 
exchanges?file_number=SR-CboeBYX- 
2025-001). Do not include personal 
identifiable information in submissions; 
you should submit only information 
that you wish to make available 
publicly. We may redact in part or 
withhold entirely from publication 
submitted material that is obscene or 
subject to copyright protection. All 
submissions should refer to file number 
SR–CboeBYX–2025–001 and should be 
submitted on or before February 28, 
2025. 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.6 
Sherry R. Haywood, 
Assistant Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02334 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE 

[Public Notice: 12652] 

Notice of Postponement of Meeting of 
the Cultural Property Advisory 
Committee 

SUMMARY: This Notice announces the 
postponement of a previously 
announced Cultural Property Advisory 
Committee meeting. 
DATES: The meeting of the Cultural 
Property Advisory Committee 
scheduled for February 4–6, 2025 is 
postponed. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Allison R. Davis Lehmann, Cultural 
Heritage Center, Bureau of Educational 
and Cultural Affairs: email: culprop@
state.gov, telephone: 202–904–0878. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
meeting of the Cultural Property 

Advisory Committee scheduled for 
February 4–6, 2025, at the Department 
of State to review a request from the 
Government of the Socialist Republic of 
Vietnam seeking import restrictions on 
archaeological and ethnological 
materials, the proposed extension of the 
agreement with the Government of the 
Republic of Chile, the proposed 
extension of the agreement with the 
Government of the Italian Republic, and 
the proposed extension of the agreement 
with the Government of the Kingdom of 
Morocco has been postponed. The 
meeting will be re-scheduled, and a new 
notice will be published in the Federal 
Register. The original notice was 
published on December 30, 2024, FR 
Doc. 2024–31255, at 89 FR 106722. 

Allison R. Davis Lehmann, 
Executive Director, Cultural Property 
Advisory Committee, Department of State. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02347 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4710–05–P 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Federal Aviation Administration 

Notice of Intent To Rule on Request To 
Release Airport Property at the South 
Texas Regional Airport, Hondo, Texas 

AGENCY: Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA), DOT. 
ACTION: Notice of request to release 
airport property. 

SUMMARY: The FAA proposes to rule and 
invite public comment on the release of 
land at the South Texas Regional 
Airport under the provisions of the 
Federal Property and Administrative 
Services Act of 1949, and the Surplus 
Property Act of 1944. 
DATES: Comments must be received on 
or before March 10, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: Comments on this 
application may be mailed or delivered 
to the FAA at the following address: Mr. 
Rodney Clark, Manager, Federal 
Aviation Administration, Southwest 
Region, Airports Division, Texas 

Airports Development Office, ASW– 
650, Fort Worth, Texas 76177. 

In addition, one copy of any 
comments submitted to the FAA must 
be mailed or delivered to Ryan Elder, 
Director of Aviation, at the following 
address: 700 Vandenberg Road, Hondo, 
Texas 78861. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Mr. 
Michael Van Vliet, Assistant Manager, 
Federal Aviation Administration, Texas 
Airports Development Office, ASW– 
650, 10101 Hillwood Parkway, Fort 
Worth, Texas 76177, Telephone: (817) 
222–5132, Email: 
Michaael.E.Van.Vliet@FAA.gov, Fax: 
(817) 222–5987. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The South 
Texas Regional Airport under the 
provisions of the Federal Property and 
Administrative Services Act of 1949, 
and the Surplus Property Act of 1944. 

The following is a brief overview of 
the request: The City of Hondo requests 
the release of 100.763 acres of land 
located within the South Texas Regional 
Airport, Hondo, Texas 78861. The land 
was acquired by Indenture under and 
pursuant to Reorganization Plan One of 
1947 (12 FR 4534) and the Surplus 
Property Act of 1944. The property to be 
released will be sold and revenues shall 
be used to enhance development, 
operations and maintenance of the 
airport. Any person may inspect the 
request in person at the FAA office 
listed above under FOR FURTHER 
INFORMATION CONTACT. 

In addition, any person may, upon 
request, inspect the application, notice 
and other documents relevant to the 
application in person at the South Texas 
Regional Airport, telephone number 
(830) 426–6989. 

Issued in Fort Worth, Texas on February 3, 
2025. 
D. Cameron Bryan, 
Deputy Director, Office of Airports Southwest 
Region. 
[FR Doc. 2025–02335 Filed 2–6–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4910–13–P 
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